
UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(D) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

COMMISSION FILE NUMBER 0-27038

SCANSOFT, INC.
(EXACT NAME OF REGISTRANT AS SPECIFIED IN ITS CHARTER)

DELAWARE
(STATE OR OTHER JURISDICTION OF INCORPORATION OR ORGANIZATION)

94-3156479 (I.R.S. EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER)

9 CENTENNIAL DRIVE
PEABODY, MASSACHUSETTS 01960
(978) 977-2000

(ADDRESS, INCLUDING ZIP CODE, AND TELEPHONE NUMBER, INCLUDING AREA CODE, OF REGISTRANT'S PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICES)

SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(B) OF THE ACT: NONE

SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(G) OF THE ACT: COMMON STOCK, \$0.001 PAR VALUE

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or $15\,(d)$ of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes /X/ No []

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. /X/

The aggregate market value of voting stock held by non-affiliates of the Registrant was approximately \$36,043,155.83 as of March 26, 2001, based on \$0.7813 per share, the last reported sales price on the Nasdaq National Market for such date. Shares of Common Stock held by each executive officer and director and by each person who owns 5% or more of the outstanding Common Stock have been excluded in that such persons may be deemed to be affiliates. This determination of affiliate status is not necessarily a conclusive determination for other purposes.

The number of shares of the registrant's Common Stock, \$0.001 par value, outstanding as of March 26, 2001 was 46,132,287.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

SCANSOFT, INC.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

			PAGE
PART I			
Item	1.	BUSINESS	1
Item	2.	PROPERTIES	12
Item	3.	LEGAL PROCEEDINGS	12
Item	4.	SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS	12
PART I	I		
Item	5.	MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS	13
Item	6.	SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA	13
Item	7.	MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS	14
Item	7A.	QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK	24
Item	8.	FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA	24
Item	9.	CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE	53
PART I	II		
Item	10.	DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT	53
Item	11.	EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION	56
Item	12.	SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT	58
Item	13.	CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS	59

Item 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K.....

59

i

3

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

WHEN USED IN THIS REPORT, THE WORDS "EXPECTS," "INTENDS," "BELIEVES," "PROJECTS," "PLANS," "ANTICIPATES," "ESTIMATES," AND SIMILAR WORDS AND EXPRESSIONS ARE INTENDED TO IDENTIFY FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS. THESE STATEMENTS, WHICH INCLUDE STATEMENTS AS TO THE TIMING OF PRODUCT RELEASES, THE PERFORMANCE AND UTILITY OF THE COMPANY'S PRODUCTS AND EARNINGS AND PROFITABILITY, ARE SUBJECT TO RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES THAT COULD CAUSE ACTUAL RESULTS TO DIFFER MATERIALLY FROM THOSE PROJECTED. THESE RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES INCLUDE, BUT ARE NOT LIMITED TO, THOSE RISKS DISCUSSED BELOW UNDER THE HEADING "RISK FACTORS" AND UNDER ITEM 7 -- "MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS" AND OTHER RISKS DETAILED FROM TIME TO TIME IN OUR PERIODIC REPORTS AND OTHER INFORMATION FILED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION. THESE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS SPEAK ONLY AS THE DATE HEREOF. THE COMPANY EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ANY OBLIGATION OR UNDERTAKING TO RELEASE PUBLICLY ANY UPDATES OR REVISION TO ANY FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS CONTAINED HEREIN TO REFLECT ANY CHANGE IN THE COMPANY'S EXPECTATIONS WITH REGARD THERETO OR ANY CHANGE IN EVENTS, CONDITIONS OR CIRCUMSTANCES ON WHICH ANY SUCH STATEMENT IS BASED.

PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

ScanSoft, Inc. was incorporated as Visioneer, Inc. in March 1992 and through December 1998, developed and sold scanner hardware and software products.

In 1993, Xerox Imaging Systems, Inc. ("XIS") a wholly owned subsidiary of Xerox Corporation, established a software business unit called "ScanSoft". On September 16, 1996, XIS formed a wholly owned subsidiary, ScanSoft, Inc., in order to focus on the software business.

On January 6, 1999, Visioneer sold the hardware business and the Visioneer brand name to Primax Electronics, Ltd., and on March 2, 1999, Visioneer acquired ScanSoft, in a cash election merger, from Xerox Corporation. The corporate entity "Visioneer" survived the merger, but changed its name to "ScanSoft, Inc." In addition, Visioneer changed the ticker symbol for its common stock that trades on the Nasdaq, to "SSFT."

On March 13, 2000, ScanSoft acquired Caere Corporation ("Caere"). Caere designed, developed, manufactured and marketed a range of OCR software tools.

ScanSoft, Inc. is a leading provider of digital imaging software products for retail, OEM and corporate markets. ScanSoft's products capture and convert paper documents and photos into digital documents and images, and enhance a user's ability to organize and share digital documents and images in the office, at home and on the Internet. Generally, ScanSoft's products are based on proprietary or patented optical character recognition ("OCR") and/or image processing technologies designed to address the needs of a broad group of users ranging from consumers and small office to medium-sized businesses and large corporations.

ScanSoft maintains executive offices and principal facilities at 9 Centennial Drive, Peabody, MA 01960. Our telephone number is (978) 977-2000. We maintain a World Wide Web site at www.scansoft.com. When we refer to "we" or "ScanSoft" or "the Company" in this Form 10-K, we mean the current Delaware

corporation (ScanSoft, Inc.), as well as all of our consolidated subsidiaries.

1

4

] BUSINESS OVERVIEW

SCANSOFT'S MISSION: LEADER IN PAPER-TO-DIGITAL SOLUTIONS

ScanSoft's mission is to be the worldwide leader in paper-to-digital solutions for the desktop, network and mobile environments.

ScanSoft provides scanning and paper-to-digital software solutions for individuals and workgroups. Customers use our software to organize, transmit, edit, and manage their paper documents, forms, faxes, photos and other images. ScanSoft markets three families of software products: the OmniPage and Textbridge OCR family of products, PaperPort and Pagis paper management solutions, and OmniForm electronic forms management software. In addition, we have a strong presence in integrated imaging toolkits, as well as a number of internet-based products and services. Details about our products and services are provided beginning on page 3.

SCANSOFT'S STRATEGY

By building on our foundation of strength in desktop scanning, we intend to expand our offerings while extending our reach to the network and mobile environments. At the same time we will invest in expanding our channels and partnerships.

PURSUE GROWTH IN OUR CORE PRODUCT LINES

Our software products include OCR, paper management solutions, forms management software and software suites that offer various combinations of these products as well as third party offerings. Our ability to achieve broad market acceptance of our products will depend on several factors such as ease-of-use, OCR accuracy, speed, and overall functionality. In addition, our software needs to integrate with desktop operating systems, word processing applications, e-mail software, fax applications, image editing products and Internet publishing tools. In that regard, our strategy is to maintain and enhance our technological position by investing in OCR and image processing technology and strategic business and technology partnerships with other leading companies.

EXPAND OUR CHANNELS AND PARTNERSHIPS

We have nearly 8 million registered users for our products, distributed across the home office, small-medium business (SMB) and corporate segments. We believe we have particular strength within the SMB segment, and in certain verticals, including legal, education and government, and our strategy is to leverage our strength in this area. We also plan to expand into new geographic areas, including Italy, Spain, Latin America, Brazil, Mexico, and Argentina and expand our opportunities in Pacific Rim.

The rapid growth of the SMB segment also makes ScanSoft an attractive partner for large OEM customers, all of whom have targeted the market for their own growth, and who require software to tailor their systems to this segment. We expect to achieve new opportunities by leveraging our current OEM partnerships as well as focusing new initiatives on select vertical markets such as federal, state and local Governments. In addition, we intend to focus on building a direct corporate licensing business by capitalizing on our installed base for multiple purchase/site license opportunities and on our existing OEM partners to optimize software upgrades.

In addition to OEMs, ScanSoft will continue to approach the market through a variety of channels, including conventional retail, on-line retail, VARs and direct licensing.

ScanSoft also provides Internet imaging software, which includes products that make it easier to publish and share paper documents and photos via the Internet. Currently, our products allow users to capture and

2

5

convert paper-based documents to Joint Photographic Experts Group ("JPEG"), Hypertext Mark-up Language ("HTML") and Portable Document Format ("PDF") files and share photos and documents via e-mail or as part of an Internet site.

Recently, we have been supporting the evolution of the TIFF-FX standard by providing solutions that promote its ubiquity. TIFF-FX is an open file format that employs three new compression technologies -- Mixed Raster Content, JBIG2 and JPEG2000. This technology has been accepted by the Internet Engineering Taskforce and uses technologies that have been accepted by the International Telecommunications Union and the International Standards Organization organizations. It can be easily configured for low-memory devices such as Personal Digital Assistants, Wireless Application Protocol phones, and eBooks. We are actively working for the advancement of the specification and testing of TIFF-FX with other industry leaders including Microsoft, Xerox, Northern Telecom, Intel, NTT, Mitsubishi Electric, Matsushita and NEC. As well, we are working with Microsoft to supply desktop-ready technology for use in Microsoft Office.

Our strategy also incorporates revenue growth through the addition of services. Our services will be coupled with an increased focus on vertical segments, where achieving higher penetration rates increases barriers-to-entry. We also intend to offer an expanding set of Internet services coupled with our desktop products through an ASP model, such as eOmniForm.com and PaperPortOnline.

PRODUCTS

Our products are comprised of digital imaging software for business and personal computing, and are currently organized into the following categories:

OCR PRODUCTS

OmniPage Pro(R)

OmniPage Pro is our flagship product positioned as our premium OCR solution. OmniPage Pro is a fully featured OCR product that allows the user to recognize, edit, and save complex documents containing text and images in their original, full-page formats and provide users the ability to recognize tables and spreadsheets. OmniPage Limited Edition is a limited feature version of OmniPage Pro that allows a user to perform OCR on a scanned document and save the document to a file. OmniPage Limited Edition is bundled with scanners.

Textbridge Pro(R)

TextBridge Pro is ScanSoft's value OCR offering maintaining excellent accuracy (over 99%) with fewer advanced features than OmniPage Pro. TextBridge Pro combines OCR with page layout comprehension to recreate electronic files that are similar to the paper originals in terms of page layout, font characteristics and graphics, offering a dramatic advantage over bundled OCR technology. For flexibility, TextBridge Pro provides text, table and picture zoning tools that allow users to choose what sections of a document they want to recognize. In addition, TextBridge Pro offers built-in post-recognition editing, which enables users to conveniently proofread converted documents against the original scanned image.

PAPER AND IMAGE MANAGEMENT PRODUCTS

Paperport (R)

PaperPort Deluxe is paper management software designed for small office and home office users. It turns a scanner or multi-function-peripheral into a versatile solution for filing, copying, finding and sharing paper and photographs. PaperPort Deluxe provides a visual desktop with thumbnail file representations that allow users to quickly browse and locate images, Web pages and electronic files. Other key features include Simple Search, which enables users to find scanned images, electronic documents and Web pages by searching file names, content or keywords, and ScanDirect, which enables direct scanning into linked applications.

3

6

PaperPortOnline (TM)

PaperPortOnline provides web-based storage, management, and collaboration of business and personal documents and images. ScanSoft customers are able to store and share project documents, financial records, priceless family photos, and all other important paper items in a secure online data vault without leaving the home or office. It is the next logical step in offering our customers a complete solution -- from desktop to web -- for all document management needs. In addition, PaperPortOnline reduces our customer's IT costs of acquiring & maintaining equipment/support applications, which is important for smaller companies who can't afford large capital investments.

Pagis Pro(R)

Pagis Pro is a scanning software suite that combines the Pagis digital imaging desktop with TextBridge Pro and Kai's PhotoSoap to transform an office personal computer into a paper-to-digital solution for electronically filing, copying, editing and sharing documents and photos. Pagis Pro intelligently scans color documents and photos and creates color images that are easy to view, share, and print. Its folders provide visual image thumbnails to quickly browse and locate scanned images, and Pagis Pro provides powerful full-text and keyword indexing to help users retrieve document images, photos and electronic files. Using the Extended Image File Format ("XIFF"), Pagis Pro can store and send high-quality color document image files that are a fraction of the size of images saved in a standard image file format, such as Tagged Image File Format ("TIFF"). An image viewer provides image editing, selection and annotation tools. These tools help users enhance an image, select a portion of the image they want to work with, and add highlights or notes to an image. TextBridge Pro is integrated into the Pagis desktop, so users can easily convert paper documents and bring the recognized pages into a word processor or spreadsheet.

ELECTRONIC FORMS PRODUCTS

OmniForm(R)

OmniForm converts paper forms to electronic forms with the click of a button. OmniForm creates an electronic version of scanned or faxed documents by using OCR technologies and color Logical Forms Recognition(TM). OmniForm users also can design their own forms, complete with fonts, graphics, and logos, using the custom toolset and Form Assistant(TM). OmniForm Filler(TM) allows users to efficiently fill out forms by accepting input, performing calculations, validating entries and creating databases which can be searched, sorted, imported, and exported to popular database applications. OmniForm Internet Publisher converts existing paper forms to electronic versions and allows users to save the forms to a variety of Web-ready formats incorporating such form intelligence as field validation and calculations, so that companies can collect and distribute data-associated business transactions such as invoices, purchase orders, expense reports, or questionnaires.

eOmniForm.com(TM)

eOmniForm.com, which integrates with the newest version OmniForm, features leading-edge technology that publishes forms on the web with a click of a button without any programming. The simple eOmniForm.com hosting solution eliminates

the expensive, time-consuming work necessary to develop and maintain a data collection web site. Once a form is posted on eOmniForm.com, anyone with a web browser can access and fill out the form online, cutting the costs to print, distribute and manage paper forms. eOmniForm.com also collects completed forms on our ScanSoft-hosted web site, which allows the forms publisher to easily download the data into a local database.

INTEGRATED IMAGING TOOLKITS

ScanSoft's integrated imaging offering is centered around our software development toolkits (SDKs). These toolkits are targeted to the developer/systems integrator/corporate IT manager. The SDKs complement the desktop product lines by broadening our reach to include the developer, systems integrator and corporate IT markets. Our toolkits include Developer's Kit 2000 and OmniForm Developer's Edition.

4

7

OEM PRODUCTS

We bundle various versions of OmniPage, Pagis, PaperPort, and TextBridge with leading scanner, multi-function device and storage device manufacturers and leading independent software vendors. OEM customers often require us to integrate products with other applications or customize existing products to meet specific requirements. Therefore, we offer OEM customers both packaged products to bundle and a software developer's toolkit to facilitate the integration of OCR functionality with other applications. Our objective in bundling software products with multi-function devices is to expand the overall market for OCR and document management software by providing a larger number of purchasers with experience in the advantages of the software. "Light" versions with limited capabilities -- or superseded versions are now bundled with most multi-function devices being sold. This aggressive seeding of the rapidly growing base of multi-function device owners has greatly expanded our number of product users.

NEW PRODUCTS

We intend to design and develop products to extend the life and usability of our products for our installed base through the development of software upgrades and add-on accessory products. We intend to offer these upgrades to our OEM partners. We also plan to incorporate new software features into our software, and to expand our software product lines in 2001 through the development of alternative form factors comprising enhanced imaging capabilities and other features and functionality. We believe that the development of these and other products and features is essential to our success. Accordingly, we will continue to make significant investments in the research and development of new products. Such expenses may fluctuate from quarter to quarter depending on a wide range of factors, including the status of various development projects.

SALES AND DISTRIBUTION

Our products are available to customers through channels that include: distributors, retail, mail order, corporate resellers, value added resellers, original equipment manufacturers, partnerships, education and consulting. We also sell certain of our products and product upgrades over the Internet and through the use of direct mail. We sell corporate site licenses through our distribution and corporate reseller channels.

We maintain distribution relationships with major independent distributors. These distributors in turn sell to computer superstores, such as CompUSA and Fry's Electronics; consumer electronic stores, such as Best Buy and Circuit City; mail order houses, such as PC Connection and MicroWarehouse; and office superstores, such as Office Max, Office Depot and Staples. We also maintain relationships with these major retailers, while marketing to them through independent distributors. Our sales force works closely with our major distributor and reseller accounts to manage the flow of orders, inventory levels

and sell-through to customers. We also work closely with them to manage promotions and other selling activities.

In 2000, we derived a significant portion of our revenue from sales through our independent distributors, retailers and resellers. Although we have established strategic software OEM partnerships, we expect that sales through our independent distributors and resellers will continue to account for a substantial portion of our revenues for the foreseeable future. Our top two distributors for 2000 were Ingram Micro and Digital River, both independent distributors. Sales to these top two independent distributors accounted for 38% of our total revenue in 2000 in the aggregate, or 27% and 11%, respectively, as compared to the top two independent distributors and resellers in 1999 accounting for 39% of our total revenue in 1999 and the top two independent distributors and resellers in 1998 accounted for 30% of our total revenue in 1998. Our agreements with distributors are generally nonexclusive and may be terminated by either party without cause.

Our return policy allows distributors, subject to various limitations, to return purchased products in exchange for new products or for credit towards future purchases. End users may return products through dealers and distributors for a full refund, within a reasonable period from the date of purchase. Retailers may return older versions of products. Product returns occur when we introduce upgrades and new versions of products or when distributors order too much product. In addition, competitive factors often require us to offer rights of return for products that distributors or retail stores are unable to sell.

5

8

In addition, we offer various end-user rebate programs for our products. We accrue for expected returns, and anticipated rebate redemption in amounts that the Company believes are reasonable. However, there can be no assurance that these accruals will be sufficient or that any future returns, or rebate redemption will not have a material adverse effect on our business and operating results, especially in light of the rapid product obsolescence that often occurs during product transitions.

Revenue from resellers and distributors outside North America represented approximately 18% of revenue in 2000 as compared to 13% in 1999 and 7% in 1998. We expect our revenue from international sales to account for approximately 20% to 25% of revenues in 2001.

TECHNICAL SUPPORT

Domestically, full-featured software product customers who register with us currently receive limited hotline technical support and product information at no cost. Additional technical support services are available on a "fee for support" basis. We currently offer several technical support options to customers of packaged products. These include telephone, fax or email support by a customer support representative or self help by accessing our technical information bulletins or frequently asked questions on the Internet. Outside of the U.S., full-featured software product customers receive technical support from a third party company on both a fee and non-fee basis.

OEM RELATIONSHIPS

We have software OEM agreements with several manufacturers who bundle digital imaging software with the scanning, capture, and multi-function devices or software they sell including: Apple, Brother, Canon, Compaq, Epson, Hewlett-Packard, IBM, Mattel, Microtek, Mustek, Olivetti-Lexikon, Primax, Smith Micro, and Visioneer. Additionally, the Company has entered into multiple non-exclusive agreements with Xerox Corporation (a significant stockholder) in which ScanSoft agreed to license Xerox the royalty-bearing right to copy and distribute certain versions of Pagis, PaperPort and TextBridge software programs with Xerox's multifunction peripherals. The Company also has key technology partnerships with several companies, including a recent arrangement with Microsoft.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Our research and development teams are located in Peabody, Massachusetts, Los Gatos, California and Budapest, Hungary. As of December 31, 2000, we employed 111 full-time and 2 contract software design and quality assurance engineers, technicians and support staff.

Our growth and future financial performance will depend in part upon our ability to enhance existing applications and to develop and introduce new applications that keep pace with technological advances, meet changing customer requirements, respond to competitive products and achieve market acceptance. As a result, we expect that we will continue to commit substantial resources to product research and development in the future.

MANUFACTURING

We outsource a majority of the duplication and production of our software products to a third party. These vendors procure all required components, including compact disks, floppy disks, product manuals, boxes, and other product literature, and manufacture completed software products. Such manufacturing services are available from multiple vendors. A significant portion of our manufacturing services are currently provided by one manufacturing supplier. An interruption or failure by our principal manufacturing supplier could result in a delay in shipment of ScanSoft products.

Most of the components used in the manufacture of our products are available from multiple sources of supply. Certain components used in the manufacture of our OCR products are currently available only from a

6

9

single source. Although our manufacturing supplier generally maintains a several-month inventory level of these components, failure of a single-source supplier to deliver required quantities of such materials to our manufacturing service provider could materially and adversely affect our operating results. We believe that, if necessary, we could develop alternative sources of supply for these components and parts, or re-engineer the products. However, any delays in developing such alternative sources of supply or in the re-engineering of the products could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

COMPETITION

The markets for ScanSoft products are characterized by intense competition, evolving industry standards, rapid technology developments, aggressive pricing, and frequent new product introductions. Our future success will depend on our ability to enhance our existing products, introduce new products on a timely and cost-effective basis, meet changing customer needs, extend our core technology into new applications, and anticipate or respond to emerging standards and other technological changes.

Optical Character Recognition

The needs of OCR users are requiring increased accuracy, better performance and higher reliability. ScanSoft's products in this market, including OmniPage Pro and TextBridge Pro, face competition from companies offering similar products and will continue to face competition from emerging products and technologies. These competitors include Adobe, ABBYY, I.R.I.S., and NewSoft. With the exception of Adobe, the competitors are surfacing from foreign countries and are aggressive in their approach to entering new geographic markets including the US.

Paper Management

In the desktop imaging market, we offer products and suites including PaperPort Deluxe, Pagis Pro Scanning Suite and OmniPage Scan Suite. We believe

these individual products compete favorably on the basis of features and functionality, ease of use, product reliability, and price and performance characteristics. Competitors in this segment of the market who offer comparable products are NewSoft, Zydeco, J2, and other smaller players.

The toughest challenge in this segment is the Windows operating system filing and finding functionality. We believe the capabilities and visual structure of our products add significant benefit and with increased awareness building, we believe our paper to digital desktop solution will continue to be adopted. The risk of Microsoft implementing similar features and functions is formidable in the future.

Forms Solutions

In the forms conversion and design market segments, our OmniForm software and eOmniForm.com forms hosting service has faced competition from both large and smaller competitors including many Internet start-ups. The forms industry is broken into 2 distinct segments — the first being paper forms conversion and data collection, and the second, forms processing from paper based forms. ScanSoft's products vie in the former with competitors such as OCR for Forms, G-7 Productivity Systems, PureEdge, Shana, Cardiff and JetForm. This segment of the market is changing rapidly to extend the forms conversion to new devices such as PDA's in addition to standardization of HTML based forms for easier deployment. To continue to compete we have to continue with rapid product releases that meet the needs of the market, ensure cross platform support, and adopt the standards within the industry as they evolve.

In the Internet forms hosting arena, many start-up concerns are concentrating their efforts on more vertical uses such as Survey.com. Extending the use from our PC based products to the Internet requires rapid adoption of technology, increased functionality, ease of use and seamless integration into turnkey solutions.

7

10

PROPRIETARY TECHNOLOGY

We rely upon proprietary technology, trade secrets, know-how, continuing technological innovations and licensing opportunities to maintain our competitive position. We attempt to protect our technology and trade secrets with patents, copyrights, trade secret laws, technical measures and non-disclosure agreements. Our policy is to file patent applications to protect technology, inventions and improvements that are important to the development of our business. In this regard, we have been issued a series of patents that directly relate to our products. These patents expire on various dates between 2005 and 2016. Assurance cannot be given that any patents issued to the Company will not be challenged, invalidated or circumvented or that the rights granted by the patents will provide competitive advantages to the Company.

In order to protect our ownership rights in our software products, we license our products to OEMs and resellers on a non-exclusive basis with contractual restrictions on reproduction, distribution and transferability. In addition, we generally license our software in object code form only. We license our software products to end users by use of a "shrink-wrap" or "click wrap" customer license that restricts the end user to personal use of the product. Despite these contractual restrictions, it may be possible for competitors or users to illegally copy our software products or obtain information that the Company regards as proprietary.

We also rely on trade secrets and proprietary know-how. We have been, and will continue to be, required to disclose our trade secrets and proprietary know-how to employees and consultants. Although we seek to protect our trade secrets and proprietary know-how by entering into confidentiality agreements with such persons, there can be no assurance that these agreements will not be breached, that we will have an adequate remedy for any breach, or that our trade secrets will not otherwise become known or be independently discovered by

competitors.

Because of technological developments in our industry segment, it is possible that certain of our products may infringe third party proprietary rights. From time to time we have received, and in the future may receive, notices of claims of infringement. In response to these claims, we may have to obtain licenses for an allegedly infringing product or stop selling such product and be liable for damages.

In addition, ScanSoft has developed products in the past that incorporate technology based on licenses received from third parties. Our ability to continue to develop and commercialize our products will be affected by our ability to renew existing technology licenses and to obtain technology licenses from third parties in the future. There can be no assurance that we will be able to renew our current licenses or obtain any necessary licenses in the future. The failure to renew existing licenses or to obtain any licenses that may be required in the future could have a material adverse effect on the Company.

Policing unauthorized use of technology is difficult, especially in the software industry. Software piracy can be expected to be a persistent problem for the software industry for the foreseeable future. Such piracy can be particularly egregious in international markets in which we distribute our products. We believe that, due to the rapid pace of technological change in the industry, factors such as knowledge, ability, frequent product enhancements, timeliness and quality of product support and the experience of our employees are more significant as a means to protect our competitiveness than patent, copyright and trade secret protection.

EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2000, ScanSoft employed 245 people. None of our employees is represented by a labor union. Our future performance depends in significant part on the continued service of our key technical and senior management personnel. The Company has experienced no work stoppages and believes that its employee relations are good. The Company has utilized the services of consultants, third-party developers, and other vendors in its sales, development, and manufacturing activities.

Competition in the recruiting of personnel in the computer and data recognition industry is intense. The Company believes that its future success will depend in part on its continued ability to hire and retain qualified management, marketing and technical employees. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to attract and retain enough qualified employees.

8

11

RISK FACTORS

The factors discussed below are cautionary statements that identify important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated in the forward-looking statements in this Form 10K.

IF WE FAIL TO DEVELOP AND INTRODUCE NEW PRODUCTS RAPIDLY AND SUCCESSFULLY, WE WILL NOT BE ABLE TO COMPETE EFFECTIVELY AND OUR ABILITY TO GENERATE REVENUES WILL SUFFER. We operate in a highly competitive, quickly changing environment, and our future success depends on our ability to develop and introduce new products and services that our customers and end users choose to buy. If we are unsuccessful at developing and introducing new products and services that are appealing to end users, we would not be able to compete effectively and our business and operating results would suffer. In addition, we have limited resources and we must make strategic decisions as to how to best allocate our resources to position ourselves for changes in our markets. We may from time to time allocate resources to projects or markets that do not develop as rapidly or fully as we expect.

REVENUE. Delays in new product releases could adversely affect revenue growth rates. Further, it is not unusual in personal computer software life cycles for the sales volume of new products and new versions of existing products to increase in the first few months after their introduction because of initial demand. As a product reaches the end of its life cycle, however, demand for that product tends to fall in anticipation of new replacement products. Consequently, our customers may defer purchasing existing products, and we may be forced to lower the prices of older products in anticipation of new releases. This may result in distributors claiming price protection credits or returning older products to us, and as a result, our revenues may decline.

OUR QUARTERLY OPERATING RESULTS ARE SUBJECT TO FLUCTUATIONS AND SEASONALITY, AND IF WE FAIL TO MEET THE EXPECTATIONS OF SECURITIES ANALYSTS OR INVESTORS, OUR SHARE PRICE MAY DECREASE SIGNIFICANTLY. ScanSoft's revenue and operating results have fluctuated in the past. Our future quarterly operating results may fluctuate significantly and may not meet the expectations of securities analysts or investors. If this occurs, the price of our stock would likely decline. Factors that may cause fluctuations in our operating results include the following:

- Volume, timing and fulfillment of customer orders;
- Reduction in prices in response to competition or market conditions;
- Increased expenditures to pursue new product or market opportunities;
- Inability to adjust operating expenses to compensate for shortfalls in revenue against forecast;
- Returns and allowance charges in excess of recorded amounts;
- Demand for products;
- Seasonality;
- General economic trends as they affect retail sales;
- Customers delaying their purchase decisions in anticipation of new versions of products including new operating systems;
- Introduction of new products by us or our competitors and;
- Timing of significant marketing and sales promotions.

Due to the foregoing factors, among others, our revenue and operating results are difficult to forecast. We intend to base our expense levels in significant part on our expectations of future revenue. Our failure to meet revenue expectations would have a material adverse affect on our business, operating results and financial condition. Further, an unanticipated decline in revenue for a particular quarter may disproportionately affect our quarterly operating results because a relatively small amount of our expenses vary with our revenue in the short term. As a result, we believe that period-to-period comparisons of our results of operations are not and will not necessarily be meaningful, and you should not rely upon them as an indication of future performance.

9

12

ScanSoft had net losses for 2000, 1999 and 1998. The Company may never become profitable or sustain profitability.

OUR OPERATING RESULTS COULD BE HARMED BY CURRENCY FLUCTUATIONS. An increasing portion of the Company's business is conducted in currencies other than the U.S. dollar. Changes in the value of major foreign currencies, including the euro, relative to the value of the U.S. dollar could adversely affect future revenue and operating results. Currently, we do not engage in

hedging transactions to reduce our exposure to changes in currency exchange rates, although we may do so in the future.

WE DEPEND ON THE CONTINUED GROWTH OF SCANNER SALES. Because many of our products are bundled with scanners, scanner unit sales directly impact the Company's software revenue growth. A significant reduction in scanner sales may adversely impact the Company's future software revenue opportunity.

OUR REVENUE HAS BEEN DEPENDENT ON DEMAND FOR A FEW PRODUCTS. We have historically had a substantial portion of our revenue generated from a few products. ScanSoft's OmniPage product family represented approximately 41% of revenue, the TextBridge product family represented approximately 20% of revenue, PaperPort represented approximately 8% of revenue and Pagis represented approximately 7% of revenue for the year ended December 31, 2000. The reduction in revenue contribution from any of these products could have a material adverse impact upon our business, results of operations and financial condition.

WE HAVE GROWN AND MAY CONTINUE TO GROW THROUGH ACQUISITIONS, WHICH GIVE RISE TO A NUMBER OF RISKS THAT COULD HAVE ADVERSE CONSEQUENCES FOR OUR FUTURE OPERATING RESULTS. We have made several acquisitions within the last two fiscal years and may complete material acquisitions in the future. Acquisitions involve significant risks including difficulties in the assimilation of the operations, services, technologies and corporate culture of the acquired companies. Furthermore, integrating acquired businesses into our existing business may distract our management focus from other opportunities and challenges. Our past acquisitions have given rise to, and future acquisitions may result in, substantial levels of goodwill and other intangible assets that will be amortized in future years and our future operating results will be adversely affected if we do not achieve benefits from these acquisitions commensurate with these charges. In addition, our recent acquisitions have included substantial write-offs of acquired in-process research and development costs and this also may occur as a result of future acquisitions. We may issue equity for future acquisitions that could be dilutive to our existing stockholders.

WE DEPEND ON CONTINUED DEMAND FOR OUR PRODUCTS FROM ORIGINAL EQUIPMENT MANUFACTURERS. ScanSoft has OEM relationships with a number of companies that provide digital imaging hardware. Our agreements with OEMs do not obligate them to bundle our software and they may choose to bundle software products of our competitors. OEM revenue has historically represented approximately 15-28% of our revenue.

THE DIGITAL IMAGING SOFTWARE MARKET IS HIGHLY COMPETITIVE. We compete in the digital imaging market. The market for these products and services is highly competitive. This competition could adversely affect our operating results by reducing the volume of products we sell or the prices we can charge for our products. Some of our competitors or potential competitors have significantly greater financial, technical and marketing resources than we do. These competitors may be able to respond more rapidly than we can to new or emerging technologies or changes in customer requirements. They may also devote greater resources to the development, promotion and sale of their products than we do.

WE DEPEND ON SALES THROUGH DISTRIBUTION CHANNELS FOR A MAJORITY OF OUR REVENUE. A substantial majority of our revenue is derived from the sale of our software products through a variety of distribution channels, including traditional software distributors, VARs, OEMs, hardware and software superstores, retail dealers, and direct sales. Domestically, our products are sold primarily through distributors, VARs, and OEMs. In particular, one distributor, Ingram Micro, Inc., accounted for 27% of revenues in fiscal year 2000. Our resellers generally offer products of several different companies, including in some cases, products that are competitive with our products. There can be no assurance that our software resellers will continue to purchase our products or provide them with adequate levels of support. In addition, we believe that certain distributors are reducing their inventory in the channel and returning unsold products to better manage their inventories. Distributors are increasingly seeking to return unsold product, particularly when a new version or upgrade of a

product has superseded such products. If our distributors were to seek to return increasing amounts of products, such returns could have a material adverse effect on our revenues and results of operations. The loss of, or a significant reduction in sales volume to, a significant reseller could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

OUR TRADITIONAL DISTRIBUTORS ARE SUBJECT TO ECONOMIC AND COMPETITIVE RISK. Our traditional distributors in the retail channel are experiencing extreme competition both among themselves and from the shift to electronic commerce. Some of these distributors are experiencing disappointing financial results and in some cases have announced employee layoffs. A failure by any one of our distributors could result in:

- Material bad debts;
- Loss of associated sales values;
- Disruption of revenue from the retail channel; and
- Significant costs incurred to reestablish product distribution channels.

OUR FUTURE RESULTS COULD BE HARMED BY ECONOMIC, POLITICAL, REGULATORY AND OTHER RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH INTERNATIONAL SALES AND OPERATIONS. Since we sell our products worldwide, our business is subject to risks associated with doing business internationally. We anticipate that revenue from international operations will represent an increasing portion of our total revenue. In addition, some of our products are manufactured outside the United States. Accordingly, our future results could be harmed by a variety of factors, including:

- changes in foreign currency exchange rates;
- changes in a specific country's or region's political or economic conditions:
- trade protection measures and import or export licensing requirements;
- potentially negative consequences from changes in tax laws;
- difficulty in managing widespread sales and manufacturing operations; and
- less effective protection of intellectual property.

THE PROTECTION OF OUR PROPRIETARY TECHNOLOGY AND INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY IS KEY TO OUR SUCCESS. ScanSoft relies heavily on its proprietary software technology, trade secrets and other intellectual property. Unauthorized parties may attempt to copy aspects of our products or to obtain and use information that we regard as proprietary. Policing unauthorized use of our products is difficult and we may not be able to protect our technology from unauthorized use. Additionally, our competitors may independently develop technologies that are substantially the same or superior to ours. In addition, the laws of some foreign countries do not protect our proprietary rights to the same extent as the laws of the United States. Although the source code for our proprietary software is protected both as a trade secret and as a copyrighted work, litigation may be necessary to enforce our intellectual property rights, to protect our trade secrets, to determine the validity and scope of the proprietary rights of others, or to defend against claims of infringement or invalidity. Litigation, regardless of the outcome, can be very expensive and can divert management efforts.

XEROX'S STOCKHOLDINGS MAY ENABLE IT TO INFLUENCE MATTERS REQUIRING STOCKHOLDER APPROVAL. Xerox currently owns approximately 26% of ScanSoft's outstanding common stock and all of ScanSoft's outstanding nonvoting Series B Preferred Stock. In addition, Xerox has the opportunity to acquire additional shares of ScanSoft common stock pursuant to a warrant. Xerox is currently

ScanSoft's largest stockholder. Although Xerox does not control ScanSoft, it could have a strong influence over matters requiring approval by ScanSoft's stockholders.

OUR EARNINGS AND STOCK PRICE MAY CONTINUE TO BE VOLATILE. Due to the factors noted throughout this section, our earnings and stock price have been and may continue to be subject to significant volatility. There have been previous quarters in which we have experienced shortfalls in revenue and earnings from levels expected by securities analysts and investors, which have had an immediate and significant adverse effect on the trading price of our common stock. This may occur again in the future.

11

14

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

ScanSoft's principal administrative, sales, marketing and support functions are located at its leased headquarters facility in Peabody, Massachusetts. ScanSoft currently occupies 37,636 square feet of space at this facility, and the lease will expire in July 2006. Additionally we have approximately 7,000 square feet of research and development space located in Los Gatos, California. ScanSoft also has multiple offices in Europe, including a research and development center in Budapest, Hungary and sales and marketing offices located in Reading, England; Amsterdam, Holland; Munich, Germany; and Paris, France.

We believe that our existing facilities are adequate for our needs for at least the next twelve months.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, ScanSoft is party to various legal proceedings or claims, either asserted or unasserted, which arise in the ordinary course of business. Management has reviewed pending legal matters and believes that the resolution of such matters will not have a significant adverse effect on ScanSoft's financial condition or results of operations.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.

12

15

PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

MARKET FOR COMMON STOCK

Our common stock commenced trading on the Nasdaq National Market on December 11, 1995 under the symbol "VSNR," and traded under that symbol until March 3, 1999. Our common stock is now traded under the symbol "SSFT." The following table sets forth for the periods indicated the high and low sale prices for our common stock as reported on the Nasdaq National Market.

	HIGH	LOW
FISCAL 1999:		
1st quarter	\$ 2 3/4	\$1 1/32
2nd quarter	\$ 3 1/16	\$1 1/4

3rd quarter	\$	4	1/8	\$2	
4th quarter	\$1	5	3/8	\$1	17/32
FISCAL 2000:					
1st quarter					
2nd quarter					
3rd quarter	\$	2	13/16	\$1	9/32
4th quarter	\$	1	3/4	\$ 1	13/32

HOLDERS OF RECORD

As of March 26, 2001, there were approximately 541 holders of record of our common stock.

DIVIDENDS

To date, we have not paid any cash dividends on shares of our common stock. We presently intend to retain all future earnings for our business and do not anticipate paying cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected consolidated financial data is not necessarily indicative of the results of future operations and should be read in conjunction with "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and our consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this Annual Report and Form 10-K.

Through December 1998, we developed and sold scanner hardware and software products. On January 6, 1999, we sold our hardware business. Accordingly, the results of the hardware business are included in our results of operations through the date of disposal. On March 2, 1999 and March 13, 2000, we completed acquisitions of ScanSoft, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of Xerox, and Caere Corporation, respectively. On June 30, 1999, we acquired certain assets and liabilities of MetaCreations. These acquisitions were accounted for under the purchase method of accounting. Accordingly, the results of operations of ScanSoft, MetaCreations and Caere Corporation are included in our results from operations from the applicable acquisition dates.

13

16

SCANSOFT, INC.

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

	YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,					
	2000	2000 1999		1997	1996	
	(IN	THOUSANDS,	EXCEPT PER	SHARE AMOUN	TS)	
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA: Net revenue	\$ 49,055	\$31,629	\$79,070	\$ 57,623	\$ 56,081	
Costs and expenses: Cost of revenue	14,967 28,205 22,586	6,920	4,408	50,725 8,115 22,428 	10,938	
Total costs and expenses	101,552	35,242	82,928	81,943	82,747	
Loss from operations Other income (expense), net		(3,613) 1,015		(24,320)		

Loss before income taxes Provision for income taxes	(52,779) 472	(2,598) 150	(3,805)	(23,380) 	(24,392)
Net loss	\$ (53,251)	\$(2,748)	\$(3,805)	\$(23,380)	\$ (24,392)
	=======	======	======	======	======
Net loss per share: basic and diluted	\$ (1.26)	\$ (0.11)	\$ (0.19)	\$ (1.20)	\$ (1.34)
	======	======	======	======	======
Weighted average common shares outstanding: basic and diluted	42,107 ======	25,630 =====	19 , 728	19,450 ======	18,255 ======

		D	ECEMBER 31,		
	2000	1999	1998	1997	1996
		(I	N THOUSANDS)	
BALANCE SHEET DATA: Cash, cash equivalents and short-term					
investments	\$ 2,633	\$ 5,224	\$ 8,123	\$14,452	\$31,200
Working capital (deficit)	(6,484)	7,031	6,569	8,389	28,807
Total assets	109,480	29,982	28,445	33,550	51,785
Long-term liabilities	2,172		91	125	
Total stockholders' equity	87,461	21,924	7,582	10,930	33,193

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

THE FOLLOWING DISCUSSION SHOULD BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE NOTES THERETO CONTAINED IN ITEM 8 OF THIS REPORT. THIS ANNUAL REPORT, INCLUDING THE FOLLOWING DISCUSSION, CONTAINS FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995. THESE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS INVOLVE RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES, AND THE CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS SET FORTH BELOW AND THOSE CONTAINED UNDER THE HEADING "RISK FACTORS" IDENTIFY IMPORTANT FACTORS THAT COULD CAUSE ACTUAL RESULTS TO DIFFER MATERIALLY FROM THOSE PREDICTED IN ANY SUCH FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS. SUCH FACTORS INCLUDE, BUT ARE NOT LIMITED TO, INCREASED COMPETITION, ADVERSE CHANGES IN GENERAL ECONOMIC CONDITIONS, INCLUDING ADVERSE CHANGES IN THE SPECIFIC MARKETS FOR OUR PRODUCTS, ADVERSE BUSINESS CONDITIONS, ADVERSE CHANGES IN CUSTOMER ORDER PATTERNS, LACK OF ACCEPTANCE OF NEW PRODUCTS, PRICING PRESSURES, LACK OF SUCCESS IN TECHNOLOGICAL ADVANCEMENTS, RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH FOREIGN OPERATIONS, FAILURE TO REDUCE COSTS OR IMPROVE OPERATING EFFICIENCIES, AND OUR ABILITY TO ATTRACT, HIRE AND RETAIN KEY AND QUALIFIED EMPLOYEES.

14

17

OVERVIEW

ScanSoft, Inc. was incorporated as Visioneer, Inc. in California in March 1992, and through December 1998, developed and sold scanner hardware and software products. During 1997, we implemented a strategy to focus our research and development efforts primarily on software development rather than hardware development and to leverage the engineering resources of our manufacturing partners to design future hardware products. On January 6, 1999, we sold our hardware business and the Visioneer brand name to Primax Electronics, Ltd., and on March 2, 1999, we acquired from Xerox Corporation its wholly-owned subsidiary, ScanSoft, Inc., and changed our name to ScanSoft. As a result of the sale to Primax and the merger with ScanSoft, our business is now focused on software products only.

On March 13, 2000, we merged with Caere Corporation, a California-based digital imaging software company. As a result, Caere became a wholly-owned subsidiary of ScanSoft, continuing under the name Caere Corporation. As more fully discussed below, the Company undertook several restructuring actions to

align the two companies.

Our success in the future will depend on our ability to maintain and improve software gross margins and to increase sales of our software products. This will depend in part on our ability and the ability of our distributors, resellers and OEM partners to convince end-users to adopt paper and image input systems for the desktop and to educate end-users about the benefits of our products. Since the Caere acquisition in the first quarter of 2000, we have experienced quarterly operating losses. There can be no assurance that we will be able to reach quarterly profitability or attain annual profitability in the near future. As of December 31, 2000, we had an accumulated deficit of \$136.4 million.

15

18

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table presents, as a percentage of total revenue, certain selected financial data for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,:

		YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,		
		1999		
Revenue: Software	100.0%	100.0%	16.5% 83.5	
Total revenue. Cost of software revenue. Cost of hardware revenue. Research and development. Selling, general and administrative. Amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets. Restructuring and other charges, net(1).	30.5 57.5 46.0	100.0 24.0 0.0 21.9 45.9 6.1 13.5	100.0 4.9 70.2 5.6 24.2 0.0 0.0	
Total costs and expenses	207.0	111.4	104.9	
Loss from operations	, ,	(11.4)	(4.9) 0.1	
Loss before income taxes	(107.6)	(8.2)	(4.8)	
Net loss	(108.6)%	(8.7)%	, ,	

⁽¹⁾ See Note 12 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 COMPARED TO DECEMBER 31, 1999

Total revenue of \$49.1 million for 2000 increased 55% compared to 1999 of \$31.6 million. The increase in absolute dollars is primarily a result of a broader product line due to the acquisition of Caere on March 13, 2000. During 2000 product sales through direct channels, including the web sites of some of our OEM customers, online stores and our own web store accounted for \$8.8 million, or 18% of our revenue, compared to 17% of revenue in 1999.

During 2000, three customers each represented at least or greater than 10% of our revenue. Ingram Micro, a retail distributor, accounted for 27%; Digital River a on-line distributor, accounted for 11%; and Xerox, an OEM customer, accounted for 11% of our 2000 revenue.

Revenue derived outside of North America, primarily in Europe, was approximately 18% and 13% of total revenue in 2000 and 1999, respectively. International revenue in 2000 of \$9.0 million, increased \$4.8 million from 1999 due primarily to the acquisition of Caere in March 2000. Since 1999 international sales have been denominated primarily in local currencies and these sales are subject to a number of risks inherent in doing business on an international level, such as unexpected fluctuations in currency exchange rates, regulatory requirements, import and export duties and restrictions, and the logistical difficulties of managing multinational operations, any of which could adversely impact the success of our international operations. The growth of our international business will depend, in part, on our ability to increase awareness of our products in international markets. See "Item 1 -- Business -- Marketing, Sales and Distribution."

The introduction of major new software products and enhancements of existing products, as well as potential OEM agreements, are expected to have a significant impact on our quarterly and annual revenue. As is characteristic of the initial stages of personal computer product life cycles, we expect that sales volumes of

16

19

any new software product may increase in the first few months following introduction. Thereafter, revenue may stabilize or decline until the end of a product life cycle, at which time revenue may decline significantly, as a result of unit sales and price reductions. Revenues from sales to distributors and authorized resellers are subject to agreements allowing price protection and certain rights of return. The Company has limited control over the extent to which products sold to distributors and resellers are sold through to end users. Accordingly, a portion of the Company's sales may from time to time result in increased inventory at distributors and resellers. The Company provides sales returns reserves for distributor and reseller inventories. These reserves are based on the Company's estimates of inventory held by its distributors and resellers and the expected sell through of these products by its distributors and resellers. In this regard, receivable allowances including returns reserves and reseller price protection were \$7.4 million and \$3.7 million at December 31, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Due to the inherent uncertainties of product development and new product introductions, we cannot with certainty predict the exact date in which a new product or version will be ready to ship. Any delay in the scheduled release of major new products would have a material adverse impact on our total net revenues and operating results.

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 COMPARED TO DECEMBER 31, 1998

Total revenue of \$31.6 million for 1999 decreased 60% compared to 1998 of \$79.1 million. The decrease is due to the sale of the hardware business on January 6, 1999; the hardware business contributed \$66.0 million, or 83% of total revenue in 1998. Excluding the hardware revenue in 1998, revenue increased 141% or \$18.5 million. This increase is primarily a result of the acquisition of ScanSoft on March 2, 1999. During 1999, product sales through direct channels, including the web sites of some of our OEM customers, online stores and our own web store, accounted for \$5.5 million, or 17% of our revenue.

In 1999, Ingram Micro accounted for 24% of our revenue; Tech Data accounted for 15%; and Xerox accounted for 14%. In 1998 Sam's Club, a warehouse club, and Office Depot, an office superstore, represented 18% and 12%, respectively, of total revenue.

Revenue derived outside of North America, primarily Europe, was 13% and 7% of total revenue in 1999 and 1998, respectively. International revenue in 1999 of \$4.2 million decreased \$1.7 million from 1998 due primarily to the sale of the hardware business in January 1999. The increase in the percent of total revenue from 1998 to 1999 was a result of lower total revenue in 1999.

Prior to 1999, our international sales were denominated primarily in U.S.

COST OF REVENUE

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 COMPARED TO DECEMBER 31, 1999

Cost of software revenue consists primarily of the cost of materials, third party royalties, fulfillment, and salaries for product support personnel. Currently our software products are manufactured by Globalware Solutions, StarTek and DCL, which also package and ship the majority of our products to our customers. See "Item 1 -- Business -- Manufacturing."

Cost of revenue increased to \$12.7 million or 26% of revenue in 2000 compared to \$7.6 million or 24% of revenue in 1999. The increase in absolute dollars and percentage of revenue is primarily attributable to the acquisition of the Caere business in March 2000, which resulted in multiple manufacturing providers which reduced efficiencies and increased costs. By the end of 2000, the Company consolidated its manufacturing providers and therefore expects cost of revenue to decrease in 2001.

The Company anticipates that as a result of the restructuring actions taken during the second quarter of 2000, it will achieve approximately \$1.3 million of annualized cost savings associated with a reduced support organization and consolidation of redundant operating contracts of the two organizations. The Company realized expense reductions of approximately \$1.3 million in the second half of 2000. These cost savings were attributed to the restructuring initiated in the second quarter.

17

2.0

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 COMPARED TO DECEMBER 31, 1998

Cost of revenue decreased to \$7.6 million or 24% of revenue in 1999 compared to \$59.4 million or 75% of revenue in 1998. The decrease in absolute dollars and percentage of revenue is primarily attributable to the sale of the hardware business, which incurred \$55.5 million in cost of revenue in 1998. Excluding the hardware business from 1998 revenue and cost of revenue, cost of revenue for 1998 was \$3.9 million or 30% of revenue. The improvement in cost of revenue from 1998 to 1999, as a percentage of revenue was due to the change in revenue mix away from the retail distribution channel to direct distribution. In addition, the increase in OEM revenue, which carries little or no cost, contributed to the improved cost of revenue.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 COMPARED TO DECEMBER 31, 1999

Research and development expenses consist primarily of salary and benefit costs of engineers. Research and development costs were \$14.9 million or 31% of revenue in 2000, an increase of \$8.0 million from the \$6.9 million or 22% of revenue reported in 1999. The increase in research and development spending is due to the added software engineering headcount from the acquisition of Caere on March 13, 2000, offset by the cost reduction actions in the second half of 2000.

We believe that the development of new products and the enhancement of existing products are essential to our success. Accordingly, we will continue to invest in research and development activities. To date, we have not capitalized any development costs as the cost incurred after technological feasibility but before release of product is not significant.

The Company anticipates that, as a result of the restructuring actions taken during the second quarter 2000, it will achieve approximately \$3.1 million of annualized cost savings, net of incremental head count being added in Budapest, Hungary and Peabody, Massachusetts. For the six-month period ending December 31, 2000, the Company realized approximately \$1.7 million in cost savings. These cost savings were directly related to the restructuring

activities initiated in the second quarter, as well as previously planned headcount reductions that occurred during the second quarter in connection with the acquisition of Caere.

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 COMPARED TO DECEMBER 31, 1998

Research and development expenses were \$6.9 million or 22% of revenue in 1999, an increase of \$2.5 million from the \$4.4 million or 6% of revenue reported in 1998. The increase in research and development spending is due to the added software engineering headcount from the acquisition of ScanSoft on March 2, 1999 being higher than hardware related headcount that transferred to Primax upon the hardware sale.

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 COMPARED TO DECEMBER 31, 1999

Selling expenses include salaries, commissions, advertising, direct mail, public relations, trade shows, travel and other related sales and marketing expenses. General and administrative expenses include personnel costs for administration, finance, human resources, information systems, and general management in addition to legal and accounting expenses and other professional services.

Selling, general and administrative expenses in 2000 were \$28.2 million or 58% of revenue, a increase of \$13.7 million from the \$14.5 million or 46% of revenue reported in 1999. The increase in selling, general, and administrative expenses from 1999 to 2000, is due primarily to the acquisition of Caere on March 13, 2000, offset by cost reduction efforts in the second half of 2000.

We will continue to attempt to control selling, general and administrative expenses. However, if revenue continues to grow, in order to support our growing operations, selling, general and administrative expenses may

18

21

increase in absolute terms. Such expenses may fluctuate from quarter to quarter depending on a variety of factors, including the timing of the introduction of new products, expansion of our distribution channels, general advertising not related to product introductions and expansion into international markets.

The Company anticipates that as a result of the restructuring actions taken during the second quarter 2000, it will achieve approximately \$5.3 million of annualized cost savings, net of incremental head count being added in Budapest Hungary and Peabody Massachusetts. For the six-month period ending December 31, 2000, the Company realized approximately \$3.8 million reduction in selling, general and administrative expense. This reduction was from the restructuring initiated in the second quarter, tighter expense control and the previously planned headcount reductions that occurred during the second quarter in connection with the acquisition of Caere. Additionally, the Company anticipates annual facility related savings of approximately \$1.0 million starting in the first quarter of 2001 as a result of amending the lease for its Los Gatos office space reducing the space from 33,000 square feet to 7,000 square feet.

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 COMPARED TO DECEMBER 31, 1998

Selling, general and administrative expenses in 1999 were \$14.5 million or 46% of revenue, a decrease of \$4.7 million from the \$19.2 million or 24% of revenue reported in 1998. The decrease in absolute dollars for selling, general, and administrative expenses from 1998 to 1999, is due primarily from lower administrative expenses from the transition of the hardware and software business to a "software only" business and include lower compensation costs, depreciation and other operational expenses. This transition occurred when the hardware business was sold on January 6, 1999, and ScanSoft was acquired on March 2, 1999.

AMORTIZATION OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND ACQUIRED IN-PROCESS RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Amortization of intangible assets of \$22.6 million for 2000 reflects the amortization of intangible assets from the Caere acquisition, the ScanSoft acquisition and the acquisition of assets from MetaCreations. The useful lives of the intangible assets used for amortization range from three to seven years.

During the fourth quarter of 2000, based on the financial results of the MetaCreations products, the Company reviewed the estimated future lives of the MetaCreations intangible assets. As a result of this review, the Company has reduced the future amortization period of these intangible assets with remaining lives greater than three years at December 31, 2000, to three years. This change will result in increased amortization of \$248,000 per year.

Goodwill and other intangible assets, represent assets acquired in connection with business acquisitions accounted for under the purchase method of accounting. Goodwill represents the amount by which the cost of acquired net assets exceeded the fair values of those net assets on the date of purchase. Acquired in-process research and development represented development projects that had not yet reached technological feasibility and had no alternative future use. Accordingly, in connection with the Caere acquisition, \$18.3 million was immediately charged to expense in the consolidated statements of operations upon consummation of the Caere acquisition.

The amounts allocated to identifiable tangible and intangible assets associated with the acquisitions, including acquired in-process research and development, were based on the results of an independent appraisal. The values of core technology, developed technology and acquired in-process technology acquired as part of the Caere acquisition were determined by a risk adjusted, discounted cash flow approach. The value of in-process research and development, specifically, was determined by estimating the costs to develop the in-process projects into commercially viable products, estimating the resulting net cash flows from such projects, discounting net cash flows back to their present values, and adjusting those results to reflect the projects stages of completion at the acquisition date. These include projects (primarily major version upgrades) in each of Caere's major products, including OmniPage, OmniForm, and PageKeeper. The discount rates used were 14% for developed technology, 19% for core technology and 24% for in-process technology. This discount rate takes

19

22

into consideration the inherent uncertainties surrounding the successful development of in-process research and development, the profitability levels of such technology and the uncertainty of technological advances, which could impact the estimates described above.

The average percentage of completion of the projects ranged from 50% to 67% at the date of the acquisition. Revenues were projected to be generated late in fiscal 2000 for each of the product versions in development at the acquisition date. As of December 31, 2000, the Company revised these projections and expects revenues from these projects to be generated beginning in the second quarter of 2001. If these projects are not successfully developed, future revenue and profitability of ScanSoft may be adversely affected.

As a result of the second quarter 2000 restructuring actions described below, certain intangible assets associated with the Caere acquisition were impaired. Accordingly, the Company wrote-off \$3,490,000 of net intangible assets including the acquired workforce amounting to \$1,074,000 and a favorable building lease amounting to \$2,416,000. As a result of these write-offs, the Company's recurring amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets has been reduced to \$6.8 million per quarter.

The in-process research and development charge of \$3,944,000 for 1999, reflects that portion of the purchase price of ScanSoft representing acquired in-process technology that had not yet reached technological feasibility and had

no alternative future use. Accordingly, this amount was immediately charged to expense in the consolidated statements of income upon consummation of the acquisition. The values of the core technology and acquired in-process technology was determined by a risk adjusted, discounted cash flow approach. The value of in-process research and development, specifically, was determined by estimating the costs to develop the in-process projects into commercially viable products, estimating the resulting net cash flows from the sale of such products, discounting net cash flows back to their present values, and adjusting those results to reflect the projects' stages of completion at the acquisition date. These projects include projects (primarily major version releases) in each of ScanSoft's major products, including ScanWorks, Pagis, TextBridge and API. The discount rate used for the core technology and in-process technology was 20% and 25% respectively. This discount rate takes into consideration the Company's weighted average cost of capital adjusted for the inherent uncertainties surrounding the successful development of the in-process research and development, the profitability levels of such technology and the uncertainty of technological advances, which could potentially impacted the estimates described above. The percentage of completion of the projects ranged from 73% to 95% at the date of acquisition. All of the projects were successfully completed in 1999.

RESTRUCTURING AND OTHER CHARGES

In connection with the acquisition of Caere in the first quarter of 2000, the Company identified approximately 46 employees of Caere whose positions were eliminated upon consummation of the acquisition. These positions included 22 in research and development, 14 in general and administrative functions, and 10 in sales and marketing. Additionally, the Caere president and CEO position was eliminated. As a result, the Company established, as part of the purchase price allocation, a restructuring reserve in the amount of \$487,000, for severance payments to employees, and a restructuring reserve of \$1,065,000 for the former Caere president and CEO, whose severance and benefits will continue over the next 4 years.

The Company was obligated to pay retention bonuses amounting to approximately \$797,000 relating to key employees who were used in the integration of the companies. These retention bonuses were expensed as incurred and were not included in the purchase price of the acquisition. As of December 31, 2000, the Company had paid all of these bonuses.

In June 2000, the Company implimented a restructuring plan to strategically refocus the Company and bring operating expenses in line with net revenues. The process included a review of all potentially redundant functions and facilities. As part of this process, the Company determined it would be more cost effective to eliminate duplicative activities being performed in Los Gatos, California through relocating certain efforts to Peabody, Massachusetts and Budapest, Hungary. These activities consisted primarily of research and development, marketing, customer support and general and administrative functions. As a result, the Company eliminated 65 employee positions including 29 in research and development, 13 in general and

20

23

administrative functions and 23 in support and marketing. The Company recorded a restructuring charge in the amount of \$1,069,000 for severance payments to these employees and a restructuring charge of \$397,000 for certain termination fees as a result of exiting the Los Gatos facility. Additionally, the Company wrote-off \$3,490,000 of net intangible assets acquired as part of the Caere acquisition, including the acquired work force amounting to \$1,074,000 and the favorable building lease amounting to \$2,416,000, which were impaired as a result of the restructuring. At the time of the restructuring, management expected these restructuring actions to reduce operating expenses by approximately \$10 million on an annualized basis.

The Company was obligated to pay retention bonuses amounting to approximately \$212,000 for key employees who were used in the restructuring of

the Company. These amounts were charged to expense as incurred and were not included in the restructuring charge. As of December 31, 2000, the Company had paid all of these bonuses.

During the fourth quarter of 2000, the Company incurred an additional \$276,000 of facility related exit costs related to leasehold improvements on the Los Gatos facility in space vacated by the Company. Additionally, during the fourth quarter the Company reversed \$420,000 of restructuring accruals taken in June 2000. Facility related contracts accounted for \$347,000 of the total. The remaining \$73,000 relate to severance accruals for employees who left the Company prior to being eligible to receive severance benefits.

For the year ended December 31, 2000, the Company paid \$1,120,000 in severance payments related to the restructuring actions. The remaining severance balance of \$1,428,000 will be paid over the next four years as it primarily relates to severance for the former Caere President and CEO.

Restructuring charges of \$346,000 in the first nine months of 1999 relate to the acquisition of ScanSoft, and the subsequent consolidation of research and development operations and the move of the Company's headquarters to Massachusetts, which resulted in the termination of 10 employees in California. The major components of these costs were approximately \$188,000 in severance costs for the 10 employees and approximately \$46,000 for disposed West Coast equipment. Also included was \$82,000 in non-refundable commitments associated with the West Coast development team, as well as \$30,000 in other exit costs. All such costs were paid in 1999.

GAIN ON SALE OF THE HARDWARE BUSINESS

In the quarter ended March 31, 1999, the Company sold its hardware business to Primax Electronics, Ltd., for approximately \$6.8 million and reported an operating gain of approximately \$882,000.

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)

Other income (expense), net consists primarily of interest earned on cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments offset by interest incurred for borrowings under credit facilities and short-term notes, and exchange gains and losses.

Interest income consists primarily of interest earned on cash equivalents and short-term investments. Interest income was \$112,000, \$181,000, and \$507,000 for 2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively. The decrease in interest income from 1999 to 2000, and 1998 to 1999, was a result of significantly lower cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments, which were used primarily to fund our operating losses. Interest expense consists of interest incurred for borrowings under credit facilities and short-term notes. Interest expense was \$620,000, \$56,000, and \$454,000 for 2000, 1999, and 1998, respectively. The increase in interest expense from 1999 to 2000 resulted from increased bank borrowings under the bank credit facility. The decrease in interest expense from 1998 to 1999 resulted from the payoff of bank borrowings in connection with the sale of the hardware business in January 1999. Other income in 2000 consists primarily of foreign exchange gains and losses realized upon foreign exchange transactions being settled.

21

24

INCOME TAXES

At December 31, 2000 and 1999, we had federal net operating loss carryforwards of approximately \$105 million and \$60 million, respectively, of which approximately \$2.8 million and \$1.3 million, respectively, related to tax deductions from stock compensation. The tax benefit related to the stock compensation benefit, when realized, will be accounted for as an addition to paid in capital rather than as a reduction of the provision for income tax. Research and development credit carryforwards as of December 31, 2000 and 1999

were \$2.2 million for both years. The net operating loss and credit carryforwards will expire at various dates beginning in 2007, if not utilized. Utilization of the net operating losses and credits may be subject to a substantial annual limitation due to the ownership change limitations provided by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and similar state provisions. The annual limitation may result in the expiration of net operating losses and credits before utilization. As a result of the new stock issued in conjunction with the acquisition of Caere and the merger with ScanSoft, we are not certain whether we will be able to utilize our net operating loss and credit carryforwards without limitations. (See Note 10 of Notes to Financial Statements).

Tax provisions of \$472,000 and \$150,000 for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999, respectively, represent taxes for foreign and state jurisdictions in which the Company does business and for which no net operating loss carryforwards were available.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As of December 31, 2000, we had cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments of \$2.6 million and negative working capital of \$6.5 million, as compared to \$5.2 million in cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments and \$7.0 million of working capital at December 31, 1999.

We used \$5.5 million of cash for our operating activities for 2000, as compared to \$2.5 million for 1999 and \$9.5 million for 1998. Negative cash flows from operating activities for these periods were attributed primarily to increased net losses incurred in 2000 as compared to 1999 excluding, non-cash charges, offset by reductions in accounts receivable and other changes in working capital.

Cash provided from investing activities during 2000 of \$0.4 million resulted primarily from cash received from the Caere acquisition offset by the acquisition of capital equipment in the normal course of operations. Capital expenditures of \$1.0 million in 2000 consisted primarily of computers, business software and computer network equipment. Cash provided from investing activities during 1999 of \$6.4 million resulted primarily from proceeds of \$6.8 million generated from the sale of the hardware business in January 1999. Capital expenditures of \$0.8 million in 1999 consisted primarily of computers, business software and computer network equipment.

Cash provided from financing activities during 2000 was \$2.6 million. This was attributable to proceeds from bank borrowings of \$3.4 million and \$0.8 million of stock option exercise proceeds, offset by a payment of \$1.6 million for the note issued in connection with the MetaCreations acquisition. Cash used from financing activities during 1999 was \$6.4 million, attributable primarily to the \$6.0 million payment of bank borrowings under the bank credit facility, and the repurchase of common stock for \$0.7 million, offset by \$0.3 million of stock option proceeds.

Our principal sources of liquidity as of December 31, 2000 consisted of approximately \$2.6 million of cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments. We have a credit facility, as amended, for up to \$5.0 million, subject to various borrowing constraints, which has been utilized. Pursuant to the credit facility, the Company is required to maintain certain financial and non-financial covenants, as defined, including certain earnings levels, liquidity ratios, and restrictions on dividends and capital expenditures. Borrowings under the facility are collateralized by substantially all of the Company's assets. On October 18, 2000, the Company amended the credit agreement to waive all financial covenants until December 29, 2000. In conjunction with this amendment the interest rate was increased by one percent (1.0%) to two percent (2.0%) per annum above the Prime Rate (11.5% at December 31, 2000), and the Company agreed not to re-borrow amounts that had been repaid. As a result, the credit facility has been fully utilized as of December 31, 2000. Additionally, the maturity date of the line of credit was extended from March 12, 2001, to September 30,

2001, and a payment schedule was agreed to. On December 28, 2000, the credit facility was further amended to establish financial covenants for the quarter ending December 31, 2000 and the first three quarters of 2001. As of December 31, 2000, the Company was in compliance with all covenants under the amended credit facility.

In connection with the Caere acquisition, the Company entered into a non-competition and consulting agreement with the former Caere CEO. Under the terms of the agreement the Company is obligated to pay the former CEO an amount in cash of up to \$4.1 million on the second anniversary of the acquisition date, March 13, 2002, if the Company's stock price does not achieve a certain level during the two year period (See Note 11).

The Company has sustained recurring losses and negative cash flows from operations and has working capital and accumulated deficits at December 31, 2000. Additionally, the Company has short-term borrowings that are due in full on September 30, 2001, with scheduled payments during each of the first three quarters of 2001. Currently, the Company does not have any borrowing availability under its line of credit. Management believes that the actions taken in fiscal 2000, including restructuring actions and other cost reduction initiatives, have reduced operating expenses to levels which, in combination with expected future revenues, will result in positive cash flow. Therefore, management believes that cash flows from future operations in addition to cash on hand will be sufficient to meet the Company's obligations as they become due for the foreseeable future. Management also believes that, should revenue not achieve the expected levels in 2001, it has the ability, and is committed, to reduce expenses further in order to continue to meet its obligations. Management is pursuing various actions in 2001, including potential equity financing and strategic alliances that may also provide additional liquidity. There can be no assurance that the Company will meet its planned operations, or will be able to reduce expenses quickly enough, or will be successful in obtaining equity financing or strategic alliances on terms favorable to the Company such that the Company will be able to meet its obligations as they become due in the foreseeable future.

FOREIGN OPERATIONS

As a result of the Caere acquisition, in March 2000, the Company significantly increased its presence in Europe. The Company conducts certain business transactions in the euro, and will change its functional currencies for the affected countries to the euro by the end of the three-year transition period. The conversion to the euro has not and is not expected to have a significant operational impact or a material financial impact on the results of operations, financial position, or the liquidity of the Company's European businesses. Changes in the value of the euro or other foreign currencies relative to the value of the U.S. dollar could adversely affect future revenues and operating results. Currently, the Company does not hedge any of its foreign-currency denominated transactions.

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133 (SFAS 133), "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities". SFAS 133 requires that all derivatives be recognized at fair value in the statement of financial position, and that corresponding gains or losses be reported either in the statement of operations or as a component of comprehensive income, depending on the type of hedging relationship that exists. In June 1999, SFAS 137, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities-Deferral of the Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 133 -- an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133" was issued. In June 2000, SFAS 138, "Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities -- an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133" was issued. SFAS 138 does not amend any of the fundamental concepts of Statement No. 133, but does address a limited number of issues causing implementation difficulties for entities that apply SFAS 133. SFAS 133, as amended by SFAS 137 and SFAS 138, remains effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2000. Because the Company does not currently hold any derivative instruments and does not

currently engage in hedging activities, it expects the adoption of FAS 133 will not have a material impact on its financial position or results of operations.

23

26

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We develop our products in the United States and Hungary. We sell our products globally, primarily through an indirect reseller channel. As a result, our financial results are affected by factors such as changes in foreign currency exchange rates and weak economic conditions in foreign markets.

We collect a portion of our revenue and pay a portion of our operating expenses in foreign currencies. As a result, changes in currency exchange rates from time to time may affect our operating results. Currently, we do not engage in hedging transactions to reduce our exposure to changes in currency exchange rates, although we may do so in the future.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

24

27

SCANSOFT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25

28

SCANSOFT, INC.

INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

	PAGE
Report of Independent Accountants	27 28 29
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements	30-31 32 33-51
Financial Statement Schedule: Report of Independent Accountants on Financial Statement Schedule	52
Reserves	53

26

29

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of ScanSoft, Inc:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the

related consolidated statements of operations, of stockholders' equity and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of ScanSoft, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2000 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Boston, Massachusetts February 9, 2001

27

30

SCANSOFT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE AND PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

	DECEMBER 31,			- /																												
		2000																														
ASSETS Current assets:																																
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	2,571 62	\$	5 , 162																												
\$3,690 Inventory Prepaid expenses and other current assets		8,314 806 1,610		7,713 780 1,372																												
Total current assets		13,363		15,089																												
Goodwill and other intangible assets, net		2,954 1,112		12,987 1,546 360																												
Total assets	\$	109,480	\$	29,982																												
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY Current liabilities:																																
Short-term bank borrowings. Note payable. Accounts payable. Accrued sales and marketing incentives. Other accrued expenses. Deferred revenue.	\$	3,400 7,945 1,880 5,538 1,084	·	1,600 2,226 1,425 1,843 964																												
Total current liabilities		19,847		8,058																												
Deferred revenue long-term		2,172																														

Total Liabilities	22,019	8,058
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 7 and 11)		
Stockholders' equity:		
Preferred stock, \$0.001 par value; 40,000,000 shares authorized; 3,562,238 shares issued and outstanding	4 604	4 604
(liquidation preference \$4,631)	4,631	4,631
authorized; 46,072,748 and 26,690,027 shares issued and		
outstanding, respectively	46	27
Additional paid-in capital	219,259	100,397
Accumulated other comprehensive loss	(93)	
Accumulated deficit	(136,382)	(83,131)
Total stockholders' equity	87,461	21,924
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity	\$ 109,480	\$ 29,982
		=======

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

28

31

SCANSOFT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

	YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,		
	2000	1999	1998
REVENUE SoftwareHardware	\$ 49,055	\$31 , 629	\$13,055 66,015
Total net revenue	49,055	31,629	79 , 070
COSTS AND EXPENSES Cost of software revenue. Cost of hardware revenue. Research and development. Selling, general and administrative. Amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets. Restructuring and other charges, net. Acquired in-process research and development.	12,692 14,967 28,205 22,586 4,811 18,291	7,602 6,920 14,509 1,921 346 3,944	3,896 55,474 4,408 19,150
Total costs and expenses		35,242	82,928
Loss from operations. Other income (expense) Interest income. Interest expense. Other income. Gain on sale of hardware business.		(3,613) 181 (56) 8	(3,858) 507 (454)
Loss before income taxes Provision for income taxes	(52,779) 472	(2,598) 150	(3,805)
Net loss	\$ (53,251) =======	\$ (2,748) ======	\$ (3,805) ======
Net loss per share: basic and diluted	\$ (1.26)	\$ (0.11)	\$ (0.19) ======
Weighted average common shares outstanding: basic and diluted	42,107	25,630 =====	19,728

32

SCANSOFT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE AMOUNTS)

	PREFERRED STOCK		PREFERRED STOCK COMMON STOCK		ADDITIONA	DEFERRED COMPENSATION AND NOTES FROM L RECEIVABLES FROM
		AMOUNT	SHARE	S AMO	UNT PAID-IN CAP	ITAL STOCKHOLDERS
Balance at December 31, 1997 Compensation expense related to stock			19,563,	854 \$2	0 \$ 87,682	\$(194)
options Issuance of common stock under employee stock compensation						100
plans Repayment of notes receivable from			289,	098	126	
stockholders					187	
Balance at December 31, 1998 Issuance of common stock under employee stock compensation			19,852,		0 87,995	
plans			412,	823	276	50
options Issuance of preferred stock, common stock and common stock options in connection with ScanSoft						50
acquisitionCommon stock repurchased and	3,562,238	4,631	6,755,	992	7 12,810	
retired			(331,		(684	
Balance at December 31, 1999			26,690,			
	ACCUMULATE OTHER COMPREHENSIV LOSS	VE ACC	UMULATED EFICIT	TOTAL	COMPREHENSIVE LOSS	
Balance at December 31, 1997 Compensation expense related to stock	\$	\$ (76,578)	\$10,930		
options Issuance of common stock under employee stock compensation				100		
plans				126		
Repayment of notes receivable from stockholders			(3,805)	231 (3,805	\$ (3,805)	
Balance at December 31, 1998 Issuance of common stock under employee stock compensation			80,383)	7,582		
plans				276		
options Issuance of preferred stock, common stock and common stock options in connection with ScanSoft				50		
acquisitionCommon stock repurchased and				17,448		
retired			(2,748)	(684	\$ (2,748)	
Balance at December 31, 1999	\$		83,131)	\$21,924		

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

30

	PREFERRED STOCK		COMMON STOCK			DEFERRED COMPENSATION AND NOTES FROM RECEIVABLES	ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
	SHARES	AMOUNT	SHARES	AMOUNT	ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL	FROM STOCKHOLDERS	LOSS
Issuance of common stock under employee stock compensation plans Issuance of common stock and common stock options in			354,203		815		
connection with Caere merger			19,028,518	19	118,047		(93)
Comprehensive loss							
Balance at December 31, 2000	3,562,238	\$4,631	46,072,748	\$46 ===	\$219,259 ======	\$	\$(93) ====
	ACCUMULATED DEFICIT	TOT	AL I	REHENSIVE JOSS			
Issuance of common stock under employee stock compensation plans Issuance of common stock and common stock options in connection with Caere			815				
merger		118	,066				
Comprehensive loss Net loss Foreign currency	(53,251)	(53	,251) \$ (5	3,251)			
translation adjustment			(93)	(93)			
Comprehensive loss			\$ (5	53,344)			
Balance at December 31, 2000	\$(136,382)		,461	==			

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

31

34

SCANSOFT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (IN THOUSANDS)

	YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,			
	2000	1999	1998	
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Net loss	\$(53,251)	\$(2,748)	\$(3,805)	
Depreciation and amortization	2,091 (2,904)	240 2,100	1,720 (1,144)	
development	18,291 22,586	3,944 1,921		
Provision for impairment of intangible assets Non-cash portion of restructuring charge Net gain on sale of hardware business	3,490 272	 (882)	 	
Other		52	144	
Accounts receivable	3,740	(7,291)	(73)	

Inventory. Prepaid expenses and other current assets. Other assets. Accounts payable. Accrued sales and marketing incentives. Other accrued expenses. Deferred revenue.	455	(248) (540) (122) 1,463 260 (768) 121	(1,699) 130 147 (1,784) (295) (2,857)
Net cash used in operating activities			(9,516)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES Cash of businesses acquired, net of cash paid. Capital expenditures for property and equipment. Proceeds from sale of hardware business. Net sales of short-term investments. Transfer from (to) restricted cash. Other investment.	1,419 (1,048) 	211 (840) 6,788 140 262 (150)	(305) 2,827 (200)
Net cash provided by investing activities	371	6,411	2,322
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Short-term bank borrowings, net	3,400 (1,600) 815	(6,000) (684) 274	3,179
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities			
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents		 (2,497) 7,659	(3,702) 11,361
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year	\$ 2,571 ======	•	\$ 7,659 =====
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION Cash paid during the year for interest	\$ 635	\$	\$ 444

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

32

35

SCANSOFT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. ORGANIZATION AND PRESENTATION

ScanSoft, Inc. (the "Company") was incorporated as Visioneer, Inc. in the State of California on March 10, 1992 and was reincorporated in the state of Delaware on December 5, 1995. The Company develops and markets software for scanning, editing and communicating paper documents and photos for sale primarily through retail distributors or directly to retailers on a worldwide basis. Through December 31, 1998, the Company was also a scanner hardware company and derived a majority of its revenues from the sale of scanners.

In December 1998, the Company negotiated an agreement with Primax Electronics, Ltd. ("Primax") to sell the hardware business of the Company, which was completed on January 6, 1999. (See Note 14). As part of the sale to Primax, the name "Visioneer" was also sold and the Company's employees associated with the hardware business became employees of Primax.

On March 2, 1999, the Company completed its acquisition of the business of ScanSoft, Inc. ("ScanSoft"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Xerox Corporation ("Xerox") (See Note 11). In connection with this acquisition, the Company changed its name to ScanSoft, Inc. As described in Note 11, on March 13, 2000, the Company merged with Caere Corporation ("Caere"), a California-based digital imaging software company. The acquisitions of ScanSoft and Caere were accounted for under the purchase method of accounting and, accordingly, the results of operations of ScanSoft and Caere have been included in the Company's

financial statements as of the acquisition dates.

Effective beginning in fiscal 1999, the Company changed its year-end to December 31. Prior to 1999, the Company's fiscal year ended on the Sunday closest to December 31. Accordingly, fiscal 1998 ended January 3, 1999 and contained 53 weeks. The Company's quarterly periods also now end on the last day of the calendar quarter. Prior to 1999, the Company reported quarterly results generally on thirteen-week quarterly periods, each ending on the Sunday closest to month-end. For purposes of presentation within these financial statements, the Company has indicated its accounting year as ending on December 31 or the interim quarterly periods as ending on the respective calendar month-end.

The Company has sustained recurring losses and negative cash flows from operations and has working capital and accumulated deficits at December 31, 2000. Additionally, the Company has short-term borrowings that are due in full on September 30, 2001, with scheduled payments during each of the first three quarters of 2001. Currently, the Company does not have any borrowing availability under its line of credit. Management believes that the actions taken in fiscal 2000, including restructuring actions and other cost reduction initiatives, have reduced operating expenses to levels which, in combination with expected future revenues, will result in positive cash flow. Therefore, management believes that cash flows from future operations in addition to cash on hand will be sufficient to meet the Company's obligations as they become due for the foreseeable future. Management also believes that, should revenue not achieve the expected levels in 2001, it has the ability, and is committed, to reduce expenses further in order to continue to meet its obligations. Management is pursuing various actions in 2001, including potential equity financing and strategic alliances that may also provide additional liquidity. There can be no assurance that the Company will meet its planned operations, or will be able to reduce expenses quickly enough, or will be successful in obtaining equity financing or strategic alliances on terms favorable to the Company such that the Company will be able to meet its obligations as they become due in the foreseeable future.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities on the dates of the financial statements and the

33

36

SCANSOFT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- (CONTINUED)

reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting periods. The most significant estimates included in the financial statements are accounts receivable and sales allowances, inventory valuation, and the recoverability of intangible assets including goodwill. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. Intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated.

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency of the Company's foreign subsidiaries is the local currency. Assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated into U.S. dollars at exchange rates in effect

at the balance sheet date. Revenue and expense items are translated using the average exchange rates for the period. Net unrealized gains and losses resulting from foreign currency translation are included in other comprehensive loss, which is a separate component of stockholders' equity. Foreign currency transaction gains and losses are included in results of operations.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from software product sales to customers is generally recognized when the product is delivered, provided that no significant obligations remain, evidence of an arrangement exists, the fee is fixed or determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured. Revenues from sales to distributors and authorized resellers are subject to agreements allowing price protection and certain rights of return. Accordingly, reserves for estimated future returns, exchanges and credits for price protection are provided for upon shipment of the related product. The Company has limited control over the extent to which products sold to distributors and resellers are sold through to end-users. Accordingly, a portion of the Company's sales may from time to time result in increased inventory at its distributors and resellers. The Company provides sales returns reserves for distributor and reseller inventories. These reserves are recorded as reductions of revenue and are based on the Company's estimates of inventory held by its distributors and resellers and the expected sell through of these products by them. Actual results could differ from these estimates. During the fourth quarter of 2000, the Company recorded an adjustment to increase its reserve for returns by approximately \$1.3 million.

The Company also enters into royalty-bearing agreements with original equipment manufacturers ("OEMs") and performs software development services pursuant to certain license agreements. The Company earns royalties pursuant to certain license agreements based on sales of the Company's products by OEMs to third parties. Royalty revenue is recognized upon delivery of product by the OEM to third parties when such information is available to the Company, or when notified by the OEM that royalties are due as a result of such sale, provided that collectibility is reasonably assured. Revenue from software development services and related license fees are recognized using the percentage of completion method, and losses on such contracts, if any, are recognized when identified. Payments received from customers prior to revenue recognition are reported as deferred revenue. Revenue from hardware product sales to customers (occurring prior to 1999) was generally recognized when the product was shipped, provided no significant obligations remained and collectibility was probable.

Cash Equivalents and Short-Term Investments

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid instruments with original maturities of 90 days or less. The Company has classified all its securities as "available for sale". The Company invests primarily in commercial paper with maturities less than one year. At December 31, 2000 and 1999, the fair market value of these securities approximated cost.

3./

37

SCANSOFT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- (CONTINUED)

 ${\tt Inventory}$

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost (determined on a first-in, first-out basis) or market value.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost and are depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the term of the related lease or the useful life, if shorter. The cost and related accumulated depreciation of sold or retired assets are removed from the accounts and any gain or loss is included in

operations. Repairs and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets result from business acquisitions that, were accounted for under the purchase method of accounting and consist of the values of identifiable intangible assets including core technology, trademarks, OEM relationships, work force and registered users base, as well as goodwill. Goodwill is the amount by which the cost of acquired net assets exceeded the fair values of those net assets on the purchase date. Intangible assets are reported at cost, net of accumulated amortization. Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of three to seven years. The Company evaluates its intangible assets when events and circumstances indicate a potential impairment. Recoverability of these assets is assessed based on undiscounted expected cash flows from these assets, considering a number of factors, including past operating results, budgets and economic projections, market trends and product development cycles. An impairment in the carrying value of each asset is assessed when the undiscounted expected cash flows derived from the asset are less than its carrying value (see Note 11).

Research and Development Costs

Costs incurred in the research and development of new software products and enhancements to existing products, other than certain software development costs that qualify for capitalization, are expensed as incurred. Software development costs incurred subsequent to the establishment of technological feasibility, but prior to the general release of the product, are capitalized and amortized to cost of software revenue over the estimated useful life of the related products. In the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998, costs eligible for capitalization were not material.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect in the years in which the differences are expected to reverse. A valuation allowance against deferred tax assets is recorded if, based on the weight of available evidence, it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The Company does not provide for U.S. income taxes on the undistributed earnings of its foreign subsidiaries, which the Company considers to be permanent investments.

Comprehensive Loss

Comprehensive loss consists of net loss and other comprehensive loss, which includes foreign currency translation adjustments and unrealized gains and losses on certain investments. For the purposes of comprehensive loss disclosures, the Company does not record tax provisions or benefits for the net changes in the foreign currency translation adjustment, as the Company intends to permanently reinvest undistributed earnings in its foreign subsidiaries.

35

38

SCANSOFT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- (CONTINUED)

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash equivalents, short-term investments and trade accounts receivable. The Company places its cash and cash equivalents with financial institutions with high credit ratings. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers' financial condition and does not require collateral, since management does not anticipate nonperformance of payment. The Company also maintains reserves for potential

credit losses and such losses have been within management's expectations. At December 31, 2000 and 1999, the Company's top two customers in aggregate accounted for 50% and 75%, respectively, of accounts receivable.

Fair Value Disclosures of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments including cash equivalents, short-term investments, accounts receivables, short-term bank borrowings and accounts payable are carried in the financial statements at amounts that approximate their fair value as of December 31, 2000 and 1999.

Net Loss Per Share

Basic loss per share is based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding, and diluted loss per share is based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding and dilutive potential common shares outstanding. There is no difference between basic and diluted net loss per share for all periods presented since potential common shares from the exercise of stock options and warrants and conversion of Series B Preferred Stock were anti-dilutive for all periods presented and, accordingly, such options, warrants and preferred stock were excluded from the calculation of diluted net loss per share.

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based awards to employees using the intrinsic value method as prescribed in Accounting Principles Board ("APB") Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees" and related interpretations. The Company follows the disclosure provisions of Statement of Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation" (see Note 6). All stock-based awards to non-employees are accounted for at their fair value in accordance with SFAS No. 123 and related interpretations.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133 ("SFAS 133"), "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities". SFAS 133 requires that all derivatives be recognized at fair value in the statement of financial position, and that corresponding gains or losses be reported either in the statement of operations or as a component of comprehensive income, depending on the type of hedging relationship that exists. In June 1999, SFAS 137, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities -- Deferral of the Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 133 -- an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133" was issued. In June 2000, SFAS 138, "Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities -- an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133" was issued. SFAS 138 does not amend any of the fundamental concepts of Statement 133, but does address a limited number of issues causing implementation difficulties for entities that apply SFAS 133. SFAS 133, as amended by SFAS 137 and SFAS 138, remains effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2000. Because the Company does not currently hold any derivative instruments and does not currently engage in hedging activities, it expects the adoption of FAS 133 will not have a material impact on its financial position or results of operations.

36

39

SCANSOFT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- (CONTINUED)

Reclassifications

Certain prior year financial statement amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current year presentation.

3. BALANCE SHEET COMPONENTS

	DECEMBER 31,											
	2	2000		2000		2000		2000		2000		
Inventory Raw materials Work-in-process Finished goods	\$	324 482	\$	524 256								
	\$	806	\$	780								
Goodwill and other intangible assets Goodwill Core technology. Developed technology. Trademarks and patents. Non-competition agreement. Acquired favorable lease. OEM relationships. Assembled workforce. Other.	2 1 11 (2 \$ 9	0,447 8,586 6,340 4,383 4,048 553 1,100 923 200 6,580 4,529) 2,051	14 (1	2,401 								
Other accrued expenses Accrued compensation	 \$	1,188 1,428 650 638 1,634 5,538	\$ 1	721 200 922 ,843								

37

40

SCANSOFT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- (CONTINUED)

	HOPEHI I TEE	DECEMB	ER 31,
	USEFUL LIFE (IN YEARS)	2000	1999
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT Computers, software and equipment Leasehold improvements Furniture and fixtures Construction in process	3 2-4 3	\$ 5,391 505 534 	\$ 2,897 299 127 295
Accumulated depreciation and amortization		6,430 (3,476) \$ 2,954	3,618 (2,072) \$ 1,546

Depreciation and amortization expense, associated with property and equipment, for the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998 was \$2,091,000,\$240,000 and \$1,720,000, respectively.

4. BANK LINE OF CREDIT

On March 14, 2000, the Company entered into a one year Credit Agreement (the "Agreement") with its primary financial institution for a \$10,000,000 revolving loan (the "Credit Facility"). Borrowings under the Credit Facility bear interest at the prime rate plus one percent (10.5% at December 31, 2000). The maximum aggregate amount of borrowings outstanding at any one time was limited to the lesser of (a) \$10,000,000 or (b) the Borrowing Base. The Borrowing Base was equal to fifty percent (50%) of eligible accounts receivables. As of June 12, 2000, the Agreement was amended to modify the total commitment by the bank from \$10,000,000 to \$5,000,000 and the Borrowing Base requirement was removed. As described below, at December 31, 2000, the Credit Facility was limited to the amount outstanding at December 31, 2000, of \$3,400,000.

Pursuant to the Agreement, the Company was bound by certain financial and non-financial covenants, including maintaining certain earnings levels and liquidity ratios, restrictions on dividends and capital expenditures. Borrowings under the Agreement are collateralized by substantially all of the Company's assets. On October 18, 2000, the Company amended the Agreement to waive all financial covenants until December 29, 2000. In conjunction with this amendment, the interest rate was increased by one percent to two percent per annum above the bank's prime rate (11.5% at December 31, 2000), and the Company agreed not to re-borrow amounts that had been repaid. As a result, the Credit Facility was fully utilized as of December 31, 2000. Additionally, the maturity date of the line of credit was extended from March 12, 2001 until September 30, 2001, and a payment schedule was agreed to. On December 28, 2000, the Credit Facility was further amended to establish financial covenants for the quarter ending December 31, 2000 and the first three quarters of 2001. As of December 31, 2000, the Company was in compliance with all covenants under the amended Credit Facility.

5. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Preferred Stock

The Company is authorized to issue up to 40,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value \$0.001 per share. The Company has designated 100,000 shares as Series A Preferred Stock and 15,000,000 as Series B Preferred Stock. In connection with the acquisition of ScanSoft (Note 11), the Company issued 3,562,238 shares of Series B Preferred Stock to Xerox. The Series B Preferred Stock is convertible into shares of common stock on a share for share basis. The Series B Preferred Stock has a liquidation preference of \$1.30 per share plus all declared but unpaid dividends. The Series B Preferred Stock holders are entitled to non-cumulative dividends at the rate of \$0.065 per annum per share, payable when, as and if declared by the Board of Directors. To date no dividends have been declared by the Board of Directors. Holders of Series B Preferred

38

41

SCANSOFT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- (CONTINUED)

Stock have no voting rights, except those rights provided under Delaware law. The undesignated shares of preferred stock will have rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions, including voting rights, dividend rights, conversion rights, redemption privileges and liquidation preferences, as shall be determined by the Board of Directors upon issuance of the preferred stock. The Company has reserved 3,562,238 shares of its common stock for issuance upon conversion of the Series B Preferred Stock.

In connection with the ScanSoft acquisition in 1999 (Note 11), the Company issued Xerox a ten-year warrant that allows Xerox to acquire a number of shares of common stock equal to the number of options (whether vested or unvested) that remains unexercised at the expiration of any ScanSoft option assumed by the Company in the merger. The exercise price for each warrant share is \$0.61. If all of the assumed ScanSoft options expire without being exercised, Xerox would be entitled to purchase 1,736,630 shares of common stock. The warrant was fully vested on the date of grant; however, Xerox may not exercise the warrant prior to March 2, 2001, unless, immediately after such exercise, Xerox owns directly or indirectly less than 45% of the Company's shares of common stock immediately after such exercise. From the date of acquisition through December 31, 2000, approximately 484,465 ScanSoft options have been forfeited and accordingly, the Xerox warrant was exercisable for the purchase of 484,465 shares of the Company's common stock.

6. STOCK COMPENSATION PLANS

Stock Option and Award Plans

The Company has several stock-based compensation plans under which employees, officers, directors and consultants may be granted stock awards or options to purchase the Company's common stock generally at the fair market value on the date of grant. Certain plans allow for options to be granted at below fair market value under certain circumstances. Options become exercisable over various periods, typically two to four years and have a maximum term of 10 years. At December 31, 2000, 12,758,552 shares were authorized for grant under the Company's stock-based compensation plans, of which 1,769,839 were available for future grant.

The following table summarizes activity under all stock option plans and for options granted outside the plans:

	NUMBER OF SHARES	PRICE PER SHARE
Balance at December 31, 1997 Options granted Options exercised Options canceled	3,147,801 (172,129)	\$0.15 - \$12.00 \$0.91 - \$3.00 \$0.15 - \$1.75 \$0.15 - \$7.00
Balance at December 31, 1998	3,344,392 1,736,630 (371,230)	\$0.15 - \$12.00 \$1.19 - \$5.38 \$0.61 \$0.15 - \$1.75 \$0.40 - \$12.00
Balance at December 31, 1999	4,178,837 7,453,007 4,577,993 (307,307) (3,536,878)	\$0.15 - \$12.00 \$0.4063 - \$5.94 \$2.28 - \$6.14 \$0.61 - \$4.50 \$0.61 - \$12.00
Balance at December 31, 2000	12,365,652	\$0.4063 - \$6.14

39

42

SCANSOFT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- (CONTINUED)

The weighted average fair market value per share of options granted was \$2.29, \$1.79 and \$1.16 for the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively.

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding under the Company's stock compensation plans at December 31, 2000:

	(OPTIONS OUTSTAND	ING	OPTIONS 1	EXERCISABLE
EXERCISE PRICE RANGE	SHARES OUTSTANDING	WEIGHTED AVERAGE REMAINING LIFE IN YEARS	WEIGHTED AVERAGE EXERCISE PRICE	SHARES EXERCISABLE	WEIGHTED AVERAGE EXERCISE PRICE
\$0.41 - \$0.61	848,796	7.62	\$0.59	464,259	\$0.61
\$0.94 - \$1.28	1,396,227	9.59	1.27	12,500	1.25
\$1.31 - \$1.34	311,000	9.67	1.34	10,000	1.31
\$1.44 - \$1.44	2,504,500	9.64	1.44	312,500	1.44
\$1.53 - \$1.73	1,475,864	8.33	1.64	330,256	1.63
\$1.78 - \$3.00	1,620,359	8.70	2.51	423,752	2.80
\$3.02 - \$3.55	1,270,647	6.42	3.33	870 , 316	3.36
\$3.57 - \$4.71	1,403,776	6.20	4.17	915,302	4.12
\$4.75 - \$5.87	1,388,203	8.55	5.21	643,746	5.33
\$5.93 - \$6.14	146,280	7.90	5.98	106,280	6.00
\$0.41 - \$6.14	12,365,652	8.35	\$2.51	4,088,911	\$3.24
	========			=======	

1995 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company's 1995 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended on June 29, 1999, authorizes the issuance of a maximum of 1,000,000 shares of common stock in semi-annual offerings to employees at a price equal to the lower of 85% of the closing price on the applicable offering commencement date or 85% of the closing price on the applicable offering termination date. The Company issued 46,896, 60,786 and 116,969 shares of common stock under this plan during the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998 respectively.

Pro Forma Information

Had compensation expense for the Company's stock-based compensation plans been determined based on fair market value at the grant dates, as prescribed by SFAS No. 123, the Company's net loss and pro forma net loss and the Company's net loss and pro forma net loss per share would have been as follows (in thousands, except per share amounts):

	YEAR ENI	DED DECEMBEI	R 31,
	2000	1999	1998
Net loss as reported	\$(53,251)	\$(2,748)	\$(3,805)
Net loss pro forma	\$(57,419)	\$ (5,004)	\$ (6,483)
Net loss per share as reported: basic and	á (1 0 C)	¢ (0 11)	A (A 1A)
diluted			
Net loss per share pro forma: basic and diluted	\$ (1.36)	\$ (0.20)	\$ (0.33)

The fair value of each option grant was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions used for grants during the applicable period: expected volatility of 100% to 150% for 2000, 100% to 130% for 1999 and 70% for 1998, risk-free interest rate of 5.02% to 6.68% for options granted in 2000, 5.36% to 6.07% for options granted in 1999, and 5.12% for

options granted in 1998, and a weighted average expected option term of 5.0 years for all periods. The Company has not paid dividends to date and assumed no dividend yield.

For the Employee Stock Purchase Plan, the fair value of each purchase right was estimated at the beginning of the offering period using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions used in 2000, 1999 and 1998: expected volatility of 128% for 2000, 100% to 130% for 1999 and 70% for 1998; risk-free interest rate of 6.10%, 5.03% and 5.12% for 2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively; and expected lives of six months for all three years. The Company has not paid dividends and assumed no dividend yield. The weighted-average fair value of all purchase rights granted in 2000, 1999 and 1998, were \$1.73, \$0.66 and \$0.70, respectively.

7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Operating Leases

In March 1999, the Company entered into an agreement with Xerox to sublease 37,636 square feet within Xerox's leased facility in Peabody, Massachusetts. The term of the non-cancelable sublease is twenty-nine months. Minimum rental payments under the sublease rent agreement totals \$387,000, of which \$244,000 was due in 2000 and \$143,000 is due in 2001. On December 18, 2000, the Company amended the lease agreement to extend the lease for five additional years through July 31, 2006. Beginning on August 1, 2001, the lease requires annual lease payments of \$395,178. Subsequent years lease payments are subject to cost of living adjustments as defined in the lease amendment.

The Company also leases approximately 7,000 square feet of office space in Los Gatos, California. The Company is currently committed under the lease through January 31, 2004. Annual lease payments for 2001, 2002, 2003 and 2004 are as follows, \$100,450, \$135,450, \$142,450 and \$11,900, respectively.

Additionally, the Company leases approximately 3,500 square feet of office space in Budapest, Hungary. The Company is currently committed through September 30, 2003. Annual lease payments for 2001, 2002 and 2003 are as follows, \$171,000, \$180,000 and \$183,000.

Total rent expense under operating leases for the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998 was \$756,000, \$288,000 and \$339,000, respectively.

Litigation and Other Claims

From time to time, the Company becomes party to litigation and patent infringement matters and claims which arise in the course of the Company's operations. While the results of such litigation and claims cannot be predicted with certainty, the Company believes that the final outcome of such matters will not have a significant adverse effect on the Company's financial position and results of operations. However, should the Company not prevail in any such litigation, its operating results and financial position could be adversely impacted.

8. 401(K) SAVINGS PLAN

The Company has established a retirement savings plan under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code (the "401(k) Plan"). The 401(k) Plan covers substantially all employees of the Company who meet minimum age and service requirements, and allows participants to defer a portion of their annual compensation on a pre-tax basis. The Company contributes 100% of up to the first 4% of an employee's salary contributed to the 401(k) Plan by the employee. The Company's contributions to the 401(k) Plan totaled \$414,000, \$290,000 and \$286,000 for the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively.

SCANSOFT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- (CONTINUED)

9. SEGMENT, GEOGRAPHIC AND SIGNIFICANT CUSTOMER INFORMATION

The Company operates in a single segment and has no organizational structure dictated by product lines, geography or customer type. The following table presents total revenue information by geographic area (in thousands):

	YEAR E	NDED DECEMB	ER 31,
	2000	1999	1998
United States Other foreign countries		\$24,732 6,897	
Total	\$49,055 ======	\$31,629 ======	\$79,070

Revenue classification above is based on the country in which the sale originates. Revenue in other countries predominately relates to sales to customers in Europe. Intercompany sales are insignificant as products sold in other countries are sourced within Europe.

The following table summarizes the Company's long-lived assets, excluding intangible assets, by geographic location (in thousands):

	DECEMBER 31,		
	2000	1999	1998
United States		\$1,831 75	\$1,020 84
	\$4,066	\$1,906 =====	\$1,104 =====

In 2000, three customers accounted for 27%, 11% and 11% of total net revenues. During 1999, three customers accounted for 24%, 15% and 14% of total net revenues. During 1998, two customers accounted for 18% and 12% of total net revenues.

10. INCOME TAXES

The components of the income tax provision are as follows (in thousands):

	YEAR EI	NDED DECEM	MBER 31,
	2000	1999	1998
Federal	\$	\$ 70	\$
Foreign	382	60	
State	90	20	
Provision for income taxes	\$472	\$150	\$
	====	====	==

SCANSOFT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets (liabilities) consist of the following (in thousands):

	DECEMBER 31,	
	2000	1999
Deferred tax assets		
Net operating loss credit carryforwards	•	\$ 22 , 750
Federal and state credit carryforwards	3,213	2,278
Capitalized start-up and development costs	1,091	589
Accrued expense and other reserves	4,007	1,274
Deferred revenue	1,136	609
Depreciation	1,697	834
Other	5	41
Gross deferred tax assets	51 , 599	28,375
Acquired intangibles	(14,622)	(3,810)
Other		(248)
Valuation allowance	(36,977)	(24,317)
Net deferred tax assets	\$	\$
		=

At December 31, 2000 and 1999, the Company provided a valuation allowance for the full amount of its net deferred tax assets since, based on the weight of available evidence, management could not conclude that it is more likely than not that these future benefits will be realized.

A reconciliation of the Company's tax position (benefit) to the statutory federal rate is as follows:

	YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,	
	2000	1999
Federal statutory tax rate	(34.0)%	(34.0)%
Nondeductible in-process research and development	5.3%	51.6%
Foreign taxes	0.4%	2.3%
State tax, net of federal benefit	0.1%	0.5%
Change in valuation allowance	29.1%	(14.6)%
	0.9%	5.8%
	=====	=====

At December 31, 2000, the Company had federal and state net operating loss carryforwards of approximately \$105 million and \$62 million, respectively, of which approximately \$2.8 million and \$1.4 million related to tax deductions from stock compensation, respectively. The tax benefit related to the stock compensation, when realized, will be accounted for as additional paid-in capital rather than as a reduction of the provision for income tax. Research and development credit carryforwards as of December 31, 2000 were approximately \$3.2

million. The net operating loss and credit carryforwards will expire at various dates through 2020, if not utilized. Utilization of the net operating losses and credits may be subject to a substantial annual limitation due to the ownership change limitations provided by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and similar state provisions. The annual limitation may result in the expiration of net operating losses and credits before utilization.

43

46

SCANSOFT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- (CONTINUED)

11. ACQUISITIONS

Caere Acquisition:

On March 13, 2000, the Company acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of Caere Corporation, a California-based company that designed, developed and marketed a range of optical character recognition software tools, for approximately \$48.5 million in cash, 19.0 million shares of common stock of the Company valued at \$98.5 million, and the issuance of stock options for the purchase of approximately 4.6 million shares of the Company's common stock valued at \$15.5 million, in exchange for outstanding employee stock options of Caere. The fair value of the employee stock options was estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. In addition, pursuant to a concurrent non-competition agreement and subject to certain other conditions, the Company agreed to pay in cash the former Caere President and CEO on the second anniversary of the merger, March 13, 2002, the difference between \$13.50 and the closing price per share of ScanSoft common stock at that time, multiplied by the number of beneficial shares owned by the former executive. The value of this stock price guarantee at the date of acquisition was approximately \$4.1 million and has been included in the total purchase price of the acquisition. The amount paid, if any, will be recorded as a reduction in additional paid-in capital. Additionally, in conjunction with the acquisition, the Company incurred approximately \$1.8 million of acquisition related costs. The purchase price of Caere, including acquisition costs was allocated as follows (in thousands):

Property and equipment Current and other tangible assets Liabilities assumed Goodwill Core technology Developed technology Other identified intangible assets. Acquired in-process research and development.	\$ 2,865 58,400 (16,985) 61,095 17,905 16,340 10,448 18,291
nequired in process research and development	\$168,359 =======

The amounts allocated to identifiable tangible and intangible assets, including acquired in-process research and development, were based on the results of an independent appraisal. Goodwill represents the amount by which the cost of acquired net assets exceeded the fair values of those net assets on the date of purchase. Acquired in-process research and development represented development projects that had not yet reached technological feasibility and had no alternative future use. Accordingly, the amount of \$18.3 million was charged to operations upon consummation of the acquisition.

The values of the core technology, developed technology and acquired in-process technology were determined by a risk adjusted, discounted cash flow approach. The value of in-process research and development, specifically, was determined by estimating the costs to develop the in-process projects into

commercially viable products, estimating the resulting net cash flows from the sale of such products, discounting net cash flows back to their present values, and adjusting those results to reflect the projects' stages of completion at the acquisition date. These include projects (primarily major version upgrades) in each of Caere's major products, including OmniPage, OmniForm, and PageKeeper. The discount rates used were 14% for developed technology, 19% for core technology, and 24% for in-process technology. The discount rate for in-process technology takes into consideration the Company's weighted average cost of capital adjusted for the inherent uncertainties surrounding the successful development of the in-process research and development, the profitability levels of such technology and the uncertainty of technological advances, which could potentially impact the estimates described above.

44

47

SCANSOFT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- (CONTINUED)

The percentage of completion of the in-process projects ranged from 50% to 67% at the date of the acquisition. Revenues were initially projected to be generated in late 2000 for each of the product versions in development at the acquisition date. As of December 31, 2000, the Company revised those projections and expects revenues from these projects to be generated beginning in the second quarter of 2001. If these projects are not successfully developed, future revenue and profitability of the Company may be adversely affected.

The table following identifies the intangible assets acquired in connection with Caere and their respective lives:

	AMOUNT (IN THOUSANDS)	LIFE (IN YEARS)
Goodwill	\$ 61,095	6
Core technology	17,905	5
Developed technology	16,340	2
Other identified intangible assets	10,448	2-5
	\$105 , 788	
	=======	

Other identified intangible assets consist of a non-compete agreement, acquired work force, a favorable building lease agreement, and patents on the Caere technology. These assets have expected useful lives of 2, 3, 4 and 5 years, respectively and are being amortized accordingly.

During the year ended December 31, 2000, the Company, as a result of its June restructuring (Note 12), wrote-off \$1,074,000 of acquired workforce and \$2,416,000 of the favorable building lease established as part of the identifiable intangible assets acquired from Caere. The portion of the assets impaired related directly to the number of employees terminated and facility space vacated in connection with these restructuring actions.

This acquisition has been accounted for under the purchase method of accounting. Accordingly, the results of operations of Caere and the fair market value of acquired assets and assumed liabilities have been included in the financial statements of the Company as of the date of acquisition.

ScanSoft Acquisition:

On March 2, 1999, the Company acquired the business of ScanSoft, Inc., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Xerox, for approximately 6.8 million shares of common stock valued at \$10.4 million, 3.6 million shares of non-voting Preferred Stock valued at \$4.6 million and the issuance of stock options for the

purchase of approximately 1.7 million shares of the Company's common stock, valued at \$2.4 million, in exchange for outstanding employee stock options of ScanSoft. In conjunction with the acquisition, the Company incurred approximately \$1.2 million of acquisition related costs.

The purchase price of \$18.6 million was allocated to the tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on fair value. The portion of the purchase price allocated to intangible assets (acquired in-process research and development, core technology, trade mark and trade name, and assembled workforce) acquired was based on an independent appraisal. Acquired in-process research and development represented development projects that had not yet reached technological feasibility and had no alternative

45

48

SCANSOFT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- (CONTINUED)

future use. Accordingly, the amount of \$3.9 million was charged to operations upon consummation of the acquisition. The purchase price was allocated as follows (in thousands):

Property and equipment	\$ 909
Current and other assets	4,813
Liabilities assumed	(2,166)
Identified intangible assets	11,096
Acquired in-process research and development	3,944
	\$18,596
	======

This acquisition has been accounted for under the purchase method of accounting. Accordingly, the results of operations of ScanSoft and the fair value of acquired assets and assumed liabilities have been included in the financial statements of the Company as of the date of acquisition.

The values of the core technology and acquired in-process technology were determined by a risk adjusted, discounted cash flow approach. The value of in-process research and development, specifically, was determined by estimating the costs to develop the in-process projects into commercially viable products, estimating the resulting net cash flows from the sale of such products, discounting net cash flows back to their present values, and adjusting those results to reflect the projects' stages of completion at the acquisition date. These projects include projects (primarily major version releases) in each of ScanSoft's major products, including ScanWorks, Pagis, TextBridge and API. The discount rate used for the core technology and in-process technology was 20% and 25%, respectively. This discount rate takes into consideration the Company's weighted-average cost of capital adjusted for the inherent uncertainties surrounding the successful development of the in-process research and development, the profitability levels of such technology and the uncertainty of technological advances, which could potentially impact the estimates described above. The percentage of completion of the projects ranged from 73% to 95% at the date of acquisition. All of the projects were successfully completed in 1999.

The following table identifies the intangible assets acquired in connection with ScanSoft and their respective lives:

AMOUNT LIFE (IN THOUSANDS) (IN YEARS)

Core technology	\$ 8,747	6
Trademark	1,800	7
Work force	549	3
	\$11,096	

Acquisition of MetaCreations Product Lines:

On June 30, 1999, the Company entered into a definitive asset purchase agreement (the "Purchase Agreement") and license agreement (the "License") to acquire and license certain assets and intellectual property relating to the photo imaging software products business of MetaCreations Corporation ("MetaCreations"), which include Kai's PhotoSoap 1.0 and 2.0, Kai's SuperGOO 1.0, Kai's PowerGOO 1.0 and Kai's Power SHOW 1.1 (the "Products").

Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, the Company purchased all MetaCreations' inventory, intangibles, marketing materials and website content relating to the Products. Under the License Agreement, MetaCreations granted the Company a perpetual non-exclusive, royaltyfree license to use, reproduce, license, sell and distribute the intellectual property relating to the Products and other related software technology. The Company paid MetaCreations an aggregate of \$1,000,000 in cash and issued a 7% promissory note in the

46

49

SCANSOFT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- (CONTINUED)

principal amount of \$1,600,000, due and paid in full on June 30, 2000. Additionally, the Company assumed the obligations to fulfill sales orders relating to the Products, all liabilities under all original equipment manufacturer and other agreements pertaining to the Products, and up to \$950,000 of product returns relating to Products sold prior to the date of the Purchase Agreement. The Purchase Agreement includes contingent financial performance incentive payments under which the Company could pay former MetaCreations stockholders up to an additional \$1,000,000, depending on the revenue levels achieved from the Products and certain other technology licensed in the License Agreement. To date, no contingent payments have been earned. Any future contingent payments earned will be recorded as additional purchase price, allocated to identifiable intangible assets or goodwill, as appropriate, and amortized over the remaining amortization period of the intangible asset or goodwill.

The purchase price was allocated to the tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on fair value. The portion of the purchase price allocated to intangible assets (core technology, OEM relationships, trademarks, and registered users base) acquired was based on an independent appraisal. The allocation of purchase price is estimated as follows (in thousands):

Net liabilities assumed	\$(1,234)
Identified intangible assets	3,834
	\$ 2,600
	======

The following table identifies the intangible assets acquired in connection with MetaCreations and their respective lives:

	AMOUNT (IN THOUSANDS)	LIFE (IN YEARS)
Core technology	\$1,934	3
OEM relationships	1,100	3
Trademark and registered users	800	3
	\$3,834	
	=====	

During the fourth quarter of 2000, based on the financial results of the MetaCreations products, the Company reviewed the estimated future lives of the MetaCreations intangible assets. As a result of this review, the Company reduced the future amortization period of these intangible assets with lives greater than three years at December 31, 2000, to three years. This change will result in increased amortization of \$248,000 per year over the next three years.

PRO FORMA RESULTS (UNAUDITED)

The following table reflects unaudited pro forma results of operations of the Company assuming that the sale of the hardware business (Note 14) and the acquisition of ScanSoft had occurred on January 1, 1998 and Caere (Note 11) had occurred on January 1, 1999 (in thousands, except per share data):

	YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,			
	2000			
Revenues				
Net loss per diluted share				

These unaudited pro forma results of operations do not include the gain on sale of the hardware business or the write-off of acquired in-process research and development as these amounts were non-recurring in

47

50

SCANSOFT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- (CONTINUED)

nature. Additionally, these unaudited results do not include the impact of the asset purchase of MetaCreations as including those results would not differ materially from the unaudited pro forma results. The unaudited pro forma results of operations are not indicative of the actual results that would have occurred had the transactions actually taken place at the beginning of these periods.

12. RESTRUCTURING AND OTHER CHARGES

In connection with the acquisition of Caere in the first quarter of 2000, the Company identified approximately 46 employees of Caere whose positions were eliminated upon consummation of the acquisition. These positions included 22 in research and development, 14 in general and administrative functions, and 10 in sales and marketing. Additionally, the Caere president and CEO position was eliminated. As a result, the Company established as part of the purchase price allocation, a restructuring reserve of \$487,000 for severance payments to employees, and a restructuring reserve of \$1,065,000 for severance to the Caere

former president and CEO, the payments of which will continue over the next 4 vears.

The Company was obligated to pay retention bonuses amounting to approximately \$797,000 relating to key employees who were used in the integration of Caere and the Company. These retention bonuses were expensed as incurred and were not included in the purchase price of the acquisition. As of December 31, 2000, the Company had paid all of these bonuses.

In June 2000, the Company implemented a restructuring plan to strategically refocus the Company and bring operating expenses in line with net revenues. The process included a review of all potentially redundant functions and facilities. As part of this process, the Company determined it would be more cost effective to eliminate duplicative activities being performed in Los Gatos, California through relocating certain of these efforts to Peabody, Massachusetts and Budapest, Hungary. These activities consisted primarily of research and development, marketing, customer support and general and administrative functions. As a result, the Company eliminated 65 employee positions including 29 in research and development, 13 in general and administrative functions and 23 in support and marketing. The Company recorded a restructuring charge in the amount of \$1,069,000 for severance payments to these employees, and a restructuring charge of \$397,000 for certain termination fees to be incurred as a result of exiting the Los Gatos facility. Additionally, the Company wrote-off \$3,490,000 of net intangible assets acquired as part of the Caere acquisition including the acquired work force of \$1,074,000 and the favorable building lease of \$2,416,000, which were impaired as a result of the restructuring action.

The Company was obligated to pay retention bonuses amounting to approximately \$212,000 relating to key employees who were used in completing the restructuring of the Company. These amounts were expensed as incurred and were not included in the restructuring charge. As of December 31, 2000, the Company had paid all of these bonuses.

For the year ended December 31, 2000, the Company paid \$1,120,000 in severance payments related to the restructuring actions. The remaining severance balance of \$1,428,000, will be paid over the next four years as it primarily relates to severance for the former Caere President and CEO.

During the fourth quarter of 2000, the Company identified an additional \$276,000 of facility related exit costs related to leasehold improvements on the Los Gatos facility in space vacated by the Company. Additionally during the fourth quarter, the Company reversed \$420,000 of restructuring accruals taken in June 2000 based on revised estimates of restructuring liabilities. Facility related contracts accounted for \$347,000 of the total reversal; the remaining \$73,000 related to severance accruals for employees who left the Company prior to being eligible to receive severance benefits.

48

51

SCANSOFT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- (CONTINUED)

The following table sets forth the 2000 restructuring reserve activity (in thousands):

RESTRUCTURING AND OTHER CHARGES RESERVE	EMPLOYEE RELATED	LEASE EXIT COSTS	INTANGIBLE ASSET IMPAIRMENT	TOTAL
Restructuring reserve provided in March 2000 acquisition	\$ 1,552			\$ 1,552
Restructuring and other charges for June 2000 restructuring	1,069	\$ 397	\$ 3,490	4,956

2000 restructuring		276		276
Reversal of excess restructuring charges				
related to June 2000 restructuring	(73)	(347)		(420)
Non-cash write-off		(276)	(3,490)	(3,766)
Cash payments	(1,120)			(1,120)
Balance at December 31, 2000	\$ 1,428	\$ 50	\$	\$ 1,478

Pursuant to the disposal of the hardware business and acquisition of the software business of ScanSoft, the Company initiated restructuring actions in the first quarter of 1999 and recorded a charge of \$346,000 for such actions. Included in the charge was \$188,000 related to work force reduction. The work force reduction costs primarily included severance costs related to the termination of approximately 10 research and development employees. The terminations were necessary in order to consolidate the Company's research and development efforts to its corporate headquarters in Massachusetts. Also included was approximately \$46,000 in fixed assets and \$82,000 in non-refundable commitments associated with the California operation which were no longer required once the headquarters were moved to Massachusetts, and \$30,000 in other exit costs. All planned restructuring actions were completed and all related liabilities were paid in 1999, and there are no remaining accruals at December 31, 1999.

13. RELATED PARTIES

At December 31, 2000, Xerox owned approximately 26% of the Company's outstanding common stock and all of the Company's outstanding Series B Preferred Stock. In addition, Xerox has the opportunity to acquire additional shares of common stock pursuant to a warrant (Note 5). In addition, Xerox had the right to designate two individuals to the Board of Directors. This right terminated on March 2, 2001. The Company and Xerox have entered into multiple non-exclusive agreements in which the Company grants Xerox the royalty-bearing right to copy and distribute certain versions of the Company's software programs with Xerox's multi-function peripherals. In 2000 and 1999, Xerox accounted for 11% and 14% of total net revenues, respectively. As of December 31, 2000, Xerox owed the Company \$1.6 million pursuant to these agreements.

On September 13, 1999, the Company purchased 600,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock, par value \$.10 per share, at a cost of \$.25 per share for a total investment of \$150,000 in BookmarkCentral.com (which was recently renamed EchoBahn.com, Inc.). One of the Company's directors, is a founder and the current President and Chief Executive Officer of EchoBahn.

14. SALE OF HARDWARE BUSINESS

On December 3, 1998, the Company entered into an agreement to sell the assets, liabilities and intellectual property related to the hardware business to Primax for approximately \$6.8 million in cash. The terms of the agreement also granted to Primax a software license agreement that allows them to "bundle," market and sell the Company's PaperPort software with Primax hardware products. The agreement requires the payment of certain royalties by Primax to the Company.

49

52

SCANSOFT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- (CONTINUED)

On January 6, 1999 the agreement with Primax was consummated. The Company reported a non-operating gain of \$882,000 related to the sale of the hardware business, net of the costs and expenses of disposing of the business. The most significant assets and liabilities at December 31, 1998 of the hardware business were receivables, inventories and accounts payable in the approximate amounts of \$12.7 million, \$4.4 million and \$10.7 million, respectively. Pursuant to the agreement, the Company agreed to purchase vested options for the purchase of the

Company's common stock of employees that were terminated and transferred to Primax. The total cost to the Company was \$273,000 and was recorded against the gain on sale. In addition, Primax assumed the lease of the Company's then corporate facilities. The Company entered into an agreement with Primax to pay Primax rent for its use of this facility until the Company moved to Peabody, Massachusetts after the acquisition of ScanSoft in March 1999.

Hardware Business Pro Forma Information (Unaudited)

As a result of the sale of the hardware business, the Company's results of operations since January 6, 1999 do not include any revenues or expenses associated with the hardware business. The following table summarizes the unaudited pro forma operating information for the hardware business and the remaining software business for the year ended December 31, 1998 (in thousands):

	HARDWARE BUSINESS	SOFTWARE BUSINESS	COMBINED
Net revenues	\$66,015	\$13,055	\$79 , 070
Cost of revenues	55,474 734 15,887	3,896 3,674 3,263	59,370 4,408 19,150
Total costs and expenses	72,095	10,833	82,928
<pre>Income (loss) from operations Other income, net</pre>	(6,080)	2,222 27	(3,858)
Net income (loss)	\$ (6,054)	\$ 2,249	\$(3,805) ======

50

53

SCANSOFT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- (CONTINUED)

15. QUARTERLY DATA (UNAUDITED)

The following information has been derived from unaudited consolidated financial statements that, in the opinion of management, include all recurring adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of such information.

		FIRST UARTER		SECOND UARTER		HIRD ARTER		OURTH JARTER	YEAR
	(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)						 		
2000									
Net sales		7,415		13,975		3,638		14,027	49,055
Net income (loss)	\$	(23,938)	\$	(16,028)	\$ (7,076)	\$	(6,209)	\$ (53 , 251)
Earnings per share:									
Basic		(0.78)		(0.35)		(0.15)		(0.13)	(1.26)
Diluted	\$	(0.78)	\$	(0.35)	\$	(0.15)	\$	(0.13)	\$ (1.26)
Weighted average common shares outstanding:									
Basic		30,529		45,918	4	5,963	4	16,032	42,107
Diluted		30,529		45,918	4	5,963	4	16,032	42,107
1999									
Net sales	\$	4,508	\$	10,268	\$	8,210	\$	8,643	\$ 31,629
Net income (loss)	\$	(4,025)	\$	823	\$	472	\$	(18)	\$ (2,748)
Earnings per share:									
Basic	\$	(0.18)	\$	0.03	\$	0.02	\$	(0.00)	\$ (0.11)
Diluted	\$	(0.18)	\$	0.03	\$	0.01	\$	(0.00)	\$ (0.11)
Weighted average common shares outstanding:									

51

54

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of ScanSoft, Inc:

Our audits of the consolidated financial statements referred to in our report dated February 9, 2001, appearing in the 2000 Annual Report on Form 10-K of ScanSoft, Inc. also included an audit of the financial statement schedule listed in Item 14(a)(2) of this Form 10-K. In our opinion, the financial statement schedule presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Boston, Massachusetts February 9, 2001

52

55

SCHEDULE II

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES (IN THOUSANDS)

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

	2000	1999	1998
Balance at beginning of period		•	\$ 5,315 19,480
Additions charged to other Deductions and write-offs		987 (10,773)	 (20,624)
Balance at end of period	\$7,375 =====	\$ 3,690 ======	\$ 4,171 ======

(a) Amounts recorded against revenue representing estimated returns as of December 31, 2000.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The following table sets forth certain information regarding Board of Directors as of March 26, 2001.

NAME

Paul A. Ricci	44	 Served as the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company since March 2, 1999 and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since August 21, 2000. From January 1998 to August 2000, Mr. Ricci was the Corporate Vice President, Business Development at Xerox Corporation. Prior to 1998, Mr. Ricci held several positions within Xerox, including serving as President of the Desktop Document Systems Division. Prior to Xerox, Mr. Ricci served as Vice President of Marketing and Services at Natural Language, Inc. Served as the President and Chief Operating Officer of
MICHAEL K. HVHAH	40	the Company since August 21, 2000. From March 2, 1999 until August 21, 2000, Mr. Tivnan served as the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. From February 1998 until March 2, 1999, Mr. Tivnan served as the President of ScanSoft, Inc., which was then operating as an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Xerox. From November 1993 until February 1998, Mr. Tivnan served as General Manager and Vice President of ScanSoft. From January 1991 until November 1993, Mr. Tivnan served as Chief Financial Officer of ScanSoft.
56		
NAME	AGE	PRINCIPAL OCCUPATIONS FOR PAST FIVE YEARS
J. Larry Smart	53	 Served as a director of the Company since February 1997. Mr. Smart is currently the President and Chief Executive Officer of EchoBahn.com, a business-to-business Internet marketing services company. From April 1997 until March 2, 1999, Mr. Smart served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Visioneer, Inc. Mr. Smart served as Chairman of the Board of Directors of Visioneer, Inc. from February 1997 until April 1997. From July 1995 to March 1997, Mr. Smart was Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of StreamLogic Corporation/Micropolis Corporation, a data storage and delivery company. From March 1994 to February 1995, Mr. Smart was President and Chief Executive Officer of Maxtor Corporation, a disk drive development and manufacturing company. Mr. Smart currently serves as Chairman of the Board of Visioneer, Inc. (Primax Company) a computer scanner company and is a director of Quicknet Technologies and Wirestone.
Mark B. Myers	61	- Served as a director of the Company since March 2, 1999 Dr. Myers served as Senior Vice President, Xerox Research and Technology, responsible for worldwide research and technology from 1992 until 2000.
Katharine A. Martin	38	 Served as a director of the Company since December 17, 1999. Since March 2, 1999, Ms. Martin has served as the Company's Corporate Secretary. Since September 1999, Ms. Martin has served as a Member of Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati, a Professional Corporation. Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati as the primary outside corporate and securities counsel to the Company. From January 1995 to September 1999, Ms. Martin served as a Partner of Pillsbury Madison & Sutro LLP and from September 1987 to December 1994 as an associate of Pillsbury Madison & Sutro LLP.
Robert G. Teresi	59	 Served as a director of the Company since March 13, 2000. Mr. Teresi served as the Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and President of Caere Corporation from May 1985 until March 2000.

- Mr. Teresi currently serves as a Director of Daw Technologies, Inc. - Served as a director of the Company since March 13, Robert J. Frankenberg..... 53 2000. - Since May 1997, Mr. Frankenberg has served as the President and Chief Executive Officer of Encanto Networks, Inc., a developer of hardware and software designed to enable creation of businesses on the Internet. 54 57 PRINCIPAL OCCUPATIONS FOR PAST FIVE YEARS NAME AGE - From April 1994 to August 1996, he was Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of Novell, Inc., a producer of network software. - He is a director of Electroglas, Inc., National Semiconductor, Daw Technologies, Inc. and Secure Computing Corporation. The following table sets forth certain information regarding our executive officers who are not members of the Board of Directors as of March 26, 2001. PRINCIPAL OCCUPATIONS FOR PAST FIVE YEARS NAME AGE - Served as Senior Vice President Sales and Marketing of the Company since November 2000. - From March 2000 to November 2000, Mr. Crandall was the Senior Vice President Sales and Business Development of the Company and from March 1999 to March 2000 he was the Vice President Sales and Channel Marketing of the Company. - From December 1989 until March 2, 1999, Mr. Crandall oversaw all domestic and international sales activity of ScanSoft, Inc., which was then operating as an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Xerox. - Mr. Crandall originally joined ScanSoft in November 1988 as the Director of North America Sales.

Richard S. Palmer..... 50

- Served as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company since May 2000. - From July 1994 to April 2000, Mr. Palmer was the Director of Corporate Development at Xerox Corporation. Prior to that, he worked in a number of financial management positions at Xerox including Vice President of Business Analysis for Xerox Financial Services, Inc., Corporate Assistant Treasurer, and Manager of Planning and Pricing for Xerox's Latin American Operations. - Served as Senior Vice President Research and Development of the Company since August 2000.

Ben S. Wittner..... 43

- From March 2000 to August 2000, Dr. Wittner served as Vice President Research and Development. - From February 1995 until March 2000, Dr. Wittner was
- Director of OCR Research and Development of ScanSoft, Inc., which was then operating as an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Xerox.
- Dr. Wittner joined ScanSoft in 1992 as manager of text recognition for OCR development.
- Previously, Dr. Wittner was an individual contributor and then supervisor for the handwriting recognition project at NYNEX. Before that, he held a post-doctoral position at AT&T Bell Laboratories, researching fundamentals and applications of neural networks.
- Dr. Wittner earned a Ph.D. in mathematics from Cornell University.

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), and the rules of the Commission thereunder require the Company's executive officers, directors and certain stockholders to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership of the Common Stock with the Commission. Based upon review of such reports, the Company believes that all reports required by section 16(a) of the Exchange Act to be filed by its executive officers and directors during the last fiscal year were filed on time.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The following table provides certain summary information for the fiscal years 2000, 1999 and 1998 concerning compensation earned by the Company's Chief Executive Officer and to the Company's four other named executive officers whose compensation exceeded \$100,000 in 2000 (the "Named Executive Officers").

	ANNUAL COMPENSATION			LONG-TERM COMPENSATION	
NAME AND PRINCIPAL POSITION	YEAR	SALARY	BONUS	OTHER ANNUAL COMPENSATION	SECURITIES UNDERLYING OPTIONS(#)
Paul A. Ricci(1)	2000	110,385			2,505,000
Michael K. Tivnan(2) President and Chief Operating		269,180			330,000
Officer	1000	204,304	23,320		801,936
Wayne S. Crandall(3)	2000	178,596	70,415		200,000
Senior Vice President, Sales And Marketing	1999	127,676	77,551		369,782
Richard S. Palmer(4) Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer	2000	155,833	25,300		550,000
Ben S. Wittner(5)Senior Vice President, Software Development	2000	140,839	22,369		223,000

- (1) Mr. Ricci began operating in this capacity in August 2000.
- (2) Mr. Tivnan served as President and Chief Executive Officer from March 1999 to August 2000, and thereafter as President and Chief Operating Officer.
- (3) Mr. Crandall was appointed an executive officer of the Company in March 1999.
- (4) Mr. Palmer joined the Company in May 2000.
- (5) Dr. Wittner was appointed an executive officer of the Company in August 2000.

COMPENSATION OF NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTORS

Non-employee directors of the Company are automatically granted options to purchase shares of the Company's Common Stock pursuant to the terms of the Company's 1995 Directors' Stock Option Plan (the "Directors' Plan"). Under the Directors' Plan, each non-employee director is granted an option to purchase 20,000 shares of Common Stock on the date on which he or she first becomes a non-employee director (the "First Option"). Thereafter, on January 1 of each year each non-employee director is automatically granted an additional option to purchase 5,000 shares of Common Stock (a "Subsequent Option") if, on such date, he or she has served on the Company's Board of Directors for at least six (6) months. The First Option becomes exercisable in installments as to twenty-five percent (25%) of the total number of shares subject to the First Option on each anniversary of the date of grant of the First Option, and each Subsequent Option becomes exercisable in full on the first anniversary of the date of grant of that Subsequent Option. Options granted under the Directors' Plan have an

56

exercise price equal to the fair market value of the Company's Common Stock on the date of grant, and a term of ten (10) years. Pursuant to the Directors'

59

The Board of Directors has approved amendments to the Company's 1995 Directors' Stock Option Plan, subject to the approval of the Company's stockholders. Subject to Stockholder approval at the Company's next annual meeting, each non-employee director was granted an option to purchase 15,000 shares of Common Stock on January 23, 2001.

CHANGE IN CONTROL AND EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS

In April 1999, ScanSoft's Board of Directors approved acceleration of vesting of options for all officers and directors of the Company in the event of a change in control. A change in control includes a merger or consolidation of the Company not approved by the Board of Directors, certain changes in the Board of Director composition, and certain changes in the ownership of the Company.

RECENT OPTION GRANTS

The following table sets forth certain information regarding options granted during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000 to the Named Executive Officers.

	SECURITIES UNDERLYING	PERCENT OF TOTAL OPTIONS GRANTED TO EMPLOYEES IN	EXERCISE OR	DVDTDAELON	RATES OF S	ED ANNUAL TOCK PRICE N FOR OPTION
NAME	OPTIONS GRANTED(#)	FISCAL YEAR(%)(1)	BASE PRICE (\$/SHARE)	EXPIRATION DATE	5%	10%
Paul A. Ricci	2,500,000	33.7950	1.4375	08/21/10	2,260,090.07	5,727,511.97
	5,000	0.0676	4.7500	01/03/10	1,493,625.00	3,785,138.00
Michael K. Tivnan	80,000 250,000	1.0814	5.6900 1.3438	02/18/10 08/17/10	286,272.83 211,277.15	725,471.57 535,417.78
Wayne Crandall	50,000	0.6759	5.6900	02/18/10	178,920.52	453,419.73
	150,000	2.0277	1.2813	08/18/10	120,870.40	306,309.33
Richard S. Palmer	400,000	5.4072	3.0000	04/17/10	754,673.55	1,912,490.95
	150,000	2.0277	1.2813	08/18/10	120,870.40	306,309.33
Ben S. Wittner	58,000	0.7841	5.0300	02/28/10	183,473.72	464,958.43
	150,000	2.0278	1.2813	08/18/10	120,870.40	306,309.34
	15,000	0.2028	2.0625	07/13/10	19,456.43	49,306.41

DOTENTIAL DEALTTABLE WALLE

(1) Based on options to purchase an aggregate of 7,469,537 shares of common stock granted during fiscal 2000.

(2) Amounts represent hypothetical gains that could be achieved for the respective options if exercised at the end of the option term. These gains are based on assumed rates of stock appreciation of five percent (5%) and ten percent (10%) compounded annually from the date the respective options were granted to their expiration date and are not presented to forecast possible future appreciation, if any, in the price of our common stock. The gains shown are net of the option exercise price, but do not include deductions for taxes or other expenses associated with the exercise of the options or the sale of the underlying shares of common stock. The actual gains, if any, on the stock option exercises will depend on the future performance of our common stock, the optionee's continued employment through applicable vesting periods and the date on which the options are exercised.

The following table shows the number of shares of common stock represented by outstanding stock options held by each of the Named Executive Officers as of

60

AGGREGATE OPTION EXERCISES IN LAST FISCAL YEAR AND FISCAL YEAR-END OPTION VALUES(1)

NAME	NUMBER OF SECURITIES UNDERLYING UNEXERCISED OPTIONS AT FISCAL YEAR-END EXERCISABLE/UNEXERCISABLE	VALUE OF UNEXERCISED IN-THE-MONEY OPTIONS AT FISCAL YEAR-END (\$) EXERCISABLE/UNEXERCISABLE
Paul A. Ricci Michael K. Tivnan Wayne Crandall Richard S. Palmer Ben Wittner	226,907/855,029 151,770/403,012	0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0

⁽¹⁾ Based on a per share price of \$0.4688, the closing price of our common stock as reported by The Nasdaq National Market on December 29, 2000, the last trading day of the fiscal year.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to the beneficial ownership of our common stock as of March 26, 2000, as to (1) each person (or group of affiliated persons) who is known by us to own beneficially more than 5% of our common stock; (2) each of our directors; (3) each of our executive officers; and (4) all directors and executive officers as a group.

NAME AND ADDRESS OF BENEFICIAL OWNER(1)	NUMBER OWNED(2)	RIGHT TO ACQUIRE(3)	PERCENT OF OUTSTANDING SHARES (4)
Xerox Imaging Systems, Inc.(5)	11,853,602		25.7%
Stamford, CT 06904 State of Wisconsin Investment Board	3,867,196		8.4%
>Madison, WI 53707			
Paul A. Ricci	155,000	952 , 500	*
Michael K. Tivnan	82,500	311,907	*
Mark B. Myers		15,000	*
J. Larry Smart	2,097	71,250	*
Katharine A. Martin	1,000	20,000	*
Robert G. Teresi	172,186	894,586	*
Robert J. Frankenberg	,	146,708	*
Wayne S. Crandall	28,000	199,917	*
Richard S. Palmer	2,000	193,750	*
Ben S. Wittner	4,408	69,251	*
persons)	447,191	2,874,869	1.0%

^{*} Less than 1%.

- (1) Unless otherwise indicated, the address for the following stockholders is c/o ScanSoft, Inc., 9 Centennial Drive, Peabody, Massachusetts 01960.
- (2) Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission and:
 - Includes shares for which the named person has sole voting and investment

power, has shared voting and investment power, or holds in a profit sharing plan account, and

- Excludes shares that may be acquired through stock option exercises.

58

61

- (3) Shares that can be acquired through stock option exercise through May 25, 2001.
- (4) Applicable percentage ownership is based on 46,132,287 shares of common stock outstanding as of March 26, 2001.
- (5) Does not include a warrant to purchase up to 509,452 shares of common stock and 3,562,238 shares of non-voting Series B Preferred Stock as of March 26, 2001.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

We are a party to multiple non-exclusive agreements with Xerox Corporation in which we agreed to license Xerox the royalty-bearing right to copy and distribute certain versions of Pagis, TextBridge and PaperPort software programs with Xerox's multi-function peripherals. In addition, we are a party to a license agreement with Xerox that includes limited licenses and the assignment of certain patents and trademarks. During 2000, Xerox paid us approximately \$5.1 million under these agreements.

On September 13, 1999, we purchased 600,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock, par value \$.10 per share, at a cost of \$.25 per share for a total investment of \$150,000 in BookmarkCentral.com (which was recently renamed EchoBahn.com, Inc.). J. Larry Smart, one of our directors, is a founder and the current President and Chief Executive Officer of EchoBahn.

PART IV

- ITEM 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
 - (a) The following documents are filed as a part of this Report:
 - (1) Financial Statements -- See Index to Financial Statements in Item $8\ \mathrm{of}\ \mathrm{this}\ \mathrm{Report}.$
 - (2) Financial Statement Schedule -- The following financial statement schedule for our fiscal years 2000, 1999 and 1998 is contained in Item 8 of this Report:
 - II -- Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves

Report of Pricewaterhouse Coopers LLP, Independent Accountants. Refer to Item 8 above.

- All other schedules have been omitted as the requested information is inapplicable or the information is presented in the financial statements or related notes included as part of this Report.
 - (3) Exhibits -Refer to Item 14(c) below.
- (b) Reports on Form 8-K.

NONE.

(c) Exhibits.

Exhibits (numbered in accordance with Item 601 of Regulation S-K)

EXHIBIT NO.	DESCRIPTION OF EXHIBITS
2.1(1)	Agreement and Plan of Merger dated December 2, 1998, between
· ,	Visioneer, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and ScanSoft, Inc.,
2.2(2)	a Delaware corporation. Agreement and Plan of Reorganization, dated January 15, 2000, by and among ScanSoft, Inc., a Delaware corporation, Scorpion Acquisitions Corporation, a Delaware corporation
	and a wholly-owned subsidiary of ScanSoft, and Caere Corporation, a Delaware corporation.
3.1(3)	Bylaws of Registrant.
3.2(2)	Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Registrant.
4.1(1)	Specimen Common Stock Certificate.
4.2(4)	Preferred Shares Rights Agreement, dated as of October 23, 1996, between the Registrant and U.S. Stock Transfer Corporation, including the Certificate of Designation of Rights, Preferences and Privileges of Series A Participating Preferred Stock, the form of Rights Certificate and Summary of Rights attached thereto as Exhibits A, B and C, respectively.
4.3(1)	Common Stock Purchase Warrant
4.4(1)	Registration Rights Agreement, dated December 2, 1998,
	between the Registrant and Xerox Corporation.
10.1(3)	Form of Indemnification Agreement.
10.2(3) **	1995 Directors' Option Plan and form of Option Agreement.
10.3(3)	LZW Paper Input System Patent License Agreement dated October 20, 1995 between the Registrant and Unisys Corporation.
10.4(3)	Patent License agreement dated November 13, 1995 between the Registrant and Wang Laboratories, Inc.
10.5(5)	Software Distribution Agreement dated April 26, 1995 between Xerox Imaging Systems, Inc. and Tech Data Corporation.
10.6(5)	Assignment, Assumption, Renewal and Modification Agreement dated June 18, 1997 between Xerox Imaging Systems, Inc., the Registrant and Tech Data Product Management, Inc.
10.7(5)	Distribution Agreement dated September 22, 1993 between Ingram Micro, Inc. and Xerox Imaging Systems, Inc., as amended.
10.8(5)	Gold Disk Bundling Agreement: Pagis SE & Pagis Pro, dated June 29, 1998 between Xerox Corporation, through its Channels Group and the Registrant, as amended.
10.9(5)	Gold Disk Bundling Agreement dated March 25, 1998 between Xerox Corporation, Office Document Products Group and the Registrant.
10.10(6)	Caere Corporation Non-Employee Directors' Stock Option Plan
10.11(7)**	Stand Alone Stock Option Agreement Number 1
10.12(8)**	Employment Agreement dated August 21, 2000, by and between the Registrant and Paul A. Ricci.
10.13(9)**	Employment Agreement dated August 21, 2000, by and between the Registrant and Michael K. Tivnan.
10.14	Lease Agreement dated the 18th day of December 2000 by and between James M. Salar, as trustee of the JMS Realty Trust and the Registrant.
10.15+	Gold Disk Bundling Agreement between the Registrant and Xerox Corporation dated as of September 30, 1999, as amended by Amendment Number 1 dated as of January 1, 2000.

63

EXHIBIT NO. DESCRIPTION OF EXHIBITS

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

24.1 Power of Attorney (See signature page).

- ** Denotes Management compensatory plan or arrangement.
- + Confidential Treatment requested pursuant to a request for confidential treatment filed with the Commission on March 30, 2001. The portions of the exhibit for which confidential treatment has been requested have been omitted from the exhibit. The omitted information has been filed separately with the Commission as part of the confidential treatment request.
- (1) Incorporated by reference from the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (No. 333-70603) filed with the Commission on January 14, 1999.
- (2) Incorporated by reference from the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (No. 333-96487) filed with the Commission on February 9, 2000.
- (3) Incorporated by reference from the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-98356) filed with the Commission on October 19, 1995.
- (4) Incorporated by reference from the Registrant's current Report on Form 8-K dated October 30, 1996.
- (5) Incorporated by reference from the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 3, 1999.
- (6) Incorporated by reference from the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-33464) filed with the Commission on March 29, 2000.
- (7) Incorporated by reference from the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-49656) filed with the Commission on November 9, 2000.
- (8) Incorporated by reference from the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2000.
- (9) Incorporated by reference from the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2000.

61

64

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this Report on Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Peabody, State of Massachusetts, on March 30, 2001.

SCANSOFT, INC.

By: /s/ PAUL A. RICCI

Paul A. Ricci Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL THESE PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Paul A. Ricci and Richard S. Palmer jointly and severally, his attorneys-in-fact, each with the power of substitution, for him in any and all capacities, to sign any amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K and to file the same, with exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and conforming all that each said attorneys-in-fact, or his substitute or substitutes, may do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report on Form 10-K has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the date indicated.

Date: March 30, 2001	/s/ PAUL A. RICCI
	Paul A. Ricci, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board (Principal Executive Officer)
Date: March 30, 2001	/s/ MICHAEL K. TIVNAN
	Michael K. Tivnan, President, Chief Operating Officer and Director
Date: March 30, 2001	/s/ RICHARD S. PALMER
	Richard S. Palmer, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, (Principal Financial Officer)
Date: March 30, 2001	/s/ J. LARRY SMART
	J. Larry Smart, Director
Date: March 30, 2001	/s/ MARK MYERS
	Mark Myers, Director
Date: March 30, 2001	/s/ KATHARINE A. MARTIN
	Katharine A. Martin, Director
Date: March 30, 2001	/s/ ROBERT G. TERESI
	Robert G. Teresi, Director
Date: March 30, 2001	/s/ ROBERT J. FRANKENBERG
	Robert J. Frankenberg, Director

Exhibit 10.14

LEASE AGREEMENT

This Lease Agreement, dated the 18th day of December 2000, by and between JAMES M. SALAR, as he is trustee of the JMS Realty Trust under a Declaration of Trust dated August 8, 1986 and recorded with the Essex South District Registry of Deeds in book 8546 at page 472, having a business address at 650 Sanctuary Drive, Boca Raton, Florida 33431 (hereinafter referred to as "Landlord") and SCANSOFT, INC., a Delaware corporation, having a business address at 9 Centennial Drive, Peabody, Massachusetts 01960 (hereinafter referred to as "Tenant")

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, by a Lease made as of the 30th day of April 1991 (hereinafter referred to as the "Xerox Lease") and modified by a Lease Amendment dated as of the 29th day of March 1996 (hereinafter referred to as the "Xerox Amendment"), Landlord leased to Xerox Corporation certain premises known as 9 Centennial Park Drive, City of Peabody, County of Essex, Commonwealth of Massachusetts, including 37,636 rentable square feet of space in a Building more fully described in the Xerox Lease (hereinafter referred to as the "Premises");

WHEREAS, in or about February 1999, Xerox Corporation purported to assign to Tennant the Xerox Lease as modified, and thereafter Tenant has occupied the Premises as a subtenant; and

Whereas Landlord and Tenant desire to enter into a new lease of the Premises effective as of July 31, 2000, when the Xerox Lease as modified expires, subject to the following terms and conditions;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of one dollar (\$1.00) and other good and valuable consideration, paid by each party in hand to the other, the receipt and sufficiency whereof is hereby acknowledged, Landlord and Tenant do hereby agree as follows:

- Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Lease Agreement, all provisions of the Xerox Lease as modified by the Xerox Amendment are incorporated by this reference.
- The definitions of "Tenant" in the Xerox Lease and the Xerox Amendment are deleted, and the above definition of "Tenant" is substituted.
- 3. Paragraph 2 of the Xerox Lease and paragraph 1 of the Xerox Amendment are deleted, and the following is substituted:
 - "The term of this Lease is a period of five (5) years, commencing August 1, 2001 and ending on July 31, 2006, both dates inclusive."
- 4. Paragraph 3 of the Xerox Lease and paragraph 4 of the Xerox Amendment are deleted, and the following is substituted:
 - "The annual rental shall be the applicable amount specified in the following subparagraphs (a) through (d).
- "(a) The rental for the first year of the rent shall be \$395,178.00 per annum (\$32,931.50 per month).
- "(b) The rental for the second year of the term shall be computed as of August 1, 2002 and shall be the product of the rental for the first year of the term multiplied by the larger of the integer one (1) or the Cost of Living Factor as defined in the following

subparagraph (d) calculated using Base Index Number from July 2000.

"(c) The rental for each of the third through the fifth years of the term shall be computed as of the first day of each of those years and shall be the product of the rental for the immediately preceding year multiplied by the larger of the integer (1) or the Cost of Living Factor as defined in the following subparagraph (d) calculated using a Base Index Number from the month of the Current Index Number used in the last preceding calculation of rental hereunder.

"(d) The `Cost of Living Factor' shall be computed as follows using the Boston Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics of the United States Department of Labor: (i) The index number indicated in the row entitled `all items' for the month specified in subparagraph (b) or (c) (whichever is applicable) shall be the `Base Index Number'; and the corresponding index number for the last month published prior to the computation using the Cost of Living Factor shall be the `Current Index Number'. (ii) The Cost of Living Factor shall be the sum of the integer one (1) and the increase of the Current Index Number over the Base Index Number expressed as a percentage. To calculate such percentage increase, subtract the Base Index Number from the Current Index Number and divide the difference by the Base Index Number. (iii) If publication of the index hereinbefore referred to shall be discontinued, computation of the Cost of Living Factor shall thereafter be based on the most comparable statistics published by either an agency of the United States or a responsible financial periodical of recognized authority. In that event, or in the event that the index ceases publishing statistics for Boston or for `all items' or ceases publishing such figures monthly, the method of computation hereinbefore specified shall be equitably adjusted so as to carry out the intent of this subparagraph as nearly as possible in the circumstances. (iv) Any dispute between the parties concerning a claimed error in computation of the Cost of Living Factor or the selection of `comparable statistics' or the equitable adjustment of the method of computation shall be resolved by arbitration pursuant to paragraph 50."

5. The words "intentionally deleted" are deleted from paragraph 6 of the Xerox Lease, and the following is substituted:

"SECURITY DEPOSIT

4

"Landlord acknowledges receipt of the sum of \$100,000.00 as a deposit to secure Tenant's diligent performance of all Tenant's obligations hereunder. (a) On or about November 10 of each year during the term Landlord shall pay to Tenant interest on the said deposit together with any addition thereto (or the balance therefore from time to time outstanding) except that if Tenant is then in default hereunder such interest shall be likewise held by Landlord and shall become an additional deposit. The rate of such interest shall be the rate then paid by savings banks in the Town of Canton on their ordinary passbook accounts. (b) Tenant shall not in any event charge against the said deposit or interest thereon any amount due from Tenant. However, after the end of the

term, if Tenant shall have surrendered the Premises in accordance with paragraph 39 and is not otherwise in default hereunder, the said sum of \$100,000.00 together with any addition thereto (or the balance thereof then remaining) shall be repaid to Tenant by Landlord.

 Without limiting the provisions of Paragraph 7 of the Xerox Lease, Tenant agrees at its sole expense

- a. as soon as practicable within the electrical room, (i) to extend the wallboard to the underside of the ceiling structure; (ii) to frame the door opening that allows access to the firewall; and (iii) to make any and all changes to the overhead electrical wiring behind this new door suggested by City & Suburban Electric, Inc.; and
- b. not later than May 15, 2001 to make all necessary repairs to the wallboard, repaint the Premises, and, after painting, replace any missing cove moldings.
- 7. Without prejudice to the provisions of paragraph 12 of the Xerox Amendment, Tenant and Amergent, Inc. jointly and severally agree at their sole expense
 - a. as soon as practicable, to provide full architect's "as built" drawings showing the current internal floor plans of the Building as defined in the Xerox Lease; and
 - b. at the end of the Term of this Lease Agreement, to restore the Building to the floor plan configuration that was initially submitted by Xerox Corporation and approved by Landlord insofar as Landlord in his sale discretion shall then request, it being understood that Landlord may selectively request certain restoration activity while choosing to leave other areas as is.
- 8. Paragraph 15 of the Xerox Lease is deleted, and the following is substituted:
 - "Tenant shall have the right with the prior written consent of Landlord, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, to assign this Lease or to sublease all or any portion of the Premises, but any such assignment of subletting shall not relieve Tenant of its obligations hereunder."
- 9. Paragraph 33 of the Xerox Lease is amended by deleting both addresses for Tenant and substituting "ScanSoft, Inc., 9 Centennial Drive, Peabody, MA 01960."
- 10. Paragraphs 5, 16 and 48 and Exhibit C of the Xerox Lease and paragraphs 4 and 16 of the Xerox Amendment are deleted.
- 11. Tenant intends to request approval for three changes to the Premises discussed by Tenant with Landlord on September 19, 2000, namely (a) an expansion of the computer room area; (b) cubicle office space in the `tiled floor' area of the lower floor; and (c) construction of hard offices on the lower floor. Upon Tenant's submission of architectural drawings, prepared at Tenant's Sole expense, depicting those changes, Landlord will consider approval thereof, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. If Landlord grants approval, Tenant shall obtain the necessary municipal approvals and permits and hire a licensed contractor to implement these changes.

5

12. In entering into this Lease Agreement, Landlord has relied on financial statements as of December 31, 1999 furnished by Tenant. No later than April 15, 2001, Tenant shall furnish to Landlord audited financial statements through December 31, 2000 together with the most recent financial statements for the first quarter of calendar 2001 (collectively the "2001 financials"). If Landlord is not reasonably satisfied with Tenant's then current financial condition as shown by the 2001 Financials, Landlord may, by written notice received by Tenant not later than April 30, 2001, elect to

increase the required security deposit by an amount not in excess of \$300,000.00 The amount of the additional security deposit (subject to the \$300,000.00 maximum) shall be at the sole discretion of the Landlord based upon its review of Tenant's financials statements. Tenant shall pay the additional security deposit to Landlord no later than May 15, 2001, and the additional deposit shall be held pursuant to paragraph 6 of the Xerox Lease (added by paragraph 5 of this Lease Agreement). Should Tenant fail to remit the additional deposit by that date, Landlord may, by written notice, elect to rescind this Lease Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Landlord and Tenant have duly executed this Lease Agreement under seal as of the day and year first above written.

Witness:	THE JMS REALTY TRUST
	By: /s/ James M. Salah
Witness:	James M. Salah, Trustee SCANSOFT, INC.
	By: /s/ Michael Tivnan President
	And /s/ Richard Palmer

SCANSOFT GOLD DISK AGREEMENT

SCANSOFT - XEROX GOLD DISK BUNDLING AGREEMENT

This Agreement is between XEROX CORPORATION, with offices located at 200 Cross Keys Office Park, Fairport, NY 14450 ("Xerox") and SCANSOFT, INC., with offices located at 9 Centennial Drive, Peabody, MA 01960 ("ScanSoft") as agreed in writing to be bound by the terms and conditions hereof.

1.0 DEFINITIONS

- 1.1 "Software" means the ScanSoft-brand software product(s) listed in Attachment I hereto and those whose specifications are detailed in Attachment IV hereto, together with Documentation (defined below) related thereto.
- "Xerox Affiliates" means Xerox Corporation, its Subsidiaries (defined below) and Affiliates (defined below), and their respective Subsidiaries and Affiliates.
- "Subsidiaries" means any company as to which another company (i) owns or controls directly or indirectly more than fifty percent (50%) (by nominal number of units) of the outstanding stock or of the outstanding stock conferring the right to vote at general meetings, or (ii) has the right to elect the majority of the Board of Directors thereof or its equivalent, or (iii) has the right directly or indirectly to appoint or remove the management. "Affiliates" means any company or other business entity in which at least twenty percent (20%) interest is owned or controlled directly or indirectly by Xerox or by a Subsidiary of Xerox.
- 1.4 "Xerox Products" shall mean products described in Attachment II.
- 1.5 "Documentation" shall mean all written text including but not limited to manuals, brochures, specifications and software descriptions and all sales documentation and service documentation, and related materials customarily needed for use with Software, including all Update Software. Such documentation shall be made available in printed and camera ready forms if such forms are or become available to ScanSoft.
- "Upgrade" shall mean a software release by ScanSoft which both (i) is designated by ScanSoft as a version change, for example TextBridge Pro 8.x to TextBridge Pro 9.x or higher, from current versions as are referenced in Attachment I hereto, or as such versions may be subsequently renamed to a convention which does not utilize X.X nomenclature and (ii) contains substantially new functionality compared to prior releases or is written in a different programming language.
- 1.7 "Update" shall mean a software release by ScanSoft relating to Software that is not an Upgrade.

2.0 ADDITIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PARTIES

- 2.1 GOLD DISK. ScanSoft agrees to license Software pursuant to the terms of Section 6.0 below and to provide to Xerox a master copy of the Software, including Documentation on disk (the "Gold Disk"). Pursuant to the terms of Section 6.0 below, Xerox may elect, at its sole option, to distribute and sublicense such Software for use with Xerox Products. Xerox shall not distribute the Software other than for use with Xerox Products.
- 2.2 END USER/SCANSOFT AGREEMENTS. In the event that an end user requires additional licenses, other than as described in Attachment I, the end

user shall seek such licenses directly from ScanSoft. Xerox need not be a party to such additional licenses and shall have no liability or responsibility therefor. Xerox shall have no liability if end users exceed the configurations and seats they have purchased. ScanSoft shall provide the server licenses as shown in Attachment I at [**]. If Xerox desires to distribute additional configurations other than those described in Attachment I, or additional licenses, the parties agree to negotiate an amendment to this Agreement in good faith.

** Certain information on this page has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.

Confidential

1

2

SCANSOFT GOLD DISK AGREEMENT

- 2.3 MARKETING. The ScanSoft Software logo, provided to Xerox upon signing of this Agreement in both electronic and camera ready form, may at Xerox' option, be displayed in all advertising, product literature, and in a conspicuous location on the Xerox packaging. ScanSoft will provide the artwork for the logo.
 - Xerox shall provide ScanSoft, at no charge, one (1) unit each of the launch configuration of Xerox Product software to be used solely for support training, QA testing and promotional activities.
- 2.4 COOPERATIVE MARKETING. ScanSoft and Xerox will honor the other's reasonable requests for consultations and visits to each other's facilities and trade shows for purposes of cooperatively marketing each party's products
- 2.5 RELATIONSHIP MANAGER. ScanSoft and Xerox shall each appoint a manager to oversee the parties' relationship relative to the Software. These managers will be responsible for resolving issues that may from time to time arise, will meet at least twice per calendar year, and will be responsible for planning and developing a marketing program plan to facilitate the promotion of both parties' scan related solutions.
- DELIVERY OF XEROX DEVICE. Xerox shall deliver one (1) Document Center 2.6 265ST multifunctional device at no cost to ScanSoft. ScanSoft agrees to utilize the subject device for the sole purpose of developing and testing the Software in furtherance of this Agreement. ScanSoft shall purchase, at its own cost and expense, all supplies and related materials required for the operation of this DC 265ST, and shall operate the same in accordance with its specifications, and use supplies approved for such deliverable. Title to the DC 265ST shall remain with Xerox at all times, but risk of loss for the same shall be, while the DC 265ST is in the possession or control of ScanSoft, on ScanSoft. ScanSoft shall return the DC 265ST to Xerox upon termination or expiration of this Agreement in the same condition as when delivered to ScanSoft, normal wear and tear excepted. Xerox agrees to provide ongoing repair and maintenance, to be applicable only for normal wear and tear activity, and to provide ongoing software updates for subject device at no cost to ScanSoft as of the Effective date of this Agreement through December 31, 1999. As of January 1, 2000, ScanSoft agrees to purchase a full service maintenance agreement (FSMA) from Xerox for the subject device and further agrees to ensure the FSMA is active throughout the term of this Agreement.

3.0 ROYALTIES

3.1 The Software shall be licensed for the royalty fees as set forth in Attachment I hereto. Xerox shall within [**] following each calendar quarter, submit to ScanSoft a statement showing the royalties owed for

the Software. Calculation of the royalties shall be based on [**] of Xerox Products as further described in Attachment I. Payment of royalties due shall be made within the same [**] day period. Xerox may copy the Software for Xerox' and Xerox Affiliates' internal use, demonstration, and promotion purposes without paying a royalty.

- 4.0 SUPPORT AND DOCUMENTATION
- 4.1 ScanSoft will provide Second and Third Level Support for the Software to Xerox for a period of [**] from the Effective Date of this Agreement, as it may be reasonably requested by Xerox, to fulfill its obligations to its resellers and end users. The details of technical support responsibilities of ScanSoft and Xerox are listed in Attachment III.
- 4.2 If a customer problem is determined to be caused solely by a defect in media, Xerox shall issue a replacement media to a customer and Xerox agrees to pay for all associated costs incurred by such replacement except that no additional royalty is required.
- Documentation and Sales Literature: ScanSoft shall furnish to Xerox, on an ongoing basis during the term hereof, [**], fully translated end user Documentation and such materials as Xerox may reasonably request for use by Xerox to prepare Documentation, brochures and other product literature, including, but not limited to, operators and maintenance manuals, catalogs, specification sheets, and other data necessary or appropriate for distribution by Xerox.
- ** Certain information on this page has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.

Confidential

2

3

SCANSOFT GOLD DISK AGREEMENT

- As more specifically set forth in Attachment III, Paragraph 9, ScanSoft shall provide to Xerox, [**], one (1) technical training course with respect to the servicing and support of Software at a location designated by Xerox. The course will be provided in accordance with a schedule acceptable to Xerox. ScanSoft shall provide Xerox one copy of such training materials, which it may copy and distribute for purposes of training other employees or authorized agents, resellers and concessionaires of Xerox and Xerox Affiliates. ScanSoft shall support Xerox with subject matter experts to facilitate Xerox' conducting a minimum of two (2) additional technical training courses.
- 4.5 Should Xerox opt to license customized or Upgraded Software from ScanSoft, ScanSoft agrees to offer the training as described in 4.4 hereof for such customized or Upgraded Software, [**].
- 5.0 TITLE

Except as may specifically be provided herein or as mutually agreed in writing, title and all rights of ownership to the Software, and all copies of all or any part thereof, are and remain with ScanSoft at all times. Xerox agrees not to remove ScanSoft's copyright notice (using the international copyright symbol) as provided by ScanSoft on the Gold Disk.

- 6.0 LICENSE
- 6.1 LICENSE GRANT. ScanSoft hereby grants to Xerox and Xerox Affiliates, under ScanSoft's applicable patents, copyrights and other intellectual property rights, a nonexclusive, worldwide right and license to use,

market, maintain, reproduce [**], distribute (acting directly or indirectly through their authorized agents, resellers and concessionaires), prepare, display, lease, and [**] the Software [**], and Documentation [**]. ScanSoft grants to Xerox and Xerox Affiliates the [**] right and license to reproduce, distribute (acting directly or indirectly through their authorized agents, resellers and concessionaires) all or any part of such Documentation and materials. ScanSoft further grants Xerox the right to create and/or modify any or all parts of Documentation and such materials, and Xerox [**] of such Documentation and materials.

- 6.2 Each copy of the Software shall be distributed with (1) end user documentation and (2) an end user license agreement.
- 6.3 ScanSoft shall ensure backward compatibly between the Software, including all associated Updates and Upgrades, and the Xerox' Products, as defined in the specifications detailed in Attachment V, throughout the term of this agreement. Xerox shall test such Software compatibility in its standard end-user configuration. If the Software and Xerox' Products are not compatible, then Xerox may use the options stated in 7.3 as a remedy.
- 6.4 ScanSoft will provide Xerox written notification via e-mail or facsimile of pending new Upgrades and Updates whether such Updates are called releases, new versions, etc. Such notice will also include dates and methods of availability and will be given sufficiently in advance of publication in order for Xerox to react in a timely manner. Updates will be provided [**] to Xerox not later than contemporaneous with ScanSoft's making such Updates available to its other OEM licensees. Such Updates will be licensed to XEROX under the terms of this Agreement
- 6.5 Licensing of Software Upgrades is not covered under this Agreement.

 Xerox is under no obligation to purchase Software Upgrades. ScanSoft will make Upgrades available to Xerox not later than such Upgrades are offered by ScanSoft to ScanSoft's OEM licensees. Any Upgrade shall be covered by an addendum to this Agreement; provided, however, that ScanSoft agrees [**]
- 6.6 If there is Non Recurring Engineering (NRE) required to be performed by ScanSoft to bring the software to the specifications required by Xerox, such NRE tasks will be specifically itemized in Attachment IV hereto. NRE tasks itemized in Attachment IV shall be performed at the cost and expense of ScanSoft, and all work product resulting from such NRE shall belong to ScanSoft and become part of the Software.
- ** Certain information on this page has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.

Confidential

3

4

SCANSOFT GOLD DISK AGREEMENT

7.0 WARRANTY

- 7.1 ScanSoft warrants that the Gold Disk will be free from known viruses and material program defects, and will perform in material conformity with the specifications in Attachment IV for a period of ninety (90) days from the date of delivery of the master Gold Disk.
- 7.2 If any material program errors with the Software are discovered by Xerox, ScanSoft shall use reasonable efforts to correct such errors [**] to Xerox within the appropriate response times as specified in Attachment III, following receipt of written notice from Xerox of such

errors.

- 7.3 If the program errors of 7.2 cannot be eliminated by ScanSoft per the response times specified in Attachment III, then as Xerox' remedy and at its option Xerox may:
 - (i) extend the correction period by an amount of time as may be determined by Xerox; or
 - (ii) approve the Software with an equitable reduction in Royalties as agreed between the parties; or
- 7.4 EXCEPT FOR THE EXPRESS WARRANTIES SET FORTH HEREIN, SCANSOFT HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND XEROX HEREBY EXPRESSLY WAIVES ANY AND ALL OTHER EXPRESS WARRANTIES OR REPRESENTATIONS OF ANY KIND OR NATURE, AND ANY AND ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.

8.0 TERMINATION

- 8.1 This Agreement is effective upon the date of execution by ScanSoft and Xerox (Effective Date). Subject to the termination provisions set forth in this Agreement, the initial term shall commence on the Effective Date and run for a Twenty-four (24) month period. This Agreement may be renewed for successive one-year periods by mutual written consent of the parties.
- 8.2 Either ScanSoft or Xerox may terminate this Agreement by written notice of termination to the other party upon a material breach by the other party which has not been cured within forty-five (45) days of written notice of such breach. Confidential obligations pursuant to Section 13.0 below shall not be waived and shall survive termination.
- 8.3 Xerox reserves the right, in whole or in part, in the exercise of its discretion, to terminate this Agreement upon not less than forty-five (45) days written notice to ScanSoft.

9.0 EFFECT OF TERMINATION

- 9.1 Termination or nonrenewal shall not relieve either party of obligations incurred prior to termination or expiration. All monies due to ScanSoft from Xerox shall become immediately due and payable upon any termination.
- 9.2 Upon termination or expiration, Xerox shall, except as provided in this Section 9.2, (1) stop production and distribution of the Software and (2) cease use of the ScanSoft Software logo. Xerox shall destroy any ScanSoft software source code contained in all types of computer memory and all relevant materials and shall upon request so certify in writing to ScanSoft within thirty (30) days of termination or expiration. Notwithstanding the above, (1) Xerox may retain a reasonable quantity of the Software only for the purposes of providing its customers with ongoing support and (2) this Agreement shall remain in force and effect for software packaged with Xerox Products or under contract for sale or sublicense from Xerox Affiliates as of the termination or expiration date.
- ** Certain information on this page has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.
- 9.3 Survival. Termination of this Agreement shall not affect any existing agreements with customers or with Xerox Affiliates, and the license and

Confidential

5

SCANSOFT GOLD DISK AGREEMENT

following provisions shall also remain in force and effect according to their terms after termination expiration or of this Agreement: 4.3, 5.0, 7.0, 10.0, 11.0, 12.0, 13.0, 14.0, 15.0, 18.0, 19.0, 20.0, 21.0 22.0. Unless this Agreement expressly provides otherwise, or by its nature a provision cannot survive this Agreement, all other provisions of this Agreement shall, to the extent applicable, survive the expiration or any termination hereof.

10.0 INDEMNIFICATION

- ScanSoft represents and warrants that it has sufficient right, title and interest in and to the Software to enter into this Agreement and further warrants that it is not aware that the Software infringes any patent, copyright or other proprietary right of a third party and that it has not been notified by a third party of a possibility that the Software might infringe any patent, copyright or other proprietary right of a third party.
- 10.2 ScanSoft shall defend and indemnify (including reasonable costs and attorney fees) Xerox and Xerox Affiliates from, and pay any judgment for, any claim, action or other proceeding brought against Xerox or Xerox Affiliates arising from the use of the Software, providing that such Xerox or Xerox Affiliates promptly notifies ScanSoft in writing of any action or claim, allows ScanSoft, at ScanSoft's expense, to direct the defense, gives ScanSoft full information and reasonable assistance required to defend such suit, claim or proceeding, at no out-of-pocket expense to Xerox, and allows ScanSoft to pay any judgment, provided further that ScanSoft shall have no liability for any claim, action or other proceeding based upon acts or omissions by Xerox, the combination of the Software with hardware or software not provided by ScanSoft if the claim relates to such combination, or for settlements or costs incurred without the knowledge of ScanSoft. Notwithstanding the above, for so long as Xerox Affiliates act in accordance with the above provisions, a Xerox Affiliate may participate in actions or claims that are defended by ScanSoft by its own counsel and at its own expense. In the event that ScanSoft fails to actively defend or becomes unable to defend any action or claim, then a Xerox Affiliate, at its sole option, may assume the defense thereof. To avoid infringement, ScanSoft may, at its option, and at no charge to Xerox, obtain a license or right to continue the use of the Software or modify the Software so it no longer infringes, but is still a functional equivalent of the Software, or substitute a functional equivalent of the Software.
- 10.3 The foregoing indemnity does not apply, and Xerox agrees to defend and indemnify ScanSoft (including reasonable costs and attorneys' fees), with respect to any claim brought against ScanSoft alleging patent or copyright infringement allegedly arising from: (1) the unauthorized combination or utilization by Xerox of any Software or (2) the unauthorized modification of any Software by Xerox; (3) the portion of any Software manufactured by ScanSoft to Xerox' explicit specifications; (4) the production of images by Xerox in violation of the proprietary rights of third parties, providing that ScanSoft promptly notifies Xerox in writing of any such action or claim, allows Xerox, at Xerox's expense, to direct the defense, gives Xerox full information and reasonable assistance required to defend such suit, claim or proceeding, at no out-of-pocket expense to ScanSoft, and allows Xerox to pay any judgment, provided further that Xerox shall have no liability for any claim, action or other proceeding based upon acts or omissions by ScanSoft, the combination of the Software with

hardware or software not provided by Xerox if the claim relates to such combination, or for settlements or costs incurred without the knowledge of Xerox.

- 11.0 DISCLAIMER
- 11.1 IN NO EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER FOR LOST CONTRACTS OR LOST PROFITS OR ANY SPECIAL, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES IN ANY WAY ARISING OUT OF THE USE OF THE SOFTWARE OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT HOWEVER CAUSED UNDER A CLAIM OF ANY TYPE OR NATURE BASED ON ANY THEORY OF LIABILITY (INCLUDING CONTRACT, TORT OR WARRANTY) EVEN IF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES HAS BEEN COMMUNICATED. THIS DISCLAIMER DOES NOT APPLY TO THE AFORESAID INDEMNIFICATION.
- 12.0 FORCE MAJEURE

Confidential

5

6

SCANSOFT GOLD DISK AGREEMENT

- 12.1 Neither party shall be liable to the other for its failure to perform any of its obligations hereunder during any period in which such performance is delayed by circumstances beyond its reasonable control, provided that the party experiencing such delay promptly notifies the other party of the delay.
- 13.0 CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION
- 13.1 Definition of Confidential Information.
- (a) "Xerox Information" means information concerning current, future, or proposed Xerox products or processes, techniques and apparatuses; business forecasts and procurement requirements; plans and technology relating to the foregoing, and plans and technology related to Xerox Affiliates' printers, copiers, and other input and output devices.
- (b) "ScanSoft Information" means information obtained from ScanSoft concerning (i) non-public future products of ScanSoft or (ii) interface protocols for the Software.
- "Confidential Information" means Xerox Information or ScanSoft
 Information, as the case may be, disclosed between ScanSoft and one or
 more Xerox Affiliate between the Effective Date of this Agreement and
 the termination date of this Agreement as provided in Section 8.0 above
 provided that such Information is in writing or other tangible form and
 marked as proprietary, confidential, Private Data, Doculock(R), or the
 like when disclosed or, if disclosed in verbal, audio, or other
 non-tangible form, only if summarized in a writing so marked and
 delivered to the other Party within 60 days of such disclosure, in
 which case the Xerox Information or ScanSoft Information, as the case
 may be, identified in such summary shall be subject to the restrictions
 in this Section 13.0.
- Each party agrees not to intentionally disclose or intentionally make available to any third party information received from the other party (hereinafter referred to as "Information" or "Confidential Information") in any form without the express written approval of the disclosing party.
- Receiving party shall not intentionally circulate the Information within its own organization except to those with a specific need to know such Information. If written approval by disclosing party is given to receiving party to disclose Information to a third party, receiving party shall impose similar confidential restrictions on such third

party to which it discloses such Information.

- 13.4 The obligations on receiving party recited herein shall terminate with respect to any particular portion of such Information when and to the extent that it is or becomes:
 - (i) part of the public domain through no fault of receiving party;
 - (ii) communicated by disclosing party to a third party free of any obligation of confidence;
 - (iii) independently developed by receiving party without any reference to the Information;
 - (iv) known to receiving party free of any obligation of confidence.
- 13.5 In no event shall the obligation of receiving party with respect to the Information extend beyond three (3) years from the date of disclosure.
- Upon termination of this Agreement, the receiving party will promptly return the Information to the disclosing party or shall certify that such Information has been destroyed except that the receiving party may retain one (1) copy for archival purposes only.
- 14.0 ASSIGNMENT
- 14.1 This Agreement may not be assigned or transferred by either party without the prior written approval of the other party, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld; provided that ScanSoft may assign its rights to any purchaser of all or substantially all of its business, and Xerox may assign its rights hereunder, or any portion thereof, to any Subsidiary or Affiliate of Xerox or to any purchaser of all or substantially all of its equipment business in connection with which the Software is then used. Further, Xerox' or Xerox Affiliates' rights and obligations under this Agreement may be exercised and performed in whole or in part by any Subsidiary or Affiliate of Xerox, provided that Xerox shall continue to be responsible to ScanSoft for the performance of its obligations under this Agreement. Subject to the limitations heretofore expressed, this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties, their successors, administrators, heirs and assigns.

Confidential

6

7

SCANSOFT GOLD DISK AGREEMENT

- 15.0 MODIFICATION
- 15.1 This Agreement shall not be modified or amended except by a written agreement signed by duly authorized representatives of ScanSoft and Xerox.
- 16.0 BANKRUPTCY OF SCANSOFT OR XEROX
- To the extent permitted by applicable law (including II U.S.C. Section 365) the non-defaulting party may terminate this Agreement immediately by written notice to the other in the event the other party makes an assignment for the benefit of its creditors, admits in writing an inability to pay debts as they mature, a trustee or receiver is appointed respecting all or a substantial part of the other party's assets, or a proceeding is instituted by or against the other party under any provision of the Federal Bankruptcy Act and is acquiesced in or is not dismissed within sixty (60) days, or results in an

adjudication of bankruptcy. To the extent applicable law prevents the non-defaulting party from terminating this Agreement, if it should wish to do so as described above, then the parties shall have only those rights and remedies permitted by applicable law, including the United States Bankruptcy Act, including but not limited to II U.S.C. Section 365.

- 16.2 Within thirty (30) days after delivery of the Gold Disk to Xerox, ScanSoft shall place with the Office of the General Counsel of XEROX one complete set of source code with Documentation for the software product identified as link agent, item 3 in Attachment I. The source code and Documentation shall be delivered for safekeeping to the Intellectual Property Department of Office of General Counsel, at 800 Long Ridge Road, Stamford, CT 06904, and shall not be made available to anyone outside the Office of the General Counsel unless (i) the conditions of section 7.3 (iii) are met, (ii) there is a breach of this Agreement by ScanSoft or (iii) in the event that ScanSoft files a petition for bankruptcy or in the event that a proceeding of bankruptcy is commenced for or against ScanSoft and is acquiesced in or is not dismissed within sixty (60) days, or results in an adjudication of bankruptcy. ScanSoft agrees to update and maintain the source code held in safekeeping to reflect all changes made to the link agent software product during the term of this Agreement.
- 17.0 COMPLIANCE WITH THE LAW
- 17.1 Each party represents and warrants compliance with all Federal, State and local laws, ordinances and regulations applicable to this Agreement including, but not limited to, (a) applicable requirements of (a) of the Fair Labor Standards Act, (b) Executive Order 11246, (c) the Vietnam Era Veterans Readjustment Assistance Act, and (d) the Rehabilitation Act.
- 18.0 NONPUBLICITY
- 18.1 Without prior written consent of the other Party, a party shall not (a) make any news release, public announcement, denial or confirmation of this Agreement or its subject matter, or (b) advertise or publish any facts relating to this Agreement.
- 19.0 CONTROLLING LAW
- 19.1 This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York.
- 20.0 GENERAL PROVISIONS
- 20.1 WAIVER. Failure of either party to require strict performance by the other party of any provision shall not affect the first party's right to require strict performance thereafter. Waiver by either party of a breach of any provision shall not waive either the provision itself or any subsequent breach.
- NO AGENCY. It is agreed and understood that neither Xerox nor ScanSoft has any authority to bind the other with respect to any matter hereunder. Under no circumstances shall either Xerox or ScanSoft have the right to act or make any commitment of any kind to any third party on behalf of the other or to represent the other in any way as an agent.

Confidential

7

8

SCANSOFT GOLD DISK AGREEMENT

inserted for convenience only, and shall not affect the construction or interpretation of any provision.

- 20.4 SEVERABILITY. If any provision of the Agreement is held invalid by any law, rule, order or regulation of any government, or by the final determination of any state or federal court, such invalidity shall not affect the enforceability of any other provisions not held to be invalid.
- ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, including all attachments and appendices hereto, constitutes the entire agreement of the parties as to the subject matter hereof and supersedes any and all prior oral or written memoranda, understandings and agreements as to such subject matter except that the agreement between Xerox Corporation and ScanSoft executed on or about March 25, 1998, and the agreement between Xerox Corporation and Visioneer, Inc., executed on or about November 15, 1996, for which ScanSoft assumed all rights and liabilities on March 2, 1999 shall not be superceded but may be modified as explicitly stated in this Agreement.

21.0 YEAR 2000 WARRANTY

- ScanSoft represents and warrants that the Software and ScanSoft's third party Software delivered under this Agreement is Year 2000 performance compliant and thus shall be able to accurately process date data (including, but not limited to, calculating, comparing, and sequencing) from, into, and between the twentieth and twenty-first centuries, including leap year calculations. The remedies available to Xerox for breach of this warranty shall include prompt repair or replacement of any Software and Third Party Software or part thereof whose non-compliance is discovered and made known to ScanSoft in writing. Nothing in this warranty shall be construed to limit any rights or other remedies Xerox may otherwise have under this Agreement with respect to uncorrected program errors or defects.
- 22.0 EXPORT; RESTRICTED RIGHTS
- 22.1 Xerox shall not export, re-export or transfer, whether directly or indirectly, Software, to any person or company who is a legal resident or is controlled by a legal resident of any proscribed country listed in the U.S. Export Administration regulations (or any equivalent thereof) unless properly authorized by the U.S. Government.
- 22.2 Software shall be provided to the U.S. Government with RESTRICTED RIGHTS. Use, duplication, or disclosure by the U.S. Government is subject to the restrictions as set forth in subparagraph (c) (1) (ii) of the Rights in Technical Data and Computer Software Clause as DFARS 252.227-7013 and FAR 52.227-19, as applicable. Manufacturer is ScanSoft.

23.0 NOTICE

Any notices given shall be deemed to have been received as follows: if sent by facsimile or other form of recorded communication, when transmitted; if sent by certified first class mail, on the date of delivery as shown on the return receipt; if sent by Federal Express or equivalent overnight delivery services or by personal delivery, on the date delivered. Until notified otherwise in writing, the correct addresses for notice under this Agreement shall be:

If to Xerox:

Rita Sherman
Xerox Corporation
200 Cross Keys, Building 815-000
Fairport, New York 14450
Phone: [**]
Fax: [**]
Email: [**]

Copy To: Office of General Counsel c/o Counsel to ODPG
Xerox Corporation
800 Long Ridge Road
Stamford, CT 06904

** Certain information on this page has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.

Confidential

9

SCANSOFT GOLD DISK AGREEMENT

If to ScanSoft:

Tom D'Errico ScanSoft, Inc. 9 Centennial Drive

Peabody, Massachusetts 01960

Phone: [**]
Fax: [**]
Email: [**]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the dates shown below.

SCANSOFT,	INC.	XEROX CORPO	ORATION
Ву:		By:	
Name:		Name:	
Title:		Title:	
Date:		Date:	
Address:	9 Centennial Drive	Address:	
	Peabody, MA 01960		Rochester, NY 14623
	USA		USA
Phone:	978-977-2000	Phone:	
Fax:	978-977-2425	Fax:	

** Certain information on this page has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.

Confidential

10

SCANSOFT GOLD DISK AGREEMENT

ATTACHMENT I

ScanSoft products 1-5 shall be collectively referred to as Software.

ITEM SCANSOFT PRODUCT ROYALTY(1) NUMBER OF INDIVIDUAL NUMBER OF SERVER LICENSES

USER LICENSES

			Class B Xerox Product	XEROX	Class B Xerox Product	CLASS A XEROX PRODUCT	Class B Xerox Product
1	TEXTBRIDGE PRO 8.X	[**]	[**]	25	50	1	2
2	PAPERPORT LE 6.X	[]	[]	25	50	1	2
3	LINK AGENT (REF. ATTACHMENT 4, SECTION 5.0)	[**]	f++1	[**]	[**]	[**]	[**]
4	INSTALLER (REF. ATTACHMENT 4, SECTION 5.0)	[^^]	[**]	[**]	[**]	[**]	[**]
5	UPGRADE FROM TEXTBRIDGE 98 TO TEXTBRIDGE PRO 8.X UPGRADE FROM PAPERPORT 4.04 TO PAPERPORT LE 6.X	See Below(2)	N/A	25	N/A	1	N/A

- 1. The Royalty for Class A and Class B Xerox Products shall be reduced to [**] and [**] respectively after Xerox has paid a total of [**] in royalties and fees under this Agreement.
- 2. The royalty for item number five above shall be a flat fee of [**] which shall be invoiced by ScanSoft on or about the Effective Date of this Agreement and paid by Xerox [**] days following receipt by Xerox of a valid invoice. Payment of such one time product upgrade will enable Xerox to update its current installed base to the Software included in the table above.

LICENSE FEE

Xerox shall pay ScanSoft a one-time [**] license fee of [**], which shall be invoiced by ScanSoft on or about the Effective Date of this Agreement and paid by Xerox [**] days following receipt by Xerox of a valid invoice.

ROYALTY CALCULATION

Class A Xerox Products are Xerox Products marketed at 20-40 pages per minute. Class B Xerox Products are Xerox Products marketed at 41-75 pages per minute. Beginning January 1, 2000 Xerox shall pay the applicable royalty for [**] of the [**] of Class A Xerox Products and for [**] of the [**] of Class B Xerox Products. Royalties accrue upon complete [**] Xerox Product at a customer's site and are subject to adjustment for Xerox' customer return policy for such units to the extent units are returned to Xerox.

PRIOR AGREEMENTS

Effective October 1, 1999, the royalty rate, calculation, and payment for the Bundled Solution License Fee for TextBridge Pro '98, as agreed between the parties in the prior agreement executed on or about March 25, 1998, reference article 3.0 shall be superceded and nullified by this Agreement. Also, effective October 1, 1999, the royalty rate, calculation, and payment for Visioneer PaperPort 4.04 software, as agreed between Visioneer, Inc. and Xerox Corporation executed on or about November 15, 1996, reference article 6.0, for which ScanSoft assumed all rights and liabilities on March 2, 1999, shall be superceded and nullified by this Agreement.

The royalties listed above are based on the following ScanSoft product pricing:

SCANSOFT	PRODUCT	Price per	Individual	User	License	Price per	Server	License
TextBridg	e Pro 8.x	[**]				[**]		
PaperPort LE 6.x		[* *]			[**]			
link agent		[* *]			[**]			
Installer			[**]				[**]	

** Certain information on this page has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.

Confidential

1.0

11

SCANSOFT GOLD DISK AGREEMENT

ATTACHMENT II

XEROX PRODUCTS

Xerox Products shall mean Xerox' document system product(s) that implement the architecture as set forth in Attachment V.

Future Xerox products requirements, as defined and communicated to ScanSoft from Xerox through revision and/or modification to the specifications in either Attachment IV or Attachment V, wherein both parties mutually agree to associated deliverables, schedule, and cost, shall be managed in accordance with the change control procedures outlined in Attachment VI hereto.

Confidential

11

12

SCANSOFT GOLD DISK AGREEMENT

ATTACHMENT III

SOFTWARE TECHNICAL SUPPORT AND TRAINING

1.) Software Support by ScanSoft and Xerox

ScanSoft will provide technical support to Xerox' customer support and engineering personnel, as it may be reasonably requested by Xerox, to fulfill its maintenance obligations to its resellers and end users. Technical support shall include telephone support to Xerox' Second and Third Level Support as well as engineering staff on the operation, integration and utilization of the Software, and maintenance modifications and bug corrections for the Software to bring them into conformance with the specifications. [**] When a customer problem is determined by Xerox' Customer Support to be associated directly with the Software and resolution of the problem is not within the range of training received or knowledge accrued by Xerox' Customer Support, Xerox' Customer Support shall contact ScanSoft's OEM telephone support for assistance as listed in 4.1 of this Attachment.

2.) Support Levels

- 2.1 First Level Support: Xerox support centers provide first level support to end customers. Cases that can be immediately answered and require no callback to the customer. No assistance from Second Level Support is required.
- 2.2 Second Level Support: Xerox support centers provide second level support to end customers. Cases that involve knowledge of the Software program, problem isolation or investigation by technical support technicians and may require a callback to the customer. Assistance from ScanSoft's OEM telephone support and/or Third Level Support may be required.
- 2.3 Third Level Support: Xerox support centers provide third level support to end customers. Cases that involve detailed knowledge of the Software program, problem isolation and investigation by Xerox engineers. Assistance and resolution may be required from ScanSoft.

- 3.) ScanSoft Response to Problems ranked by Severity
- 3.1 Severity 1 Problems Means the Software has a problem, defect or malfunction which renders the Software or a major component of the Software inoperative. With a Severity 1 Problem there is a significant and on-going interruption to the end user or customers business or there is an unrecoverable loss or corruption of data. No circumvention is available. ScanSoft agrees to commence an investigation of any "Severity 1 Problems" within one (1) business day of notice by Xerox and initiate the development of corrections immediately thereafter. ScanSoft shall commit commercially reasonable efforts to provide Xerox with a fix, workaround or permanent fix within fourteen (14) business days. ScanSoft agrees to provide feedback specifying the resolution outlook timeline to Xerox within two (2) business days of initial problem notice.
- 3.2 Severity 2 Problems Means the Software has a problem, defect or malfunction where the Software or a major component of the Software is not working or is malfunctioning in a manner which restricts the end user or customer's use of the Software. ScanSoft agrees to commence an investigation of any "Severity 2 Problems" within two (2) business days of notice by Xerox and initiate the development of corrections immediately thereafter. ScanSoft shall commit commercially reasonable efforts to provide Xerox with a fix, workaround or permanent fix within six (6) weeks. ScanSoft agrees to provide feedback specifying the resolution outlook timeline to Xerox within five (5) business days of initial problem notice by Xerox.
- 3.3 Severity 3/4 Problems Means the Software has a problem, defect or malfunction where the Software or a component of the Software is not functioning as specified in the documentation and caused a minor impact on the end user or customers use of the Software. An acceptable circumvention or workaround is available. ScanSoft agrees to commence an investigation of any "Severity 3 or 4 Problems" within five (5) business days of notice by Xerox and shall be corrected in future releases of the Software. ScanSoft agrees to provide feedback specifying the resolution outlook timeline to Xerox within five (5) business days of initial problem notice by Xerox.

4.) Support Contacts

 ** Certain information on this page has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.

Confidential

12

13

SCANSOFT GOLD DISK AGREEMENT

- 4.1 ScanSoft Support in the US, Canada, and Europe. ScanSoft will make an OEM Hotline telephone line available to Xerox, Xerox Affiliates and Xerox Subsidiaries as follows: US and Canada hotline telephone number is [**], Europe hotline telephone number is [**]. At a minimum, ScanSoft will provide Second Level Support to these Xerox locations during the business hours of 08:30 to 17:30 Eastern Time, Monday through Friday (ScanSoft holidays excluded).
- 4.2 ScanSoft will provide US-based OEM Hotline for calls from Xerox Customer Support Centers in Latin and South America during the same business hours as above.
- 4.3 ScanSoft will provide web and email based OEM technical support ([**]) for Xerox on a worldwide basis.

- 4.4 Second and Third Level local language support for calls in Europe (XL) is provided by an office in the UK (NEED TEL #) in German, French, and Italian; in Canada (XCI) support is provided by an office in the US in English only; and in Latin America (ACO) support is provided by an office in the US in English only, or via email in English.
- 4.5 ScanSoft and Xerox will each designate a technical support manager responsible for overall communications between each company.

5.) Support Responsibility

In cases where Xerox receives call on any questions concerning other ScanSoft products, or other scanner driver connectivity, it will be the responsibility of ScanSoft and will be redirected from Xerox to ScanSoft. The customer may call the ScanSoft support line at [**] with in the USA, [**] for outside of the support for assistance with such questions. Xerox Customer Support will be responsible for all other calls related to the Software operation and the Xerox Product scan to file capabilities. ScanSoft will forward all calls related to the Xerox Product and the related scan to file capabilities to Xerox customer support centers. If both parties agree to transfer responsibility for communicating with an individual customer to ScanSoft, ScanSoft will assume all further responsibility for that customer's support, including sending any pertinent bug fixes, if available, at ScanSoft's own expense.

6.) Software License for Xerox Support Centers

In order to address customer support issues, Xerox support centers or their subcontractors are permitted to use the Software solely for support and/or testing purposes for Xerox customers. Such installation is not licensed for operational use, and is for support purposes only. The Software is for internal use only and will not be distributed externally. ScanSoft agrees to provide such software as is reasonably requested by Xerox at no cost.

7.) Software Problem Resolution Process and Escalation Process

The Software Problem Report (SPR) process includes the following steps:

- SPR's are filed as needed by Xerox.
- SPR's are prioritized by Xerox.
- ScanSoft personnel are assigned to take direct responsibility for handling the SPR.
- The timeline requirement is identified to resolve the SPR.
- The strategy that will be taken to resolve the issue is identified.
- Resolution to the problem or work-around is communicated within timelines detailed in Section 3 of this Attachment III.
- As appropriate and where applicable, "patches" are posted on the web for download by ScanSoft.
- At the discretion of ScanSoft or Xerox, fixes may be rolled into a point release which can then be sent to by Xerox to customers experiencing a particular problem addressed in that version.
- The patch or point release will be delivered to Xerox Third Level Support for fix verification at the same time as ScanSoft performs QA on the release.
- Communication of the progress against the action plan is made on a daily basis for critical problems and on a weekly basis for normal problems.

- 8.) Quarterly Reviews
- 8.1 Xerox and ScanSoft recognize and acknowledge the importance to each other of effective customer support and will conduct quarterly reviews to ensure the process is satisfying all parties. Additionally, if at any time this Software Technical Support and Training process is failing to satisfy either party, an interim review of the situation and the process to date will be made by ScanSoft and Xerox.
- ** Certain information on this page has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.

Confidential

13

14

SCANSOFT GOLD DISK AGREEMENT

- 8.2 Xerox and ScanSoft recognize and acknowledge the importance to each other of Third Level technical support information regarding both individual cases and aggregate support statistics, and commit to provide each other with regular reports containing pertinent technical support information.
- 8.3 ScanSoft will provide Xerox with a "Solutions" database of known problems and solutions on a monthly basis in a format that is compatible with the Solution Exchange Standard, however, Xerox will accept the subject database in Microsoft Word '98 format until such reasonable time as ScanSoft is prepared to deliver the format required by Xerox. The database information is expected to be available from ScanSoft beginning in July 1, 1999, or sooner, and updates will be provided within twenty (20) days after the last day of each calendar month through the term of this Agreement. The format for the subject database is Microsoft Word '98. The basis for this information is on the ScanSoft web page as technical information bulletins (TIB's) which Xerox has access to.

9.) Training

ScanSoft recognizes and acknowledges the importance of providing training regarding the Software.

- 9.1 ScanSoft will develop training materials that cover the information required to adequately support the Software. At a minimum, ScanSoft will provide to Xerox the same level of training that Xerox provides to its own support staff. The training materials will include robust troubleshooting and escalation procedures or guidelines.
- 9.2 To ensure adequate customer support, ScanSoft's training of Xerox designated personnel will be provided, as is requested by Xerox prior to Xerox' product introduction date. The training will be held at a Xerox location designated by Xerox for a mutually agreeable period appropriate to the training program.
- 9.3 Training will include, but shall not be limited to, back-up documentation material (instructor notes, transparencies, lab exercises/lab specifications, and hand-out documentation, all Software features and functions, customer usability, robust troubleshooting for topics (such as Installation, Software Upgrade, Quality of OCR, OCR application interface, operability to optimize OCR), escalation procedures/guidelines and relationship building for those support personnel who will be involved in (bi-directional) escalation and advanced troubleshooting based on customer support history.
- 9.4 ScanSoft will support Xerox in conducting training for the trainers

from each of the major Xerox customer support functions that is using or supporting the Software.

- 9.5 Xerox may further request and ScanSoft shall provide additional training support as reasonably necessary to inform all Xerox personnel of the Software.
- 9.6 ScanSoft will provide on-site training at its facility, when requested by Xerox, in order to provide an in-depth, hands-on customer support experience for a mutually agreed upon number of Xerox Third Level Support technicians.
- 9.7 All initial training and subsequent training pertinent to a new product launch shall be provided at [**], however for any incremental training sessions Xerox shall pay ScanSoft for reasonable travel and lodging expenses.

Confidential

14

15

SCANSOFT GOLD DISK AGREEMENT

ATTACHMENT IV

8/10/1999

1.1.1. Document Scope

This document will describe the features of the ScanSoft releases for the Xerox OEM clients known as Xerox Scan to Desktop: Standard Edition.

1.1.2. Project Scope

This project will consist of two software kits. Each kit will contain a single master CD created to support Windows 95, Windows 98 and Windows NT 4.0. This master CD will contain PaperPort, TextBridge Pro, link agent, Installer software and associated documentation. While it is understood that Windows 2000 is not launched, it is assumes that this code will support this environment. The software versions for each will be:

Standard Edition:

PaperPort 6.1 LE TextBridge Pro 8.0 link agent 1.0 Installer

1.1.3. Project Schedule

DATE

Standard Edition:

Golden Master (English and French) 9/15/99

Golden Master (English, French, German, Italian, Spanish, and Brazilian Portuguese) 10/15/99

1.1.4. Code Base

The code base will be with the following UI languages - English US, International English, French, German, Italian, Spanish, and Brazilian Portuguese.

APPENDIX A DOCUMENT CENTRE CUSTOMER SUPPORT INFORMATION

TEXT BRIDGE PRO SUPPORT REQUIREMENTS

The following table lists the support text for the SUPPORT.RTF files within each ScanSoft application and language.

English

[**]

[**]

[**]

German

Contact your local Xerox Support

French

Canada: [**]

France: "Contact your local Xerox Support

Italian

Contact your local Xerox Support

Spanish

Contact your local Xerox Support

Brazilian Portuguese

Contact your local Xerox Support

Note:

These numbers will exist in the help files of TextBridge Pro, PaperPort and the link agent.

** Certain information on this page has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.

Confidential 16

17

SCANSOFT GOLD DISK AGREEMENT

APPENDIX B SOFTWARE INTEROPERABILITY

ScanSoft Software will properly inter-operate with Xerox desktop software. Operationally, all Software shall function as documented. In addition, but not exclusively:

- PaperPort, TextBridge Pro and link agent will not interfere with the operation or use of CentreWare Network Scanning software
- TextBridge Pro will process Document Centre created TIFF and Multipage TIFF images.
- 3. PaperPort will utilize TextBridge Pro 8.0 software without modification

- 4. PaperPort 6.1 LE will properly upgrade PaperPort 4.x desktops
- 5. TextBridge Pro 8.0 will properly detect and install over TextBridge Pro 98

17

6. All software will include uninstall procedures

Confidential

18

SCANSOFT GOLD DISK AGREEMENT

APPENDIX C COMPARISON OF PAPERPORT PRODUCTS

COMPARISON OF PAPERPORT PRODUCTS

KEY FEATURES	PAPERPORT	PAPERPORT	PAPERPORT	PAPERPORT
	WORKGROUPS 6.1	DELUXE 6.1	6.1 LE	4.0 LE
Thumbnails of scanned images	X	X	X	Х
Page View	X	X	X	X
Links	X	X	X	X
Built-in image compression	X	X	X	X
TWAIN scanner support	X	X	X	X
Image editing & notation Tools	X	X	X	X
OCR	X	X	X	X
ScanDirect with Visioneer sheetfed scanner	X	X	X	X
32 Bit Application	X	X	X	
File system integrated with Windows File system	X	X	X	
Search documents by title, keyword. annotations, URL	X	X	X	
Convert any document to a full color image for annotating and	X	X	X	
e-mailing as read-only				
Universal viewer for sending email file attachments	X	X	X	
Nested Folders	X	X	X	
Thumbnails of Microsoft Office documents	X	X	X	
Thumbnail Web Bookmarks integrated with web browser)	X	X		
WYSIWYG web page printing	X	X		
Read saved web pages off-line	X	X		
Annotate web pages	X	X		
Open, view and print documents without creator application	X	X		
Search documents by content	X	X		
Network folders accessible, sharable and searchable	X			

Confidential 18

19

SCANSOFT GOLD DISK AGREEMENT

TEXTBRIDGE PRO 8.0 TEXTBRIDGE PRO 9.0

APPENDIX D COMPARISON OF TEXTBRIDGE PRO PRODUCTS

COMPARISON OF TEXTBRIDGE PRO PRODUCTS

	BUSINESS EDITION
Over 99% Accuracy	X (14% improved over 8.0)
Reads Text on Tinted Backgrounds	X
Accumorph (TM) Technology	X
Retains Color Pictures	X
Easy-To-Use 1-2-3 Interface	X
PageMirror(TM) Formatting Technology	X
Batch Processing Scheduler	X
WYSIWYG Web Output	X
Table Editing Tools	X
Interactive Assistance Wizard	X
Enhanced Spell-Checker	X
Original Image Reference Pop-ups	X
User-defined Page Types	X

Foreign Languages Support
Zone Templates
Proofreading
Picture Zoning
Table Zoning
Training
Searchable PDF output
HTML support
Dual Page for book OCR

11
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
Limited
Text only
X

56
X
X
X
X
X
X
Extensive
Text and page layout

Confidential

20

SCANSOFT GOLD DISK AGREEMENT

APPENDIX E LINK AGENT SPECIFICATIONS

19

[**]
FUNCTIONAL SPECIFICATION

[**]

** Certain information on this page has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.

Confidential 20

21

SCANSOFT GOLD DISK AGREEMENT

ATTACHMENT VI

CHANGE CONTROL PROCEDURE

This section provides an overview of the process used to communicate and track software program changes issued by Xerox throughout the term of this Agreement. Any modification to these procedures must be defined and mutually agreed upon in writing by both parties prior to implementation.

XEROX INTERNAL PROCESS:

- 1. A Change Request (CR) shall be the vehicle for communicating changes. The CR describes the software program change in as much technical detail as is reasonably required by the other party, the rational for the change, and the impact the change is expected to have on both Seller's and Buyer's Products. The CR originates from either party and is submitted to the designated program manager via email for review and dispositioning.
- The designated program manager of the requesting party will review the proposed CR and determine whether to submit the CR to the other party. The program manager shall disposition each CR, in writing, within fifteen (15) business days of receipt. Such disposition shall be reliably communicated to the appropriate technical manager.

XEROX/SCANSOFT PROCESS:

3. The Program Manager of the requesting party shall submit each approved CR to the other party's designated Program Manager via email within two (2) business days of approving the CR.

- 4. Both Program Managers, Seller and Buyer, will jointly review the proposed CR and authorize it for further investigation, immediate implementation, or reject it. If investigation or implementation is authorized, the Program Managers will sign the CR, which will constitute authorization for the subject software program changes. The Program Managers shall mutually agree upon whether the CR constitutes a software Update or an Upgrade. Such designation (Update / Upgrade) shall be documented on the CR. The Program Managers shall ensure that each CR is statused within thirty (30) business days of the date the CR is submitted by the requesting party. The original signed CR will be returned to the requesting party's technical manager. Each party's Program Manager shall maintain a copy of the signed CR for reference purposes.
- 5. Each software program executed CR deemed an Upgrade shall be defined by a written agreement, labeled as an Addendum, contain the following information, referring specifically to this Agreement, , plus other information pertaining to the CR:
 - Development schedule (include acceptance criteria and acceptance test procedures)
 - 2. Fees (if any)

Any such Addendum shall be mutually agreed upon in writing and signed by both parties.

Confidential

21

22

SCANSOFT GOLD DISK AGREEMENT

APPENDIX "F"

TO

GOLD DISK BUNDLING AGREEMENT

Between

XEROX CORPORATION and SCANSOFT INC.

This appendix sets forth additional and different terms particular to the Licensed System described below and shall be incorporated by reference into the Bundling Agreement between Xerox Corporation and ScanSoft Inc. effective as of October 5, 1999. Such different or additional terms are applicable only to the Licensed System described below and in no way alter the terms and conditions applicable to other Xerox Products incorporated into the Bundling Agreement by addition of an appendix or attachment.

WHEREAS, ScanSoft has developed certain software and data files enabling the integration of high-end optical character recognition (OCR) capabilities, known collectively as Textbridge Application Programmer Interface (API);

WHEREAS, Xerox wishes ScanSoft to provide a License Grant of all language versions of the API software to run on certain Xerox devices as defined in this appendix for commercial distribution, marketing and internal use;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants below, the parties agree as follows:

- 1.0 Licensed System. The Licensed System under this appendix is defined as the Xerox Publishing Applications Family of Products.
- 2.0 Software Royalty. The API software will be provided for a royalty license fee of [**] per Xerox product [**] to Xerox end-user customers.
- 3.0 Software Upgrades. Scansoft will provide [**] upgrade version from [**] available to Xerox at [**] for all Licensed Systems not later than such

upgrade is offered by Scansoft to Scansoft's licensees.

- 4.0 Non-Royalty Activities. Xerox may use the API software without charge for internal testing, development, training, documentation, and demonstration purposes only.
- 5.0 Definitions. All of the terms and definitions used in or applicable to this appendix shall retain the same meaning as defined in the Bundling Agreement and such definitions are incorporated herein by reference.
- ** Certain information on this page has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.

Confidential

22

23

SCANSOFT GOLD DISK AGREEMENT

APPENDIX "F" Тο GOLD DISK BUNDLING AGREEMENT Between XEROX CORPORATION and SCANSOFT INC.

5.0 Notice. Any notices under this appendix shall be:

If to Xerox Corporation: Sheldon Rosinsky Xerox Corporation ESM2-02 701 South Aviation Blvd. El Segundo, CA. 90245 Phone: [**] Email:

[**]

If to ScanSoft Inc.: Sue Wilcox ScanSoft Inc. 9 Centennial Drive Peabody, MA. 01960 Phone: [**] Email: [**]

Copy to: Robert E. Levine Xerox Corporation ESAE-116 710 South Aviation Blvd. El Segundo, CA. 90245 Phone: [**] E-mail: [**]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Xerox and ScanSoft have caused this Appendix "F" to be executed by their duly authorized representatives.

SCANSOFT INC.	XEROX CORPORATION
Signature/Date:	Signature/Date:
Print Name	Print Name
Print Title	Print Title

** Certain information on this page has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.

DATED: JANUARY 01, 2000 ("EFFECTIVE DATE")

This Amendment is entered into as of the Effective Date amending the ScanSoft - Xerox Gold Disk Bundling Agreement dated September 30, 1999 ("Agreement") between Xerox Corporation, with offices at 200 Canal View, Rochester, NY 14623 ("Xerox") and ScanSoft, Inc., with offices located at 9 Centennial Drive, Peabody, MA 01960 ("ScanSoft") as agreed in writing to be bound by the terms and conditions hereof.

I. Amendments

The Agreement is hereby modified as follows:

1. Revise Article I - DEFINITIONS as follows:

The following new Paragraphs are added:

- "1.8 "Document Centre Image Retriever" shall mean the link agent software as described in the Agreement.
- 1.9 "Bundled" shall mean the integrated system consisting of certain Software specified in Attachment I combined with certain Xerox Products described in Attachment II. The integration may occur at the time of distribution of such Xerox Product or at later date.
- 1.10 "Embedded" shall mean the integration of certain Software specified in Attachment I with certain Xerox Products described in Attachment VII. The integration will occur prior to the distribution of such Xerox Product."

The following Paragraph is revised and replaced as follows:

- "1.4 "Xerox Products" shall mean the products described in Attachment II or the products described in Attachment VII."
 - 2. Replace Paragraphs 2.1 and 2.2 as follows:
 - "2.1 Gold Disk. ScanSoft shall provide to Xerox a master copy of the Software, including Documentation on disk (the "Gold Disk"). A Gold Disk (English and French), including Documentation, shall be delivered by ScanSoft to Xerox on or about February 11, 2000 including TextBridge Pro 9.x Business Edition, PaperPort Deluxe 6.x, Document Centre Image Retriever, and Installer software and associated Documentation. A subsequent Gold Disk (English, French, Italian, Spanish, German, and Brazilian Portuguese) including TextBridge Pro 9.x Business Edition, PaperPort Deluxe 6.x, Document Centre Image Retriever, and Installer software and associated Documentation shall be delivered by ScanSoft to Xerox on or about March 26, 2000. ScanSoft shall insure references to the link agent software are updated to Document Centre Image Retriever. Licensing of such Software shall be pursuant to the terms of Section 6.0.
 - (i) Within a mutually agreed timeframe of ScanSoft's deployment of PaperPort Deluxe 7.x to retail markets, ScanSoft shall deliver to Xerox an updated Gold Disk (English and French), including Documentation, with PaperPort Deluxe 7.x Software. A subsequent Gold Disk (English, French, Italian, Spanish, German, and Brazilian Portuguese) including PaperPort Deluxe 7.x, and associated Documentation shall be delivered by ScanSoft to Xerox within a time frame mutually agreed by the parties. Licensing of

such Software shall be pursuant to Section 6.0.

(ii) An additional Gold Disk (English and French), including Documentation, shall be delivered by ScanSoft to Xerox on or about February 11, 2000 including TextBridge Pro 9.x and associated Documentation. A subsequent Gold Disk (English, French, Italian, Spanish, German, and Brazilian Portuguese) including TextBridge Pro 9.x and associated Documentation shall be delivered by

Confidential

2.4

25

SCANSOFT GOLD DISK AGREEMENT

ScanSoft to Xerox on or about March 26, 2000. Licensing of such Software shall be pursuant to Section 6.0.

- 2.2 End User/ScanSoft Agreements. In the event that an end user requires additional licenses beyond the 25 or 50 user licenses described in Attachment I, Xerox may provide the end user with additional licenses which shall be distributed in blocks of 25 at the royalty rates shown in Attachment I. In the event that an end user requires more than 300 licenses, the parties agree to negotiate in good faith a separate agreement and special pricing terms. In the event that an end user requires additional user licenses in increments other than 25 (i.e. 26-49 user licenses, 51-99 user licenses etc.), the end user shall seek such licenses directly from ScanSoft. Xerox need not be a party to such additional licenses and shall have no liability or responsibility therefor. [**]
- 3. Revise Section 4.0 Support and Documentation by adding the following new paragraph:
 - "4.6 In addition to training previously provided, ScanSoft agrees to offer the training as described in Paragraph 4.4 above for Software items 6-10 in Attachment I."
- 4. Add and incorporate Attachment VII to the Agreement as attached hereto.
- 5. Revise Paragraph 6.1 and 6.2 as follows:
 - "6.1 License Grant. ScanSoft hereby grants to Xerox and Xerox Affiliates, under ScanSoft's applicable patents, copyrights, and other intellectual property rights, a nonexclusive, worldwide right and license to use, market, maintain, reproduce [**], distribute (acting directly or indirectly through their authorized agents, resellers and concessionaires), prepare, display, lease, and [**] the Software [**], and Documentation [**] ScanSoft grants to Xerox and Xerox Affiliates the [**] right and license to reproduce, distribute (acting directly or indirectly through their authorized agents, resellers and concessionaires) all or any part of such Documentation and materials. ScanSoft further grants Xerox the right to create and/or modify any or all parts of Documentation and such materials, [**] of such Documentation and materials.
 - 6.2 Each copy of the Software Bundled with Xerox Products shall be distributed with (1) end user documentation and (2) an end user license agreement."
- 6. Attachment IV to the Agreement is amended by adding the attached Metropolis Deluxe Functional Specification as Attachment IVa.
- 7. Attachment I to the Agreement is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the Attachment I to this Amendment No. 1.

8. ScanSoft acknowledges that Xerox is the owner of all rights, title and interest in and to the Document Centre(R) and the Document Centre Image Retriever(TM) trademarks; the several United States Patent and Trademark Office and foreign registrations and applications therefor; and the goodwill associated therewith. ScanSoft shall not claim any rights of ownership with respect to the symbols, brands, or trademarks of Xerox. During the term of this Agreement, Xerox shall permit ScanSoft to use the Document Centre Image Retriever(TM) trademark solely in connection with the license of its Document Center Image Retriever software product,

** Certain information on this page has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.

Confidential

25

26

SCANSOFT GOLD DISK AGREEMENT

listed in Attachment I, to Xerox, and for no other purpose.. ScanSoft shall apply said Trademark only to the Document Center Image Retriever software product as described in the Agreement, as amended, and the packaging thereof, if any. Xerox may request in writing, at any time, that a trademark notice acceptable to Xerox be used in relation to the sale of the Document Center Image Retriever software product and ScanSoft shall comply with Xerox' reasonable requirements regarding design, layout, format, and trademark attribution. ScanSoft shall provide to Xerox, for Xerox' approval, samples of all literature, packages, labels and labeling containing said Trademark prior to use. ScanSoft agrees that any and all rights that may be acquired by the use of said Trademark shall inure to the sole benefit of Xerox. The benefit granted herein shall be personal to ScanSoft. ScanSoft agrees to abide by the terms set forth herein and further agrees it shall not use said Trademark or any other Xerox owned trademark (excluding any and all marks previously assigned by Xerox to ScanSoft which are currently registered in Xerox' name with the United States Patent and Trademark office) with or for any third party, without the prior written consent of Xerox.

9. Except as set forth herein, the terms and conditions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment No. 1 on the dates shown below.

SCANSOFT,	INC.	XEROX CORPORATION		
By:		ву:		
Name:		Name:		
Title:		Title:		
Date:		Date:		
Addross	9 Centennial Drive	7 ddrogg.	200 Canal View	
Address:		Address:	200 Canai view	
	Peabody, MA 01960		Rochester, NY 14623	
	USA		USA	
Phone:	978-977-2000	Phone:		
Phone:	978-977-2000	Phone:		
Fax:	978-977-2425	Fax:		

SCANSOFT GOLD DISK AGREEMENT

ATTACHMENT I

ScanSoft products 1-11 shall be collectively referred to as Software.

ITEM	SCANSOFT PRODUCT		ROYAL	TY
				50 User Licenses
1	TextBridge Pro 8.x	Bundled User Licenses:	[**]	[**]
		Bundled Server Licenses: (1 Server License per 25 User Licenses)	[**]	[**]
2	PaperPort LE 6.x	Bundled User Licenses:	[**]	[**]
3	Document Centre Ima	nge Retriever 7 Standard Edition, section 5.0)	[**]	[**]
4	Installer (ref. Attachment IV Bundled standard ki	V Standard Edition, section 5.0) tt: Items 1-4	[**] [**](1)	[**] [**](1)
5	Upgrade from PaperF	eidge 98 to TextBridge Pro 8.x 25 Bundled User Licenses and lBundled Server License: Port 4.04 to PaperPort LE 6.x 25 Bundled User Licenses Ograde kit: Items 3-5	See Below(3)	
6	TextBridge Pro 9.x		See Below(3) [**] [**]	
7	PaperPort Deluxe 6.	x/7.x Bundled User Licenses:	[**]	
8	Document Centre Ima (ref. Attachment IV	nge Retriever /a Deluxe Edition, section 4.0)	[**]	
9	Installer (ref. Attachment IV Bundled deluxe kit:	/a Deluxe Edition, section 5.0) : Items 6-9	[**] \$[**](2)	
10	Bundled deluxe kit	ed standard kit (Items 1-4) to (Items 6-9) cade kit: Items 8-10	[**] [**](2)	
11	TextBridge Pro 9.x	Embedded Server Licenses:	<pre>[**] (Embedded server license only, no user licenses)</pre>	

- 1. The Individual User License Royalty for Software items 1 and 2 shall be reduced to [**] and [**] respectively after Xerox has paid a total of [**] in royalties and fees under this Agreement.
- 2. The Individual User License Royalty for Software items 6 and 7 above shall be reduced to [**] and [**] respectively and the Individual User License Royalty for Software item 10 above shall be reduced to [**] after Xerox has paid a total of [**] in royalties and fees under this Amendment No. 1.
- 3. The royalty for item number five above shall be a flat fee of [**], which was previously paid by Xerox under the Agreement.
- ** Certain information on this page has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.

Xerox previously paid ScanSoft a one-time non-refundable license fee of [**], under the Agreement.

ROYALTY CALCULATION

Class A Xerox Products are the Xerox Products described in Attachment II which are marketed at 20-40 pages per minute. Class B Xerox Products are the Xerox Products described in Attachment II which are marketed at 40+ pages per minute. For royalty calculation purposes, Xerox geographies are defined as United States (US), Xerox Canada, Inc. (XCI), Xerox Business Services (XBS), European Sales Group (ESG), and Developing Markets Organization (DMO).

Bundled Standard Kit (items 1-4 above):

Beginning January 1, 2000 Xerox shall pay the applicable royalty for the [**] of the [**] of Software licensed to third parties which shall be calculated by [**] by third parties in conjunction with [**] of the Xerox Product from the [**] of Software [**] during such period. Royalties accrue upon complete installation of the [**] Software at a customer's site. If Xerox can not report the actual number of units of [**] Software licensed to third parties in a particular geography, [**] in the particular geography. For purposes of this calculation, installation of each Class A and Class B Xerox Product shall correspond to 25 and 50 individual user licenses of Software items 1-4, respectively.

Bundled Deluxe Kit (items 6-9 above):

As of the Effective Date of this Amendment, Xerox shall pay the applicable royalty for the [**] of the [**] of Software licensed to third parties which shall be calculated by [**] by third parties in conjunction with the [**] of the Xerox Product from the [**] of Software [**] during such period. Royalties accrue upon complete installation of the [**] Software at a customer's site. If Xerox can not report the actual number of units of [**] Software licensed to third parties in a particular geography, [**]. This percentage shall be reviewed and agreed by the parties on or about April 2001, with any change effective June 01, 2001. For purposes of this calculation, [**] shall mean the total [**] of [**] Software units licensed to [**] by Xerox and [**] of Xerox Product [**], including both Class A and Class B Xerox Product shall correspond to 25 individual user licenses of Software items 6-9, respectively.

Bundled Deluxe Upgrade Kit (item 10 above):

As of the Effective Date of this Amendment, Xerox shall pay the applicable royalty for the [**] of the [**] installations of Software licensed to third parties which shall be calculated by [**] by third parties in conjunction with the [**] of the Xerox Product from the [**] of Software [**] during such period. Royalties accrue upon complete installation of the [**] Software at a customer's site. If Xerox can not report the actual number of units of [**] Software licensed to third parties in a particular geography, [**]. This percentage shall be reviewed and agreed by the parties on or about April 2001, with any change effective June 01, 2001. For purposes of this calculation, [**] shall mean the total [**] of [**] Software units licensed to [**] by Xerox and [**] of Xerox Product [**], including both Class A and Class B Xerox Product. For purposes of this calculation, installation of each Class A and Class B Xerox Product shall correspond to 25 individual user licenses of Software item 10.

Embedded TextBridge Pro 9.x Server License for Flowport (item 11
above):

As of the Effective Date of this Amendment, Xerox shall pay the

applicable royalty for the [**] of the [**] installations of Software licensed to third parties which shall be calculated by [**] by third parties in conjunction with the [**] of the Xerox Flowport solution from the total number of units of Software [**] during such period. Royalties accrue upon complete installation of the [**] Xerox Product, as described in Attachment VII, at a customer's site.

** Certain information on this page has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.

Confidential

28

29

SCANSOFT GOLD DISK AGREEMENT

PRIOR AGREEMENTS

Effective October 1, 1999, the royalty rate, calculation, and payment for the Bundled Solution License Fee for TextBridge Pro '98, as agreed between the parties in the prior agreement executed on or about March 25, 1998, reference article 3.0 was superceded and nullified by this Agreement. Also, effective October 1, 1999, the royalty rate, calculation, and payment for Visioneer PaperPort 4.04 software, as agreed between Visioneer, Inc. and Xerox Corporation executed on or about November 15, 1996, reference article 6.0, for which ScanSoft assumed all rights and liabilities on March 2, 1999, was superceded and nullified by this Agreement.

The royalties listed above are based on the following ScanSoft product pricing:

SCANSOFT PRODUCT	Price per Individual User License	Price per Server License
TextBridge Pro 8.x	[**]	[**]
PaperPort LE 6.x	[**]	[**]
Document Centre Image Retriever	[**]	[**]
Installer	[**]	[**]
TextBridge Pro 9.x Business Edition	[**]	[**]
PaperPort Deluxe 6.x/7.x	[**]	[**]
Bundled Deluxe Upgrade Kit	[**]	[**]
TextBridge Pro 9.x for Flowport	[**]	[**]

^{**} Certain information on this page has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.

Confidential

EXHIBIT 21.1

SCANSOFT, INC.

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

DECEMBER 31, 2000

SUBSIDIARY LEGAL NAME

----Formmatt, Ltd.

ScanSoft U.K., Ltd.

Caere Corporation

JURISDICTION

----United Kingdom
United Kingdom

Pursuant to the Company's acquisition of Caere Corporation on March 13, 2000, the Company formed a wholly owned subsidiary called Scorpion Acquisitions Corporation. Scorpion Acquisitions acquired Caere Corporation, changed its name to "Caere Corporation" and has the following subsidiaries:

ScanSoft GmbH
ScanSoft BV
ScanSoft SARL
ScanSoft Hungary Corp.
Caere Kft
ScanSoft FSC
Formonix, Inc.

Germany
The Netherlands
France
Hungary
Hungary
Guam
Colorado

EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-8 (Nos. 333-49656, 333-33464, 333-30518, 333-74343 and 333-45425) of ScanSoft, Inc. of our report dated February 9, 2001 relating to the financial statements, which appears in this Form 10-K. We also consent to the incorporation by reference of our report dated February 9, 2001 relating to the financial statement schedule, which appears in this Form 10-K.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Boston, Massachusetts March 30, 2001